From: Jay Pausner

To: Coreena Smith
Subject: C4 756 - Carson
Date: Friday, September 22, 2023 9:50:20 AM

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Town staff have reviewed the noted files and offer the following comments:

Even though the Town’s Official Plan does not apply to the subject lands, the Town encourages
investments by local businesses to retain and expand existing businesses within Saugeen Shores. Of
note are the anticipated 50 new jobs this expansion will create. It is acknowledged there are limited
opportunities for space-extensive industrial businesses to locate with the settlement area. However,
finding appropriate locations is key, locations which appropriately mitigate impacts from the
development.

In this circumstance, there are potential visual impacts for which appropriate measures need to be
identified through the site plan control process. The subject lands are adjacent to and have visibility
from Highway 21. Highway 21 is the most prominent corridor connecting the communities of Port
Elgin and Southampton. Buffering may include landscaped berms, as shown in the proposal
submission. Other buffering and landscaping measures should also be considered.

It is also important to consider servicing. Connection to the existing water system is appropriate.
Town staff continue to review the submitted servicing documents.

Jay Pausner

Manager, Planning and Development

Town of Saugeen Shores

600 Tomlinson Drive, Box 820, Port Elgin ON NOH 2C0
T 519-832-2008 x120 | F 519-832-2140

E jay.pausner@saugeenshores.ca | saugeenshores.ca

Disclaimer

The information contained in this message is directed in confidence solely to the person(s) named above and may not be otherwise
distributed, copied or disclosed. The message may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection and Privacy Act. If you have received this message in error, please notify the
sender immediately advising of the error and delete the message without making a copy. Thank you.


https://saugeenshores.ca
mailto:jay.pausner@saugeenshores.ca

From: Candace Hamm

To: Travis Burnside; Dana Kieffer

Cc: Coreena Smith; Jay Pausner; Jamie McCarthy

Subject: 2023 10 25 C4 Z56 Carson Town of Saugeen Shores Hydrogeological Study Comments
Date: Wednesday, October 25, 2023 2:37:40 PM

Attachments: image002.png

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Travis & Dana,

Further to our discussions today on the C4 756 Carson file, it is our understanding that Cobide has
agreed to consult with a hydrogeologist and provide additional information or an addendum to the
Planning Justification Report that outlines the MECP PTTW process. In the interest of moving the
application forward, if you're able to demonstrate, in consultation with a hydrologist, that a
Hydrogeological Study isn’t warranted based on the MECP criteria and the proposed water usage at
the site, staff will consider our preliminary concerns regarding hydrogeology satisfactorily
addressed. We will, however, reserve the right to require a Hydrogeological Study (or other
materials, reports, studies, etc.) as part of the submission requirements of the Site Plan Approval
process, should additional information be deemed necessary to address concerns raised by Council
and/or the public during the OPA/ZBA process.

| trust this information is helpful. Please reach out if you would like to discuss further.
Thanks,

Candace Hamm (she/her)

Development Services Officer

Town of Saugeen Shores

600 Tomlinson Drive, P.O. Box 820, Port Elgin ON NOH 2CO
T 519-832-2008 x182 | F 519-832-2140

E_candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca |[saugeenshores.ca
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From: Candace Hamm

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub

Cc: Coreena Smith

Subject: 2024 02 01 Town of Saugeen Shores Comments in Response to Revised RFC C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Thursday, February 1, 2024 12:55:42 PM

You don't often get email from candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca. Learn why this is important

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon,

RE:

Revised Request for Agency Comments
County Official Plan Amendment file C-2023-004 & Zoning By-law Amendment file Z-2023-
056 Carson

Town of Saugeen Shores staff have reviewed the Revised Request for Agency Comments, including
the following additional supporting materials:

Amended Site Plan

Additional Supporting Materials Email

Revised Planning Justification Report

Revised Functional Servicing Report

Revised Stormwater Management Report

Transportation Impact Study Response to Ministry of Transportation Comments
Public Comment Matrix Letter,

Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation

Geotechnical Investigation

The following comments are provided:

1.

The Revised Request for Agency Comments indicates that a portion of the subject property is
proposed to be re-zoned to AC2-x-H — Agricultural Commercial Special with Holding, and that
the Holding (H) provision will indicate that development or site alteration shall not occur until
the lands have been cleared of archaeological potential through the submission of an
Archaeological Assessment.

In addition to the requirement of the Archaeological Assessment, Town staff recommend
that the Holding (H) not be removed from the property until:

e Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) approval has been given for
the on-site sewage treatment and disposal systems.

e The installation of a drilled well that extends into the bedrock aquifer has been
completed.


mailto:candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca
mailto:bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca
mailto:CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification

2. Provided the drilled well at the site extends into the bedrock aquifer, as per the
recommendations of the Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation, the Town’s preliminary
concerns regarding hydrogeology will be satisfactorily addressed.

3. In accordance with Section 6.25 of the Town of Saugeen Shores Official Plan, the Town is
requesting that the lands proposed to be re-zoned be designated as a Site Plan Control Area,
and that development on the site be subject to Site Plan Control.

4. A portion of the subject lands proposed to be re-zoned to Agricultural AC2-x-H - Agricultural
Commercial Special with Holding, are zoned Institutional (I) in Town of Saugeen Shores By-law
75-2006. The Institutional Zoning on the property has been carried forward from the previous
Comprehensive Zoning By-law (Town of Saugeen Shores By-law 201-2000), and therefore, is
not considered by Town staff to be a mapping error. Town staff are generally supportive of
the proposal to re-zone the Institutional lands on the property to AC2-x-H. However, the
reference in the Planning Justification Report to Section 4.6.1 a) ii) of the Town’s By-law does
appear to apply in this instance.

5. The Town is requesting that the Applicant’s Engineer provide rationale for the use of the
Ministry of Transportation (MTQO) IDF Parameters for the Stormwater Management quantity
control modelling. The rationale can be provided to the Town as part of the Site Plan Control
Application process. Town staff are of the opinion that there are adequate lands within the
area to be re-designated / re-zoned to accommodate a larger stormwater management pond,
should upsizing be required, and that the specific details regarding the modelling parameters
do not need to be addressed at the County Official Plan and Zoning By-law Amendment
stage.

Town staff continue to encourage investments by local businesses to retain and expand their
businesses within Saugeen Shores.

Please ensure the Owner and Applicant are made aware of the Town comments.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have
any questions.

Kind regards,
Candace

Candace Hamm

Development Services Officer

Town of Saugeen Shores

600 Tomlinson Drive, Box 820, Port Elgin ON NOH 2CO0
T 519-832-2008 ext 182

E candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca
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From:

Candace Hamm

To: Coreena Smith

Cc: Jay Pausner

Subject: RE: 2024-03-20 Carson"s Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting 05027 C4 Z56
Date: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 2:38:24 PM

Attachments: black rainbowregistered logo 3c739da1-3819-4834-ac24-db7246dc7725.png

twitter-x-1oqo-42554 d2be9fa8-6b08-475f-8b28-c49a780645¢ca.png
facebook 32x32 c9bd5923-425f-492e-abc0-bef9f71e36a2.pong

instagram 32x32 16a4d30f-aff9-4d89-9fad-d315bb9bcb05.png
2024-03-20 Carsons Supply Expansion Follow-Up Letter C4 Z56 05027.pdf
05027 Carson"s Supply SP1 2024-03-20 Revised.pdf

05027 Carson"s Supply SK1 2024-03-20.pdf

X-Base Plan 05027 2024-03-20.dwg

GRH-L Carson WS Revised Report.pdf
the-health-safety-and-environmental-performance-of-pvc-pipe.pdf
pvc-pipe-safe-and-beneficial-to-public-health.pdf

EW Meeting re. Carsons Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting.msq

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon, Coreena.

As requested, | have reviewed the attached materials that were provided by Cobide
Engineering Inc. to the County in response to your March 8, 2024 e-mail. The following Town

staff comments are provided:

1.

2.

3.

4.

Section ‘6.6.2 The Proposed Zoning By-law Amendment’ section of the Revised Planning
Justification Report doesn’t take into account s.4.8 of the Town’s By-law. Town staff are
requesting the inclusion of a Zoning Matrix on the Site Plan that outlines the
requirements for the proposed Open Space, proposed Agricultural Commercial, and
Agricultural (A) zones, and other by-law provisions (i.e. parking requirements and
setbacks, driveway setback, etc.) to demonstrate compliance with the Zoning By-law
and outline where relief is required/requested. A draft of the proposed Zoning By-law
should be circulated to the Town for review by staff, once available.

The Development Site Plan prepared by Cobide isn’t stamped or dated, but perhaps this
isn’t required by the County at the OPA/ZBA stage. The name of the document indicates

05027-SP1 has been revised, but that hasn’t been reflected in the Revision/Issue table.

The proposed planting strip along the eastern boundary of the area to be re-
designated/re-zoned should be extended to connect with/blend into the proposed
landscaped berm at the southeast corner of the area to be re-zoned to comply with
s.6.4.1 of the Town’s By-law.

There are minor discrepancies between the Figure No. SK-1 Zoning Sketch 1 and the
Development Site Plan. The setback distance of the proposed driveway from the
eastern zoning boundary shown on the sketch appears to be less than the required 3.0
m (s.6.4.1 and s.3.27.4 h) of the By-law). The March 20, 2024 Cobide Engineering letter
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ENGINEERING INC

March 20, 2024

BY EMAIL ONLY

Coreena Smith, Senior Planner Tel: 226-909-1601
Corporation of the County of Bruce o Fax: 519-881-1619
30 Park Street, P.O. Box 70 Email: cjsmith@brucecounty.on.ca

Walkerton, ON NOG 2VO0

Subject: Proposed Carson’s Supply Expansion
Bruce County Official Plan Amendment (C4) and Zoning By-law Amendment (Z56)
5331 Bruce Road 3
Town of Saugeen Shores

Dear Ms. Smith:

In response to your email correspondence dated March 8, 2024, the development team offers the
following:

1. Adraft schedule has been prepared as requested and the associated CAD file has been sent
attached to this email.

2. The site plan has been prepared and updated as required and attached to this email. We note
the driveway will have a 3 m setback to the adjacent to the zone boundary, to accommodate the
required planting strip (Section 6.4.1).

3. The area in hectares of the lands not subject to the application is 41.5 and the frontage is 413 m.
The property is in compliance with the Zone provisions of the Agriculture (A) zone in the Town of
Saugeen Shores Comprehensive Zoning By-law.

4. On the attached schedule, the woodlot and the required 70 m buffer from the D-6 Guidelines are
proposed to be placed into an Open Space zone. In our opinion, this is consistent with the intent
of the development concept to preserve these spaces for spatial separation setbacks and tree
preservation.

5. Retail will remain at the 1071 Goderich Street site. The development team is amendable to the
batching plant definition as noted. We would like the opportunity to review the by-law after it has
been drafted.

6. The outdoor storage will be gravel.

7. An updated Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation is attached to this email.

8. The 50 employees will be required after the full buildout of the site. These employees will be in
addition to the 35 current employees at the 1071 Goderich St. site.

9. | have attached resources for PVC manufacturing to this email. The development will be included
in the Concrete Precasters Association of Ontario Product Registration Program. A P. Eng

COBIDE Engineering Inc.
517 10" Street

Hanover ON N4N 1R4
www.cobideeng.com




http://www.cobideeng.com/



10.

comes in once and year and test and inspect the product. We further confirm that an
Environmental Activity and Sector Registry (EASR) is required as well as an Acoustic
Assessment Report and an Emissions Summary and Dispersion Modelling report after
construction to be reviewed and approved by the Ontario Ministry of Environment, Conservation
and Parks (MECP).

Materials required to mix concrete such as sand and gravel will be stockpiled and stored
outdoors. There will be fuel on site, but no chemicals are proposed to be stored outdoors. As
with any industrial use, a Spill Response Plan will be administered. This plan is site and building
specific and will be completed after the construction of the facility as part of the plan will include
the location of spill mitigating materials.

The building will be required to be sprinklered for fire suppression.

If you have any questions regarding the above, please contact the undersigned at 519-506-5959,
extension 106.

Sincerely,

Cobide Engineering Inc.

iffen.

Encl.

Dana Kieffer, M.Sc. (Planning), MCIP, RPP
Senior Development Planner,
Cobide Engineering Inc.

Mr. Jason Carson, Carson’s Supply

H:\Carsons Supply\05027- Expansion\Reports\PJR\Carsons Supply Expansion Follow-Up Letter C4 Z56 2024-03-18 05027

COBIDE Engineering Inc.
517 10" Street

Hanover ON N4N 1R4
www.cobideeng.com
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GAMAN CONSULTANTS INC.
Barrie, Ont.

705-279-9156

ghendy.gaman@outlook.com

March 18, 2024

2128080 Ontario Inc.
1032 Bruce Road 33
Port Elgin, Ontario
NOH 2C5

Attention: Mr. Jason Carson

Dear Sirs:

Re:  Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation (Revised)
Lots K & L, Registered Plan No. 154

Town of Saugeen Shores, Bruce County
Our File 23009.00

GAMAN Consultants Inc. was retained by 2128080 Ontario Inc. to complete a groundwater
supply evaluation. The purpose of the evaluation is to provide an understanding of the
potential to service the proposed site with a water well for use in manufacturing precast

concrete products.

The proposed development is located on the southeast side of Bruce County Roads 3 and 21,
05027-5331 Bruce Road 3, as shown in Figures 1 and 2. The proposed dry industrial
development will be serviced with a drilled well and on-site subsurface sewage disposal
(septic) system. The applications will facilitate a partial relocation and expansion of
Carson’s Supply, a 40-year-old commercial business located in Port Elgin and currently
operates out of 1071 Goderich St., Port Elgin. Carson’s Supply is a wholesale provider of
plumbing, HVAC, waterworks supplies and precast concrete structures. They have a custom
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PVC injection and extrusion facility at their Port Elgin warehouse that ships throughout

North America.

The Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment would permit the construction
of a concrete manufacturing plant that would produce products such as catch basins, septic
holding tanks and electrical utility vaults. It would also provide ample outdoor storage for
these large materials. It would further permit a PVC manufacturing facility to be constructed
in the future. In total, it is estimated that 50 new employees will be required to operate these
facilities. The proposed development will occupy the western portion of the subject lands and
will use approximately 13.5 ha of land. The development concept includes future expansion

plans.

A: SCOPE OF WORK AND OBJECTIVES

The purpose of this evaluation was to identify a source of groundwater and the anticipated
yield of a well to service a 50-person site. The scope of work was comprised of evaluating
existing information to identify potential sources of groundwater for the development. The

sources of information for this evaluation included:

1) MECP water well records.
2) Geological maps and reports prepared by the province.

3) Other readily available sources of information based on our local knowledge.

B: PHYSICAL SETTING

Bruce County is covered by seven (7) physiographic regions. The study area and site are
located within the Huron Fringe physiographic region as described by Chapman and Putnam
(1984). This physiographic region is a narrow ridge of land extending along Lake Huron from

Sarnia to Tobermory and consists of wave-cut terraces formed from glacial Lake Algonquin
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and glacial Lake Nipissing. Across the mouth of the Saugeen River and valley at Southampton,
west of this development, glacial Lake Algonquin built a massive beach deposit. The sand
plains within this physiographic region are comprised of coarse textured glaciolacustrine
sediments. Figure 3 illustrates the surficial geology within the Saugeen Valley Watershed with
the approximate site location shown in the central area. The surficial geology illustrates the

sand plain that extends over and beyond the study area.

The area is located within the Lake Fringe Sub-watershed of the Saugeen Valley
Conservation Authority. Our review of the source water protection assessment report and
maps for this area show that both groundwater and surface waters are located within areas

classified as low stress potential.

C: HYDROSTRATIGRAPHY

Aquifers are sources of groundwater yielding enough water to supply a well. Aquifers are
commonly derived from saturated sand and/or gravel deposits within overburden, and from
fractured bedrock. Aquitards are barriers to groundwater movement that can provide
protection to aquifers from sources of contamination. Aquitards are commonly comprised of

silt, clay, till or bedrock.

The water well record database was reviewed and interpreted to present the following
understanding of hydrostratigraphic units beneath the site. Figure 4 illustrates the locations of
local water wells. Water well records are presented in Table 1. There are three (3) main
hydrostratigraphic units within the immediate area of the site as follows:

» The Upper Aquifer

» Aquitard

> Bedrock Aquifer

The Upper Aquifer is comprised of saturated sands that form the sand plains described in

Section B. There are few water wells documented in the MECP water well record database
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near the site and most show this thin aquifer. The base of the aquifer is about 13 metres below
grade and perhaps about 7 metres thick. Shallow dug wells and some drilled extract water from

this shallow aquifer.

The Aquitard appears to be comprised of heterogeneous mixtures of sandy-silt, silty-sand, or

clayey-silty soils as described in water well records. These soils are also documented as hard
pan by drillers. The aquitard is upwards of 60 to 70 metres thick at some wells. Though a few
wells do not document the presence of these fine-grained soils; there is widespread evidence
of these soils to support the interpretation of an aquitard in our opinion. A few wells encounter

sandy fractions within the aquitard that support enough water for a well.

The Bedrock Aquifer was encountered at depths beneath the aquitard. This limestone bedrock

aquifer is expected to be confined. Most wells in the study area extract water from this deeper
aquifer. The Saugeen Golf and Country Club has drilled irrigation wells that terminate in the

bedrock aquifer.

D: WATER REQUIREMENTS

We understand the development proposal anticipates a daily demand of about 7,000 L/day or
about 4.9 L/min. The water used for manufacturing is not expected to result in wastewater.
Since all this water is taken within about 8-hours per day, the well should yield 15 L/min for

8 continuous hours of operation each day.

E: LOCAL WATER WELLS

Figure 4 illustrates the location of water wells in the vicinity of the site. The water wells
show the reported test rates at the time of construction, and we have provided an
interpretation of the aquifer source based on the depth of the well and stratigraphic cross-

section. The map shows wells within an beyond 500 metres of the property boundary.
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The Upper Overburden Aquifer and Bedrock Aquifer are the most common sources of
groundwater supply for sites close to this proposed development. There are 9 reported wells
terminating in the overburden aquifer. The test rates range from about 9 to 105 L/min with
an average rate of 49 L/min. The limestone bedrock aquifer is a reliable source of
groundwater for some wells including irrigation wells at the Saugeen Shores Golf Club north
of the site. Test rates from 17 wells terminating in bedrock range from about 9 to 909 L/min
with an average rate of 166 L/min. Most wells likely yield more than the reported test rates
because the wells were not tested to evaluate maximum yield. This aquifer is confined below

a thick, protective aquitard.

F: GROUNDWATER INTERFERENCE

Extracting groundwater from a water well causes a cone of depression to extend in all
directions around the well. The amount of change in groundwater levels is influenced by the
hydraulic properties of the aquifer and from the quantity of recharge to the aquifer. The
development site is about 13.5 hectares. Two technical approaches are presented below to

evaluate the risk of affecting wells from this proposed low water taking:

1) Recharge to bedrock aquifer within the site boundary.

2) Assumptions of aquifer properties to assess groundwater interference.

Recharge to bedrock aquifer

Recharge to the aquifer was evaluated using a water budget for the site. The evaluation was
prepared using climate data and expected infiltration values from MECP Guideline D-5-4.
Table 2 provides a summary of precipitation showing 505 mm/yr. is available as water

surplus. Water surplus is the sum of runoff and infiltration on a parcel of land.

MECP Guideline D-5-4 provides a method for estimating recharge based on soil, topography,
and cover. Assuming the soils are sandy (Factor 0.3), the site is hilly (Factor is 0.1) and there
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is no tree cover (Factor is 0.1), it can be shown the infiltration factor for the site is 0.5 or half
of the water surplus. Recharge to the water table would be 252 mm/yr. If we assume 20% of
this recharge, or 50 mm/yr., infiltrates down through the aquitard and recharges the bedrock
aquifer, the total recharge on a 13.5 ha site would be about 18,500 L/day. The annual amount
of recharge within the site boundary is more than the water taking of 7,000 L/day. It appears
there is more than enough recharge to the aquifer to supply this site without affecting

neighbouring water supplies.

Assumptions of aquifer properties to assess groundwater interference

Transmissivity and storativity are hydraulic properties of an aquifer that can be used to assess
the potential for groundwater interference from pumping wells. Transmissivity characterizes
the rate at which water can flow through the aquifer under a given set of conditions. Storativity
characterizes the volume of water that is released from storage within the aquifer under a
specified set of conditions. In an aquifer with a hydraulic response like an unconfined system,
the storage coefficient (S) of the aquifer is influenced by the Specific Storage (Ss) and the
Specific Yield (Sy). Inaconfined aquifer, storativity would be represented by specific storage.
In a semi-confined aquifer, the movement of water from an overlying or underlying bed of
water contributes leakage into the confined aquifer. Table 3 provides calculations using two
sets of assumptions for the bedrock aquifer. The bedrock aquifer appears to be productive based
on the high, test rates at the nearby Saugeen Shores Golf Club. The two scenarios were
prepared using the Theis equation and the following assumptions:

> Itis assumed there is no groundwater recharge to the aquifer for 365 days, a conservative
assumption.

» The flow rate is 7,000 L/day for one year though the site likely operates 5-days per week.

> Transmissivity values of 10 and 30 m?/day are considered conservative for a productive
bedrock aquifer with known test rates as high as 909 L/min.

> Storativity values for the bedrock aquifer ranging from 1x10° to 1x10™* are common for
confined aquifers.

The tabulated results show a cone of influence with very little drawdown in the aquifer. The
available drawdown in bedrock wells is in the order of 40 to 60 metres based on the

difference between static water levels and the depths to top of bedrock. The drawdowns
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shown in the table are conservative because they do not include the positive effects of
recharge to the aquifer and many assumptions are conservative. The evaluations of effects to

surrounding wells reasonably show there is little to no risk of affecting surrounding wells.

G: GROUNDWATER QUALITY

The well records in the vicinity of this site document water quality as fresh. One exception
was a well drilled into bedrock describing the water as mineralized. Water quality analysis
will need to be completed to verify the need for treatment according to Ontario Regulation

319/08 as administered by the local heath department.

H: SUMMARY

The evaluation documented in this report provides a reasonable degree of confidence that a
drilled well extending into the overburden or bedrock aquifers can provide enough water of
suitable quality to support this development. This conclusion will need to be confirmed with
drilling and testing a future well. There are potential advantages to completing a well to the
bedrock aquifer:
» Groundwater quality in the limestone bedrock aquifer is less likely to be impacted by
surrounding land uses because the aquifer is overlain with a thick, protective aquitard.
» The shallow overburden aquifer is at and below ground surface so groundwater quality can
be impacted with surrounding land use.
» Well yields in the limestone bedrock aquifer are higher than the overburden aquifer so this
makes it desirable from a supply perspective.
» The highly productive wells and estimates of groundwater recharge provide evidence to infer
that extracting 7,000 litres per day at this site should have little to no risk of adversely

impacting other wells in the area.
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This evaluation was completed using existing information. Though the study findings reveal
a reasonably good prospect of developing a well to service the site, a well should be drilled

and tested to evaluate well yield and groundwater quality.

We trust that this is satisfactory.

Yours truly,
GAMAN Consultants Inc.

Gy M7

Gary R. Hendy, P.Eng. Consulting Engineer

Attachments
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TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF WATER WELL RECORDS
Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation, Lots K & L Registered Plan 154, Town of Saugeen Shores (Project 23009.00)

Saugeen UTM DATE & CASING| WATER | Static | Pumping| Test ' WELL SCREEN
TWP CON (metres) Driller DIA FOUND | Level Level Rate | time USE top/ | WELLID FORMATION (feet)
LOT (In) (ft) (Ft.bgl) | (ft. bgl) | (Igpm) Length
17 471184 | 1972/07 BRWN CLAY SAND 0010 BRWN STNS
CON 10011 4921734 W 2519 30 FR 0021 21 bO 1402962 0011 BRWN SAND GRVL 0028
GRVL 0010 SAND 0030 CLAY STNS HPAN
17 470864 | 1980/04
CON 10011 5 FR 0485 45 500 30 1:00 IN 1405532 (0220 GRVL CMTD 0250 BLUE SHLE ROCK
4921674 W 5507
0300 LMSN 0500
MSND 0090 FSND 0115 GRVL 0150
17 471004 | 1947/07 MSND GRVL 0170 QSND 0212 MSND
CON 10012 4921274 W 1723 4 4 | FRO349 122 322 6 ST 1402096 0224 BLUE SHLE 0234 GREY ROCK 0324
BRWN LMSN 0349
CON 10012 17471204 | 1975/11 36 FR 0017 DO 1404073 BRWN SAND STNS 0023 CLAY 0023
4921603 W 3030
RED SAND 0004 RED CLAY SAND 0009
BRWN CLAY 0019 SAND GRVL 0031
BRWN HPAN SAND 0048 GREY HPAN
17 471514 | 1974/10 MN 0138
CON 10014 55 28 120 3 1:30 PS 1403650 (0074 BRWN HPAN STNS 0128 BLUE SHLE
4920540 W 1737 MN 0290
0131 BRWN LMSN 0186 GREY LMSN
SHLE 0262 BRWN LMSN 0268 GREY
LMSN 0320
CLAY SNDY 0020 CLAY STNS 0080 CLAY
17 472764 | 1981/10
CON 10016 5 FR 0475 30 485 20 DO 1405792 | SOFT 0120 CLAY STNS 0185 GRVL CMTD
4920674 W 5507
0206 LMSN 0485
BLCK LOAM LOOS 0001 BRWN CLAY
STNS SOFT 0015 GREY CLAY BLDR SILT
17 472919 | 2003/08 1410488
CON 10017 6 FR 0242 14 15 0.125] DO 0040 GREY CLAY STNS HARD 0150 GREY
4920183 L 6783 (242786)
CLAY SAND GRVL 0212 BRWN LMSN
SOFT 0245
FR 0012 BRWN LOAM 0001 BRWN CLAY 0008
17 473271 | 1998/10 FR 0025 1409319 | BRWN SAND 0012 GREY SILT 0030 GREY
CON 10018 36 15 DO
4919983 L 3030 FR 0040 (194491) | CLAY SILT STNS 0042 GREY SILT SAND
FR 0057 LYRD 0057 GREY SAND 0057
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TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF WATER WELL RECORDS
Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation, Lots K & L Registered Plan 154, Town of Saugeen Shores (Project 23009.00)

Saugeen UTM DATE & CASING | WATER | Static | Pumping| Test . WELL SCREEN
TWP CON (metres) Driller DIA FOUND | Level Level Rate | time USE top/ | WELLID FORMATION (feet)
LOT (In) (ft) (Ft.bgl) | (ft. bgl) | (Igpm) Length
FR 0010 BRWN LOAM 0001 BRWN CLAY 0008
17 473271 | 1999/04 1409400 | GREY SILT CLAY STNS 0010 GREY SAND
CON 10018 24 24 | FR0025 5 DO
4919983 L 3030 ER 0045 (202024) | CGVL 0018 GREY CLAY STNS HARD 0045
BRWN CSND 0047
FR 0012 BRWN LOAM 0001 BRWN GRVL 0002
CON 10018 17473267 | 2003/10 36 FR 0020 10 37 DO 1410563 BRWN SAND 0012 GREY SILT 0025 GREY
49199811 3030 FR 0038 (257644) SILT STNS 0038 GREY FSND 0042
MSND GRVL 0021 MSND SILT 0063 STNS
FR 0110 CLAY 0066 HPAN STNS 0090 MSND GRVL
17 473265 | 1969/08
CON 10018 4919664 W 550/6 5 FR 0232 65 73 8 Hi####| DO 1402342 {0108 MSND 0110 HPAN STNS 0130 CLAY
FR 0272 SILT 0150 HPAN 0230 FSND 0232 CLAY
STNS 0270 LMSN 0273
BRWN MSND GRVL CLAY 0028 BRWN
HPAN 0056 BRWN CLAY MSND 0104
BRWN CLAY MSND GRVL 0142 QSND
17 473665 | 1970/06
CON 10018 / 4 FR 0288 20 200 2 4:00 |STDO 1402533 | 0148 BLUE CLAY 0166 MSND GRVL CLAY
4920374 W 1705
0201 HPAN 0228 BLUE SHLE CLAY 0238
BRWN ROCK 0242 BLUE ROCK 0288
BRWN ROCK 0355
BRWN LOAM 0001 BRWN CLAY SNDY
FR 0015 0008 BRWN CLAY STNS 0015 GREY SILT
CON 10019 17473591 | 2003/07 36 FR 0049 15 DO 1410445 STNS HARD 0017 GREY SILT CLAY HARD
4919649 L 3030 FR 0050 (257620) 0042 GREY SAND 0049 GREY SAND GRVL
0050
17 470243 | 2022/03 7415467 | BRWN SAND GRVL HARD 0003 BRWN
CON 11 009 / 2 6 | UT 0004 4 MO | 00055
4922421 W 7190 A346275 SAND HARD 0010
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TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF WATER WELL RECORDS
Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation, Lots K & L Registered Plan 154, Town of Saugeen Shores (Project 23009.00)

Saugeen UTM DATE & CASING [ WATER | Static | Pumping| Test ' WELL SCREEN
TWP CON (metres) Driller DIA FOUND | Level Level Rate | time USE top/ | WELLID FORMATION (feet)
LOT (In) (ft) (Ft.bgl) | (ft. bgl) | (Igpm) Length
CON 11009 17 470273 | 2022/03 > 6 | uT 0004 4 mo | 0005 5 7415470 | BRWN SAND GRVL HARD 0003 BRWN
4922394 W 7190 A346280 SAND HARD 0010
CON 11009 17 470288 | 2022/03 > 6 | uT 0004 4 mo | 0005 5 7415469 | BRWN SAND GRVL HARD 0003 BRWN
4922406 W 7190 A346279 SAND HARD 0010
17 470240 | 2022/03 7415468 | BRWN SAND GRVL HARD 0003 BRWN
CON 11009 4922402 W 7190 2 6 | UT0004 4 MO | 00055 A346276 SAND HARD 0010
17 470314 | 1976/03 SAND CLAY 0020 HPAN STNS 0235 BLUE
CON 11 009 / 6 FR 0403 200 30 2:00 | DO 1404119
4922474 W 5507 SHLE 0340 BRWN LMSN 0409
BRWN SAND 0006 GRVL STNS 0008 GRVL
17 471112 | 1974/07 0011 BRWN SAND GRVL 0028 GRVL STNS
CON 11011 4921894 W 1737 > FR 0035 31 1403545 0032 CSND 0034 GRVL CSND STNS 0037
BRWN SAND SILT 0046 BLUE CLAY 0049
GRVL SAND 0021 SAND STNS SILT 0042
BRWN CLAY STNS 0127 GREY HPAN BLDR
17 471060 | 1974/07
CON 11011 5 5 | FR0246 69 220 3 0.09 | DO 1403546 | 0151 GREY HPAN STNS 0239 YLLW SHLE
4921953 W 1737
0242 BRWN LMSN 0294 BRWN LMSN
0349
BRWN SAND 0003 BRWN SAND GRVL
CON 11011 17471080 | 1975/11 36 FR 0030 DO 1404075 PGVL 0027 BRWN SAND GRVL 0030
4921750 W 3030
BRWN SAND GRVL 0043 CLAY 0043
BRWN SAND 0003 BRWN SAND GRVL
17 471158 | 1975/11
CON 11011 36 FR 0023 DO 1404074 | 0020 BRWN SAND GRVL 0023 BRWN
4921726 W 3030

SAND PGVL 0033
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
17 470938 | 1975/11 BRWN SAND 0003 BRWN SAND GRVL
CON 11011 4921869 W 3030 36 FR 0032 bO 1404076 STNS 0032 BRWN SAND GRVL 0040
CON 11011 17 470996 | 1975/11 36 ER 0025 bo 1404439 BRWN SAND 0003 BRWN SAND GRVL
4921865 W 3030 STNS 0025 BRWN SAND GRVL 0035
BRWN CLAY SNDY 0008 BRWN SAND
CON 11011 17471014 | 1976/03 36 FR 0032 DO 1404196 | 0015 BRWN GRVL 0038 BRWN SAND
4921924 W 3030 0040
BRWN MSND 0005 MSND GRVL 0025
17 471290 | 1965/06
CON 11012 30 FR 0010 10 13 10 0.042 |STDO 1402097 | BRWN CLAY MSND 0030 BRWN CLAY
4921744 W 2519
0031
BRWN SAND GRVL SOFT 0023 GREY CLAY
ER 0409 SAND SOFT 0091 GREY SAND STNS HARD
17 471248 | 1975/10 0178 GREY HPAN STNS HARD 0232 GREY
CON 11012 / 6 6 | UK0418 29 145 7 0.063 |STDO 1404007
4921664 W 1737 ER 0421 LMSN SHLE SOFT 0253 BRWN LMSN
HARD 0258 GREY LMSN SHLE SOFT 0389
BRWN LMSN HARD 0425
BLCK LOAM SOFT 0002 BRWN CLAY STNS
17 471920 | 2000/11 1409817
CON 11013 / 30 32 | FR0028 28 36 6 0.052| DO SOFT 0028 BRWN SAND SOFT 0040 GREY
4921405 W 7105 (215784)
CLAY HARD 0044
17 471915 | 2011/06 7167284
CON 11013 491393 W 3030 30 24 | UT 0055 DO A113857 GREY SILT SAND LYRD 0057
17 472000 | 1999/11 1409589 BLCK LOAM STNS 0002 BRWN GRVL
CON 12011 30 32 | FR0030 30 33 DO
4923492 W 7105 (211545) LOOS 0038
BRWN LOAM 0001 BRWN SAND 0007
17 472389 | 2010/05 7146105
CON 12012 / 36 FR 0006 DO BRWN CLAY 0016 GREY SAND STNS FSND
4923358 W 3030 A093555

0026

2023-11-279:19 AMC:\Users\GARY\Documents\Projects\2023\23009 Carson WS\00\Tech\Well Records\Table 1 Water Wells Carson.xIsxTable 1 Water Wells Carson.xIsx






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
17 471604 | 1999/06 FR 0350 1409472 | SAND 0008 CLAY SOFT 0124 HPAN STNS
CON 13009 6 52 495 100 |0.042( DO
4924485 L 5507 FR 0487 (202522) 0228 LMSN 0495
BLCK LOAM SOFT 0002 BRWN GRVL
17 472196 | 2001/10 1410021 [ STNS LOOS 0008 RED CLAY STNS SOFT
CON 13011 3 6 | FR0O018 18 23 15 1 DO |0028 10
4923845 W 7105 (215795) {0012 BRWN GRVL STNS LOOS 0038 GREY
CLAY HARD 0040
BRWN LOAM SOFT 0002 BRWN GRVL
CON 13 011 17 472204 | 2001/01 o 3 | FRo01S 15 ’3 15 1 po | 0027 10 1410020 [ STNS LOOS 0008 RED CLAY STNS SOFT
4923851 W | 7105 (215794) {0012 BRWN GRVL STNS LOOS 0037 GREY
CLAY HARD 0039
GRVL 0001 QSND 0010 SILT MSND GRVL
CON 13 011 17 472215 | 1966/03 4 4 FR 0315 30 90 13 0417 ps 1402098 0047 HPAN 0055 GRVL HPAN 0064 HPAN
4923644 W 1705 ' 0066 GRVL MSND SILT 0109 HPAN CLAY
0264 BRWN ROCK 0315
17 472165 | 1983/06
CON 13011 / 5 FR 0270 49 307 50 0.083| DO 1406081 [SAND 0016 HPAN BLDR 0240 LMSN 0307
4923774 W 5507
LOAM 0001 BRWN SAND GRVL SOFT
0013 CGVL 0021 BLUE CLAY STNS 0026
17 472215 | 1979/12 FGVL FSND 0033 BLUE CLAY STNS HARD
CON 13011 / 5 FR 0033 21 22 5 0.063| PS | 00303 | 1405291
4923574 W 1737 0069 BLUE CLAY HARD 0158 GREY CLAY
STNS SNDY 0174 GREY HPAN STNS HARD
0185
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
CON 13 012 17 472668 | 1993/10 6 FR 0240 61 200 0.042 IR 1408521 SAND 0017 HPAN STNS 0234 BRWN
4923888 L 5507 FR 0485 ' (131253) LMSN 0420 BRWN LMSN 0485
17 472515 | 1983/10 FR 0280 CLAY SNDY 0016 CLAY BLDR 0242 LMSN
CON 13012 / 5 40 345 20 0.083| DO 1406077
4923524 W | 5507 FR 0327 LYRD 0345
17 473029 | 1998/09 1409372 | SAND 0018 CLAY STNS 0190 HPAN STNS
CON 13013 5 FR 0348 109 355 10 0.042| DO
4923687 L 5507 (198561) 0277 LMSN 0355
17 469247 | 2020/11 7375733
LR 055 2923981 w! 7366 1.5 MO | 00105 A295012 BRWN SAND 0015
17 469336 | 2020/11 7375734
LR 055 2923919 w!| 7366 1.5 MO | 00105 A295009 BRWN 0015
17 469352 | 2020/11 7375735
LR 055 2923856 w! 7366 1.5 MO | 00105 A295010 BRWN SAND 0015
MSND 0016 MSND GRVL 0035 HPAN
17 468974 | 1954/05
LR 055 4 FR 0141 2 6 10 0.167| PS 1402111 | STNS 0054 CLAY 0063 HPAN STNS 0136
4924189 W 1705
MSND GRVL 0140 GRVL 0141
17 469432 | 1990/01 1407481 BLCK LOAM 0001 BRWN SAND GRVL
LR 055 / 8 FR 0008 8 16 23 0.083| PS | 00163
4923515 W 1129 (54116) 0019 GREY CLAY SILT STNS 0020
LR 056 17469256 | 2020/11 15 MO | 00055 7375732 BRWN SAND 0010
4924134 W | 7366 A295008
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
GRVL STNS 0005 BLUE CLAY 0015 HPAN
LR 056 17 468874 | 1961/07 4 FR 0142 80 5 0167 bo 1402112 GRVL 0032 BRWN CLAY STNS 0090
4924449 W 1804 ' MSND GRVL 0102 QSND 0129 FSND
0136 MSND GRVL 0140 GRVL 0142
17 469959 | 1999/06 FR 0320 1409470 | SAND 0012 CLAY SOFT 0105 HPAN STNS
LR 057 6 49 495 100 |0.042| DO
4923980 L 5507 FR 0490 (202548) 0182 SHLE STNS 0234 LMSN 0495
17 469184 | 1972/05
LR 057 / 5 FR 0111 8 50 10 0.333| DO 1403067 |SAND 0020 BRWN CLAY 0108 GRVL 0113
4924434 W 5507
LOAM 0001 BRWN SAND GRVL 0006
BRWN CLAY 0023 BRWN GRVL CLAY
0034 BRWN CLAY STKY 0051 GREY SAND
17 470190 | 1994/01 FR 0130 1408534
LR 060 6 6 2 20 0.042| DO GRVL CLAY 0087 BRWN CLAY 0106
4924563 L 2576 FR 0155 (131100)

BRWN GRVL CLAY 0122 BLUE LMSN 0140
BLUE LMSN SHLE 0148 RED SHLE 0150
BLUE SHLE 0158
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TABLE 2

CLIMATIC WATER BUDGET: CLIMATE NORMAL 1981-2010 (Hanover)
Potential Evapotranspiration
Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation, Lots K & L Registered Plan 154, Town of Saugeen Shores (Project 23009.00)

Thornthwaite (1948)

Potential . Adjustgd

Mean Evapo- Dayhght Potential 'Il'oj[al . N
Month Temperature Heat Index transpiration Correction Evapo-_ Precipitation | Surplus (mm)| Deficit (mm)
(°C) Value transpiration (mm)
(mm) (mm)
January -6.8 0.0 0.0 0.81 0.0 109.6 109.6 0.0
February -5.9 0.0 0.0 0.81 0.0 81.3 81.3 0.0
March -1.7 0.0 0.0 1.02 0.0 72.0 72.0 0.0
April 5.8 13 27.9 1.12 31.3 73.1 41.8 0.0
May 11.9 3.7 58.8 1.27 74.7 84.6 9.9 0.0
June 17.2 6.5 86.2 1.29 111.2 78.3 0.0 32.9
July 19.6 7.9 98.7 1.30 128.4 83.1 0.0 45.3
August 18.6 7.3 93.5 1.20 112.2 95.0 0.0 17.2
September 14.6 5.1 72.7 1.04 75.7 109.1 33.4 0.0
October 8.4 2.2 41.0 0.95 39.0 89.7 50.7 0.0
November 2.6 0.4 12.2 0.80 9.7 103.0 93.3 0.0
December -3.3 0.0 0.0 0.74 0.0 108.4 108.4 0.0
TOTALS 6.8 34.3 582.2 1087.2 600.5 95.4
TOTAL WATER SURPLUS 505.0 mm
NOTES:

1) Water budget adjusted for latitude and daylight.
2) (°C) - Represents calculated mean of daily temperatures for the month.
3) Precipitation and Temperature data from the Hanover Climatic Station latitude 44°06'59.058" N, longitude 80°00'21.042" W, elevation 270 masl

4) Total Water Surplus (Thornthwaite, 1948) is calculated as total precipitation minus adjusted potential evapotranspiration.
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TABLE 3: ESTIMATED ZONE OF INFLUENCE

Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation, Lots K & L Registered Plan 154,
Town of Saugeen Shores (Project 23009.00)

Flow Rate Transmissivity Storativity  Time Distance Drawdown
m3/day m2/day days metres metres
7.0 30 0.0001 365 10 0.27

25 0.24
50 0.21
75 0.20
100 0.19
250 0.15
500 0.13

Flow Rate  Transmissivity Storativity = Time Distance Drawdown
m3/day m2/day days metres metres
7.0 10 0.00001 365 10 0.89

25 0.78
50 0.71
75 0.66
100 0.63
250 0.53
500 0.45
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ENVIRONMENT

PVC: The Most Tested, Certified, and Accredited Pipe Material

The Health, Safety,
and Environmental
Performance of

PVC Pipe





2 THE HEALTH, SAFETY, AND ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE OF PVC PIPE

Health and Safety

PVC pipe is widely used around the world for water and sewer systems. One reason for the material's success

is its health and safety history from raw material extraction through end-of-life disposal. For more than 70

years, PVC pipe's raw materials, production, and usage have been evaluated and approved by governmental

and accredited third-party testing and certification agencies. These evaluations have shown that PVC pipe is a
safer and healthier alternative than pipes made from other materials. The U.S. Food and Drug Administration,
Consumer Product Safety Commission, and similar organizations have confirmed that PVC is safe. PVC pipe meets
or exceeds all required health and safety standards and regulations governed by the U.S. Safe Drinking Water Act,
Guidelines for Canadian Drinking Water Quality, and other international statutes.

Maximizing Safety

PVC pipe has an industry-leading safety profile throughout its life cycle — from raw materials to installation and use.
All ingredients in PVC pipe are publicly listed and approved for use in drinking water systems. PVC pipe is lighter
than other pipe materials (which reduces CO, emissions), easier to handle, and safer for workers to install. In use,
PVC pipe is leak free, not vulnerable to corrosion, and has the lowest break rate, helping ensure a reliable and
efficient piping system over its service life of more than 100 years.

Health and Safety Attributes of PVC Pipe

Some of the most important health and safety characteristics of PVC are provided below.

The ingredients used in the manufacture of PVC pipe are publicly listed and have been verified as safe for use
in drinking water delivery systems. This level of transparency for ingredients is not available with any other pipe
material. All listed ingredients are individually tested and certified for use by third-party certification agencies to
NSF/ANSI/CAN 61 and NSF/ANSI 14.

No toxic metals are present in PVC pipe. Unlike some other pipe materials, PVC does not contain or release lead,
arsenic, barium, mercury, chromium, cadmium, copper, or other metals. Cement-mortar lined ductile iron pipes can
leach barium, cadmium, chromium, and aluminum. The tin compounds used in the manufacturing process of PVC
pipe are certified as being safe for use as stabilizers for drinking water pipe. The safety of PVC pipe is evaluated and
confirmed on an ongoing basis by NSF and other organizations.

No vinyl chloride is released from PVC pipe. Modern PVC resin manufacturing removes vinyl chloride monomer
(VCM) to non-detect levels. Testing by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) found no VCM leaching from
gasketed PVC water pipes manufactured in North America. This is verified regularly by rigorous third-party testing
to the NSF/ANSI/CAN 61 standard.

No benzene or other contaminants are released from PVC water pipes during wildfires. Wildfires do not impact
PVC water and sewer infrastructure since pipes are buried underground, insulated from heat generated above
ground. The primary source of benzene in forest fires is combustion of trees. Secondary sources are burning of
homes and other structures.
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No microplastics are associated with PVC pipe. Studies have shown that PVC pipe's smooth inner walls do not

pit or deteriorate over time, preventing the release of microplastics, and enabling PVC pipe’s superior hydraulic
performance to be maintained throughout its 100+ year service life. The primary sources of microplastics are tires,
clothing, and personal care products.

No phthalates or bisphenol-A are present in PVC pipe. These substances are not used in the manufacture of PVC
pipe for drinking water or wastewater systems.

Dioxin emissions for PVC pipe are the lowest of any pipe material. Although PVC pipe manufacturing emits
zero dioxins, PVC resin production does produce small amounts. Since 1987, dioxins from industrial sources
have decreased by 90% while PVC resin manufacturing has increased more than 300%. John D. Wagner, a
green building expert, states in Seven Myths About PVC — Debunked that: “If PVC were the source of dioxin in
the environment, dioxin levels would have risen over time, not declined.” Dioxins are much more of a concern
for iron and concrete piping. EPA data has shown that dioxin emissions released from an iron pipe foundry
were almost six times higher than a PVC resin facility. Ductile iron facilities can also release metals including
lead, mercury, chromium, manganese, and zinc, organic chemicals like benzene, xylene, phenol, methanol, and
triethylamine as well as ammonia.

Organotin (tin) stabilizers are not a health concern for PVC pipe. There are many different types of organotin.

One organotin, dibutyltin dichloride (DBTDC), may be an endocrine-disrupting chemical and cause adverse health
effects. However, this substance is not present in PVC pipe’s raw materials, nor is it formed at any point during pipe
manufacture, installation, or use. PVC pipe does not contain DBTDC. Tin stabilizers used in PVC pipe have been
tested and deemed safe for use in potable water applications and are not a health risk.

“PVC pipe and fittings are resistant to chemicals .

Uni-Bell PVC Pipe Assaciation
ENVIRONMENTAL

PRODUCT DECLARATION
PVC ar i
Potable

generally found in water and sewer systems,

No known chemicals
No known

toxicity effects

— Environmental Product Declaration, ISO 14025/NSF (March 2023)
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No known per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) are associated with
PVC pipe production. No findings have shown a link between PFAS and
gasketed PVC pipe.

PVC pipe’s corrosion resistance helps ensure the safety of drinking
water. Corrosion within metallic pipes can affect drinking water
quality. Corrosion and corrosion by-products (tuberculated iron
pipe in photo) can deplete disinfection chemicals such as chlorine,
potentially making water supply unsafe. Corrosion can also
promote the growth of bacteria inside the pipe, creating biofilms.
Biofilm contamination has been linked to numerous E. coli and
Legionnaires’ disease outbreaks in North America. PVC pipe is inert,
corrosion resistant, and does not support the growth of biofilms.

Independent testing confirms that PVC pipe meets or exceeds all
North American water quality standards and regulations. The NSF/
ANSI/CAN 61 and NSF/ANSI/CAN 600 standards ensure that drinking water

pipes are safe on an ongoing basis based on three components: regular testing,

toxicology evaluation of the results, and unannounced audits. Other independent agencies and governmental
bodies, namely Underwriters Laboratory (UL), the Canadian Standards Association (CSA), and the EPA, also test PVC
pipe to verify that the water transported through it is safe.

Occupational health and safety is a category in which PVC pipe is a leader. This is due to the light weight and
long service life of the pipe, as well as low break and leak rates. PVC pipe is easier to install and maintain than
the alternatives. According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor, the plastic piping industry has an outstanding record with
respect to worker safety, experiencing far fewer injuries and illnesses in every phase of production, on average,
than old-technology industries such as iron pipe manufacturing.

PVC Pipe is the Safest Choice

More than 50,000 North American water utilities use PVC pipe today and more than 2.5 million miles of PVC water
and sewer piping are in service. More than 10 million water-quality tests conducted on water carried through PVC
pipe confirm that the pipe is safe. Seven decades of experience in the U.S. and Canada have shown conclusively that
PVC pipe is the safest choice for long-term, reliable delivery of clean drinking water. PVC pipe's safety is verified on a
regular basis through testing, thorough evaluation, and verification by independent third parties and governmental
organizations.

0 = g

MORE THAN MORE THAN MORE THAN
50,000 North American water 2.5 million miles of pipe 10 million water-quality
utilities use PVC pipe today are in service tests conducted
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Environmental Performance

Municipal infrastructure, including water pipes that deliver drinking water and sewer pipes that carry away waste,
have impacts on the environment throughout their entire life cycle — from raw-material extraction through end-
of-life disposal.

PVC Pipe has the Lowest Environmental Impacts

Environmental impacts are both unavoidable and undesirable, so it is critical that the most sustainable alternative
be selected. The best choice combines a long service life and the lowest life cycle impacts. When viewed through

a sustainability lens, PVC pipe is the number one choice for delivery of drinking water and removal of sewage.
Compared to alternatives including iron, steel, concrete, clay, polyethylene, and fiberglass, PVC has by far the lowest
life cycle impacts, including the smallest carbon footprint. Some of the environmental performance attributes are
discussed below.

Sustainability Measures FIGURE 1: MONETIZED CARBON OUTPUT
COMPARISON OF 100 FEET OF 8 PIPE

The most important sustainability characteristics of PVC

are revealed through detailed Life Cycle Analysis (LCA) and Carbon Cost ($/100)

scientific studies. $250

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions are lower for PVC $200

pipe through its entire life cycle than for alternatives.

Selecting PVC is consistent with the GHG-reduction goals that $150

many North American jurisdictions are working towards. 6100

McKinsey reports that PVC sewer pipes have 35% lower

GHG emissions than ductile iron pipes and 45% lower $50

GHGs than reinforced concrete. For water pipes, it takes

four times the energy to manufacture concrete pipe and $0 m 25

twice the energy to make iron pipe compared to PVC pipe. PVCDR18  PVCDR25 Ductile Iron CL 51
Taking the cradle-through-installation carbon output for Source: Life Cycle Assessment of PVC Water and Sewer Pipe and
PVC and equivalent 8-inch ductile iron pipes, ductile iron Comparative Sustainability Analysis of Pipe Materials

would be ranked 6 to 9 times higher as shown in Figure 1.

PVC pipe has the lowest total embodied energy (TEE). TEE refers to the total amount of energy consumed during
the life cycle of a product, including during raw material extraction and transport; pipe manufacture; pipe transport
and installation; pipe operation and maintenance; and pipe disposal at end-of-life. There are several reasons why
PVC pipe has lower TEE than alternative piping materials. First, it takes much less energy to manufacture PVC pipe
than any alternative. Second, PVC pipe has a very long service life of more than 100 years. Third, the energy needed
to pump water through PVC pipes is lower than any alternative.

PVC pipes align with the key principles of the circular economy. The aim of a circular economy is to ensure products
are used efficiently and in use for as long as possible, minimizing waste and pollution. PVC piping systems achieve this
with their low environmental impact — from design, manufacturing, operation, and recycling — and long life.
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Corrosion resistance is another sustainability feature of PVC pipe. Unlike metallic pipes, PVC pipe does not
corrode. This means there are no costs associated with corrosion management for PVC pipe. In contrast, metallic
pipes are susceptible to both internal and external corrosion, increasing the costs for operation, repair, and
maintenance. Corrosion on the outside of metallic pipe reduces its lifespan. An AWWA Water Research Foundation
study showed that ductile iron pipes in moderately corrosive soils may have a life expectancy as shortas 11 to

14 years. Corrosion inside metallic pipes makes the inside wall rough, increasing pumping costs and reducing its
lifespan. To mitigate corrosion of metallic pipes, phosphates and/or other chemicals must be added to drinking
water. These substances are then released into the environment, potentially creating harmful algae blooms.

PVC pipe is a recyclable and highly sustainable material. PVC pipe manufacturing in North America produces
virtually no waste because internal regrind/scrap is put back into the manufacturing process. Also, more than
99% of the PVC pipe for infrastructure projects is utilized, so virtually no scrap is sent to landfills or burned in
incinerators. Any PVC pipe that is landfilled remains stable and does not contribute to landfill leachate or gas
emissions. PVC pipe can also be recycled back into new pipe up to eight times or used to make other products.
According to the white paper, Seven Myths About PVC — Debunked, PVC is one of the most sustainable materials
available: “With the versatility of PVC and its high recyclability, the manufacture of PVC may be one of the few
manufacturing processes that can achieve zero waste.”

Leakage and break rates for PVC pipe are the lowest of all commonly used water pipes. Combined with a very long
service life, this translates into reduced environmental impacts related to maintenance and replacement.

Economic and sustainability benefits flow from reduced costs compared to alternatives. These benefits are related
to the lower amortized capital cost of the infrastructure, the reduced cost of pumping water through PVC pipe, and
lower maintenance and eventual replacement costs. Fewer leaks and breaks for PVC pipe also reduce loss of water
from the system, contributing to further cost and environmental advantages.

PVC pipe has undergone the most rigorous and transparent environmental evaluation of all pipe materials.

PVC pipe has been reviewed through a comprehensive, third-party LCA under the stringent guidelines of the
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) 14025 and 14040 standards, which are the most recognized
environmental industry standards in the world. No other pipe materials in North America have published an LCA or
environmental product declaration (EPD) conducted according to ISO standards.

PVC pipe manufacturing is climate-friendly because it is powered by the electrical grid. As a result, producers can
take advantage of renewable wind, solar and other green energy sources — enabling the industry to continually
reduce its carbon footprint as more clean energy becomes available. Contrast this with metallic and cement piping
which rely on coal and petroleum coke in their manufacturing, producing dangerous quantities of CO,.

PVC Pipe: Infrastructure for a Greener World

PVC is the most cost-effective and best performing pipe material with the lowest environmental impacts compared
to alternatives. Together, these attributes make PVC water and sewer pipe the most sustainable choice for
underground infrastructure.
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https://www.uni-bell.org/portals/0/ResourceFile/Life_Cycle_Assessment_of_PVC_Water_and_Sewer_Pipe_and_Comparative_Sustainability_Analysis_of_Pipe_Materials.pdf

https://www.waterrf.org/research/projects/long-term-performance-ductile-iron-pipes

https://www.uni-bell.org/portals/0/ResourceFile/municipal-procurement-competitive-bidding-for-pipes-demonstrates-significant-local-cost-savings.pdf

https://www.uni-bell.org/Portals/0/ResourceFile/organotin-tin-stabilizers-not-a-health-concern-for-pvc-pipe.pdf

https://conduitcalc.plasticpipe.org/pdf/tr-2-2021.pdf

https://www.uni-bell.org/Portals/0/ResourceFile/pvc-pipe-longevity-report.pdf

https://www.uni-bell.org/Portals/0/ResourceFile/highqualitystnds.pdf

https://www.uni-bell.org/Portals/0/ResourceFile/pvc-pipe-safe-and-beneficial-to-public-health.pdf

https://pvc4pipes.com/pvc-pipes-have-no-impact-on-microplastics-content-of-drinking-water-dutch-study-finds/

https://www.uni-bell.org/Portals/0/ResourceFile/pvc-water-mains-not-a-source-of-benzene-from-wildfire-events.pdf

https://e360.yale.edu/features/tire-pollution-toxic-chemicals

https://www.versico.com/document-viewer/7-myths-about-pvc---debunked/81hLQOf8xECDlUtNC0Dscg

https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s10694-022-01232-3

https://phantomplastics.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Phantom-Plastics-Rebuttal-of-Beyond-Plastics-Attack-on-PVC-Pipe-April-2023-Final.pdf

https://www.nsf.org/knowledge-library/truth-about-nsf-ansi-can-61-pvc-pipes

https://digitalcommons.usu.edu/mae_facpub/174/

https://www.bakerinstitute.org/research/why-classifying-pvc-hazardous-waste-undermines-americas-zero-waste-and-energy-transition

https://westernliner.com/blog/why-pvc-is-used-for-landfill-liner/



American
Water Works
Association

BN

National and International Statutes &
Organizations for Standards,
Testing, and Certification

American National Standards Institute
American Water Works Association

ASTM International

Bureau de normalisation du Québec

Guidelines for Canadian Drinking Water Quality
Consumer Product Safety Commission

FM Approvals

Health Canada

International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials
International Organization for Standardization
National Sanitation Foundation

U.S. Bureau of Labor

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

U.S. Food and Drug Administration

U.S. Safe Drinking Water Act

Underwriters Laboratory

Utah State University Water Research Laboratory

The above list includes some of the organizations that have published PVC pipe
standards, tested PVC or PVC pipe, or certified PVC pipe products in North America.

@ Pvc PI P E Uni-Bell PVC Pipe Association

sereeEien 201 E. John Carpenter Freeway, Suite 750
Irving, TX 75062






PVC PIPE: SAFE AND BENEFICIAL TO PUBLIC HEALTH

PVC pipe is one of the safest and most tested materials used in North America. For over 60 years, every aspect of
its production, use and disposal has been evaluated and approved by government and independent certification and
testing agencies.

It meets or exceeds all required health and safety standards and regulations governed by the U.S. and Canadian
Safe Drinking Water Acts and other international statutes. Its use is monitored by independent agencies like NSF
International — and government bodies like the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) ensure its safety
through mandatory regular testing.

Additionally, organizations like the U.S. Food and Drug Administration and Consumer Product Safety Commission
have confirmed that PVC is a safe product.

CLEAN AND SAFE

PVC is approved for use around the world in water distribution and transmission, consumer products and medical
applications. It is so safe that it is used for intravenous medical tubing, and it is the pipe of choice for ecologically
sensitive environments like salt water aquariums, which must use the most inert and safest pipe materials available.

Its smooth, non-corrosive surface stays clean even after decades of use, unlike that of iron pipe which suffers from
tuberculation, a form of internal corrosion and bio-film contamination which can be a breeding ground for bacteria.

The town of Walkerton, Ontario provides a case in point. In 2000, E-coli had infiltrated the municipality’s iron-
pipe water network, and purging it from the system was extremely difficult. Only after repeated and costly flushing
with super-chlorination was the piping system safe to use again. Today, Walkerton, now part of the Municipality of
Brockton, is replacing all its iron pipes with PVC.

THE REAL SCIENCE ON PVC

Despite its proven safety record and meticulous monitoring, ill-informed and unscientific allegations about PVC persist.

Claims that it’s toxic have been refuted by the scientific community and people like Greenpeace co-founder Dr.
Patrick Moore. The evidence shows it neither leaches chemicals like lead, cadmium, BPA or plasticizers, nor does it
release harmful organotins, nor pose major hazards in its manufacture, use and disposal, nor create a dangerous bio-
film nor form dioxins as water passes through, etc.

Moreover, it’s impossible for PVC pipe to leach plasticizers, BPA, lead or cadmium, since these aren’t even used in its
manufacture nor are they part of its compound. Says Dr. Moore in his book, Confessions of a Greenpeace Dropout,
such claims come from “a kind of religion based on belief rather than facts or evidence.”

Finally, not only is dioxin not produced as it passes through PVC pipe, but claims that PVC manufacturing is a
major dioxin polluter are also false. Forest fires, backyard burning and other manufacturing processes are the major
contributors of dioxin.

MORE THAN ONE MILLION MILES OF SAFE WATER TRANSMISSION

Over 40,000 North American water utilities use PVC pipe today, and more than one million miles are in service - or
about 78 per cent of all new drinking water distribution pipes installed on the continent. Some 10 million quality
control tests have been conducted on water carried through PVC pipe since it was introduced in North America and
around the world. All of them confirm the product is safe and beneficial to public health.

PVC PI P E Uni-Bell PVC Pipe Association | 201 E. John Carpenter Freeway, Suite 750 | Irving, TX 75062
Phone: (972) 243-3902 | Fax: (972) 243-3907 | info@uni-bell.org
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FW: Meeting re. Carsons Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting

		From

		Dana Kieffer

		To

		Coreena Smith

		Recipients

		CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca



** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.



Hi Coreena,



 



Sorry I forgot to include Matt’s email below in my response yesterday.



 



Any questions, please let me know.



 



Thanks,



dk



 



Dana Kieffer, M.Sc.(Planning), MCIP, RPP



Cobide Engineering Inc.
517 10th Street 



Hanover, ON N4N 1R4



T +1 519-506-5959 ext. 106



E dkieffer@cobideeng.com 



 



www.cobideeng.com



 



From: Matt Brouwer <mbrouwer@ptsl.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 18, 2024 9:06 PM
To: Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>
Cc: Patrick Neal <pneal@ptsl.com>; Jim Mallett <jmallett@ptsl.com>
Subject: RE: Meeting re. Carsons Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting



 



Hi Dana,



 



Yes, that is the methodology we used to determine trip generation. The information we had to do our forecasting was the site plan and the Gross Floor Area (GFA) of the old and new buildings. To our knowledge, this was essentially a relocation of the current site with slightly larger buildings, and basing trip generation on real world data is usually taken as the best forecasting method.



 



If we were to have done our forecasting with no sample data, we would be using the ITE Trip Generation Manual for some land use which would fit Carson’s operation. If there wasn’t a perfect fit, we might have ended up with something like General Light Industrial, which is a generic use, but is based on GFA (as a side note, the rate we observed at the current site was very close to the rate for General Light Industrial from ITE, so we’d end up with similar results). You can use number of employees as the variable for trip forecasting for General Light Industrial, but GFA was a known quantity, and employees weren’t.



 



If the suggestion is that 50 additional employees is greater than the expected growth than what was calculated using the GFA method (which it might be, but I don’t know the current number of employees), we can do a quick sensitivity test to see what might change in our conclusions of our report. The important things we look at are if signals are warranted (if an intersection is operating poorly) and turn lanes (such as the southbound left-turn lane on Highway 21 at Bruce Road 3). Even if the trip generation forecasts we used were to increase, here are the likely impacts to the conclusions of our report:



*	The worst performing movement at the 2034 horizon was the left-turns from Carlisle Street only Highway 21. This is mostly due to the volumes on Highway 21 itself, as the volume to capacity ratio is 0.44 (see Table 4.6 – this means that the movement is only being utilized at 44% of capacity). I don’t believe that 50 additional employees would more than double this volume. So, there is spare capacity for this movement.

*	A signal wouldn’t be warranted at Hwy 21 & Carlisle, as there needs to be sustained volume on all legs for the 8 highest hours of the day. The volume on Carlisle is just too low to reach those thresholds.

*	The southbound left-turn lane on Highway 21 at Bruce Road 3 was forecast to warrant 40 metres of storage length. Today, there is 90 metres of storage length for this lane, so it’s being met and then some.



 



In the end, there is enough capacity to provide flexibility if the forecasts were to be higher than anticipated to provide adequate operations.



 



I hope this helps.



 



Matt Brouwer, P.Eng.



Senior Project Manager, Associate



(He/Him)



 



Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited



p: 519.896.3163 x201



m: 519.498.2663



 







 



From: Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 18, 2024 3:52 PM
To: Matt Brouwer <mbrouwer@ptsl.com>
Subject: Fw: Meeting re. Carsons Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting



 



Hi Matt,



 



Hope you had a great vacation last week!



 



Could you please comment on the below?  I have to re-submit by March 20 in order to meet the deadline to make the April meeting.



 



Thanks in advance,



dk



 



Dana Kieffer, M.Sc.(Planning), MCIP, RPP



Cobide Engineering Inc.
517 10th Street



Hanover, ON N4N 1R4



T +1 519-506-5959 ext. 106



E dkieffer@cobideeng.com 



 



www.cobideeng.com



 



 



  _____  


From: Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 10:21 AM
To: Matt Brouwer <mbrouwer@ptsl.com>
Subject: Fw: Meeting re. Carsons Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting 



 



Hi Matt,



 



Back again on your file 220658, the County planner (below) has requested that "Could you please have the traffic consultant comment on the trip generation.  My recollection is that trip generation was based off of counts from the existing business in Port Elgin and proportionately increased based on the proposed GFA.  The new facilities are expected to generate approximately 50 new employees at full buildout. Please have the consultant comment on whether or not that changes their analysis."



 



Thanks,



dk



 



Dana Kieffer, M.Sc.(Planning), MCIP, RPP



Cobide Engineering Inc.
517 10th Street



Hanover, ON N4N 1R4



T +1 519-506-5959 ext. 106



E dkieffer@cobideeng.com



 



www.cobideeng.com



 



 



  _____  


From: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 9:16 AM
To: Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>
Cc: Jason Carson <jcarson@carsonsupply.com>; Travis Burnside <tburnside@cobideeng.com>; Candace Hamm <candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca>
Subject: RE: Meeting re. Carsons Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting 



 



Dana,



In addition to the two public comments sent last week, I am attaching one additional public comment and the latest comments from MTO. Also,



1.	Could you please have the traffic consultant comment on the trip generation.  My recollection is that trip generation was based off of counts from the existing business in Port Elgin and proportionately increased based on the proposed GFA.  The new facilities are expected to generate approximately 50 new employees at full buildout. Please have the consultant comment on whether or not that changes their analysis.



Sincerely,



 



From: Coreena Smith
Sent: Friday, March 8, 2024 9:49 AM
To: Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>
Cc: Jason Carson <jcarson@carsonsupply.com>; Travis Burnside <tburnside@cobideeng.com>; Candace Hamm <candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca>
Subject: Meeting re. Carsons Supply Expansion - Follow-up from Public Meeting



 



Dana,



Further to our meeting earlier this week, I offer the following summary of requested information to further advance the Carson file:



 



1.	Please prepare a draft schedule in CAD and PDF of the area of the site that is proposed to be redesignated and rezoned.  The entire property should be shown.  Please provide the total area (hectares) and the dimensions (metres) on the schedule.  County staff will use the CAD version to prepare the final schedules for the amendments and the PDF version in the planning reports. 

2.	Please update the site plan to include the following:



a.	The proposed zone/designation boundary.

b.	The building and parking setbacks to the eastern zone boundary to ensure compliance with the Zoning By-law as s.4.8 treats each zone as if it was a separate lot.

c.	The driveway setback to the eastern zone boundary to ensure compliance with the Zoning By-law as s.4.8 treats each zone as if it was a separate lot.

d.	A minimum 70m setback between the open storage area and the southern property line abutting the landscaping business to the south.  This would provide the required 70m separation distance to the adjacent sensitive uses, which includes two detached dwellings on the lands to the south.

e.	The revised open storage area in square metres.  The open storage area on the current version of the site plan is +/-40,978 sq m while the open storage in the report is +/-60,700 sq m.  Recognizing that you will be making changes to the open storage area to address some of the comments above, please provide the updated area on the site plan.  County staff will use this information for drafting the site-specific open storage zone provision.

f.	A landscaped berm or other screening (e.g., tree planting) along the eastern zone boundary to mitigate visual impact to users of Bruce Road 3 and nearby golf courses.  This screening should be within the new proposed zone.



3.	Please confirm the area (hectares) and frontage (metres) of the proposed AC2 zone and the remaining A zone on the property to ensure compliance with the Zoning By-law as s.4.8 treats each zone as if it was a separate lot. 

4.	Please advise if zoning of the northern woodlot to an EP special zone would be considered.  If yes, please update the draft zoning schedule and site plan to reflect this.



a.	Please also advise if the potential dedication to the Escarpment Biosphere Conservancy or another agency of the woodlot and/or another area on the site for naturalization purposes would be considered.



5.	Please confirm that there will be no retail sales on the site and that all retail sales will remain at 1071 Goderich Street in Port Elgin.  This confirmation will determine what amendments are needed to the current definition of a batching plant for use in the draft zoning by-law.  The current definition reads as follows, which would be amended to remove reference to asphalt:



a.	“BATCHING PLANT” means an industrial establishment used for the production of asphalt, concrete, or asphalt or concrete products used in building or construction and includes facilities for the administration and management of the business, the stockpiling of bulk materials used in the production process or a finished product manufactured on the premises and the storage and maintenance of required equipment, but does not include the retail sales of finished asphalt or concrete.



6.	Please confirm how outdoor storage will be delineated on the site.  Based on our conversation, I understand it will be a gravel surface.  Please confirm.

7.	The Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation states that it was prepared for domestic water supply with up to 7,000 L/day to be drawn based on 50 anticipated employees.  I understand the well is actually intended to supply up to 7,000 L/day for manufacturing purposes, not for domestic use.  Please amend the Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation or have an addendum provided to correct the report and confirm that no more than 7,000 L/day is required for manufacturing.

8.	Please confirm that the 50 anticipated employees will be new employees and not transfers from the existing Port Elgin site.  I understand there are 36 employees currently at the Port Elgin location.

9.	Please provide any background or industry resources as it relates to the concrete and PVC injection and extrusion processes which would assist in addressing the pollution and health risk comments received from the public.

10.	Please provide details on proposed spills response and fire suppression requirements for the proposed concrete manufacturing and PVC manufacturing facilities.



 



If I have missed anything from our discussion or if there are any clarifications needed, please let me know.



 



A response to the comments above through a response letter would be appreciated.



 



Please provide the requested information by March 20, 2024.



 



Further follow-up



*	The neighbouring landowner, Tracey Harron, has a list of questions about the development.  Tracey has provided me with her contact information so that Cobide can contact her directly.  I am going to suggest a meeting so that I can also attend the meeting with Cobide.  I will send out a separate invite for a virtual meeting.



 



FYI



*	I have sent an email to MTO asking for a status update. 

*	I have attached the additional public comments received after public meeting.



Sincerely,



Coreena Smith 
Senior Planner
Planning and Development
Corporation of the County of Bruce



Office: 226-909-1601
Direct: 1-226-909-6305
www.brucecounty.on.ca 



 



 



 



Individuals who submit letters and other information to Council and its Committees should be aware that any personal information contained within their communications may become part of the public record and may be made available through the agenda process which includes publication on the County’s website.



If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all copies (electronic or otherwise). Thank you for your cooperation.



If you feel that this email was commercial in nature and you do not wish to receive further electronic messages from the County of Bruce, please click on the following link to unsubscribe: Unsubscribe. Please be advised that this may restrict our ability to send messages to you in the future.



This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this e-mail in error please notify the sender immediately. Please note that any views or opinions presented in this e-mail are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited. Finally, the recipient should check this e-mail and any attachments for the presence of viruses. Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this e-mail. 
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indicates that the driveway will have a 3 m setback to the adjacent zone boundary, and
the 3.0 m wide Tree Planting Strip shown on the Development Site Plan. It’s my
understanding that the attached CAD drawing, which coincides with the Development
Site Plan, will be used to prepare the final schedules. However, if the sketch is to be
used for planning reports, it should be updated to accurately reflect the proposal and
avoid confusion. The sketch has the proposed manufacturing area labelled as AC1-x,
where the information circulated previously indicated a proposed AC2-x-H zone. Is this
an error, or has it been determined that the AC1 zone better reflects the proposed use?

Please reach out if you’d like to discuss any of the above comments.
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

Subject: 2024 08 21 Town of Saugeen Shores Comments on Revised Request for Agency Comments2 C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Wednesday, August 21, 2024 2:18:05 PM

Attachments: black rainbowreqistered logo 3c739dal-3819-4834-ac24-db7246dc7725.png
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** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon,
RE: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson

Town staff have reviewed the materials provided and have no additional comments. The items
previously noted by staff have been satisfactorily addressed through the updated submission.

Town staff continue to encourage investments by local businesses owners to retain and
expand their businesses within Saugeen Shores.

Kind regards,

Candace

Candace Hamm

Development Services Officer

Town of Saugeen Shores

600 Tomlinson Drive, Box 820, Port Elgin ON NOH 2CO
T 519-832-2008 ext 182

E candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca
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The information contained in this message is directed in confidence solely to the
person(s) named above and may not be otherwise distributed, copied or disclosed.
The message may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from
disclosure under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection and Privacy
Act. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately

advising of the error and delete the message without making a copy. Thank You
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From: Ed Melanson

To: Candace Hamm

Cc: Rob Atkinson

Subject: RE: 2024 01 12 Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson Internal Circulation
Date: Sunday, March 17, 2024 8:44:01 PM
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image007.png
image008.png
image009.png

Good Evening Candace,

The Saugeen Shores Fire Department has the resources and required capacity required to deal
with a fire emergency or other related emergency for both the current plant and the proposed
facility. It is my understanding that the new location will be sprinklered for additional safety
greatly reducing any risk specific to a fire emergency.

Yours in service,

Ed Melanson

Director, Fire Services/Fire Chief/CEMC

Town of Saugeen Shores Fire Department

612 Emma St, P.O. Box 1000, Port Elgin ON NOH 2C4
T 519-389-6120

C 226-930-0036

E ed.melanson@saugeenshores.ca

From: Candace Hamm <candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca>

Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 11:41 AM

To: Ed Melanson <ed.melanson@saugeenshores.ca>

Subject: RE: 2024 01 12 Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 256 Carson Internal Circulation

Hi Ed,

The County Planner is working on providing responses to the questions and concerns that
have been raised by members of the public relating to the Carson’s Supply Application.

Can you please provide a response to the following:

Please confirm the Town has capacity/resources to deal with a fire or other emergency at the
proposed concrete manufacturing and PVC injection and extrusion facilities.

Thank you,


mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=USER12FFB0B7
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=032aa03d24aa4366a72fc2a13a6ed101-419e505d-2c
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=userb251b2d1
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

From: Ed Melanson <ed.melanson@saugeenshores.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2024 8:30 AM

To: Candace Hamm <candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca>

Subject: RE: 2024 01 12 Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 256 Carson Internal Circulation

Good Morning candace,

| have reviewed the documents and have no objections, questions or concerns at this time.
Thank you for reaching out.

Ed Melanson
Director, Fire Services/Fire Chief/CEMC
Town of Saugeen Shores Fire Department
612 Emma St, P.O. Box 1000, Port Elgin ON NOH 2C4
T 519-389-6120
C 226-930-0036
ed.melanson@saugeenshores.ca

~
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
advising of the error and delete the message without making a copy. Thank you.
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From: Candace Hamm <candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca>

Sent: Friday, January 12, 2024 10:11 AM

To: Josh Planz <josh.planz@saugeenshores.ca>; Dana Mitchell <dana.mitchell@saugeenshores.ca>;
Jamie McCarthy <jamie.mccarthy@saugeenshores.ca>; Frank Burrows
<frank.burrows@saugeenshores.ca>; Ed Melanson <ed.melanson@saugeenshores.ca>

Cc: Jay Pausner <jay.pausner@saugeenshores.ca>; Kristen Sears <kristen.sears@saugeenshores.ca>
Subject: 2024 01 12 Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 756 Carson Internal Circulation

Good morning,

The County has circulated a Revised Request for Agency Comments for the County Official Plan
Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment to facilitate the partial relocation and expansion of
Carson's Supply at 5331 Bruce Road 3.

The applicant has submitted new and amended documents in response to agency and public
comments received as of December 2023.

The Public Meeting for the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment has been scheduled for February
20, 2024.

Please review the information in the folder on Laserfiche (2024 01 09 Revised Request for Agency
Comments C4 756 Carson) and e-mail me your comments by January 26, 2024.

There are a lot of supporting materials to review. If you require more time to provide me your
comments, please let me know. Previous documents for the file have been moved to Laserfiche.

If you don’t have any comments, a quick ‘no comments’ e-mail would be great. If | don’t receive a
response from you by the date noted above, I'll assume you have no comments.

Thanks,

Candace

Candace Hamm

Development Services Officer

Town of Saugeen Shores

600 Tomlinson Drive, Box 820, Port Elgin ON NOH 2CO0
T 519-832-2008 ext 182

E candace.hamm@saugeenshores.ca
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Existing Uses

Agriculture

Existing Structures

House, Barn, Shed

Proposed Uses

Industrial and Agricultural

Proposed Structures

2 Industrial Structures

Existing Services

Private

Proposed Services

Private

Access

Year-Round Municipal Road

Surrounding Land
Uses

Recreational (Saugeen and Southport Golf Courses),
Residential, Institutional (Southport Church), Agricultural,
Aggregate Extraction

Designations and
Zones

Existing

County Official Plan

Agricultural Areas

Local Official Plan

Outside of Local Official Plan Area

Zoning By-law

A - Agricultural

Designations and
Zones

Proposed

County Official Plan

Agricultural Areas — Exception, Agricultural Areas

Local Official Plan

No Change

Zoning By-law

AC2-x-H - Agricultural Commercial Special with Holding, A-H -
Agricultural with Holding

File Numbers: C-2023-004, Z-2023-056

Agency: Bruce County Transportation Services

No Comment: Title: Eng. Technician  Signature: ey

Comments: Transportation and Environmental Services requests confirmation that there is no
increased storm water to Bruce Road 3.
Transportation and Environmental Services is looking for a paved apron at the
access point. This can be addressed along with entrance width requirements
when applicant applies for an entrance permit.(Entrance permit not a condition
on the planning application)



File Numbers: C-2023-004, Z-2023-056

Agency:

Bruce County Transportation Services

No Comment: X Title: Eng. Technician Signature:

Comments:



From: Gary Keeling

To: Coreena Smith

Cc: Ryan Errington

Subject: RE: T&ES Comments C4 Z56
Date: Friday, April 26, 2024 7:12:31 AM

Hi Coreena, TES considers their response acceptable.
Gary

From: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 2:19 PM

To: Gary Keeling <gkeeling@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: FW: T&ES Comments C4 756

Gary,

Further to your comments (attached) on the C4 Z56 Carson applications in Saugeen Shores, | asked
for clarification from the traffic consultant on the assumptions made for the Traffic Impact Study
(see attached email). | made this request based on comments we had received from members of
the public about traffic concerns. Can you please review the response and advise if it is acceptable
from your perspective?

If a call would be easier to discuss, please let me know. | can be reached at 226-909-6305.

Thanks,

From: Jennifer Ryckman <JRyckman@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2024 2:30 PM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>; Klarika Hamer
<KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>

Cc: Gary Keeling <gkeeling@brucecounty.on.ca>; Tracy Grubb <TaGrubb@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: T&ES Comments C4 756

Good afternoon,
Please see the attached T & Es comments
Thank you.

Jen

Jennifer Ryckman

Transportation Services Assistant
Transportation & Environmental Services
Corporation of the County of Bruce

Office: 519-881-1291

www.brucecounty.on.ca
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From: Ray Lux

To: Klarika Hamer
Subject: Re: Industrial Emergency Questions C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 6:15:31 PM

Y es, we are dispatched through a provincia system out of London. They know where all the
ambulances are and would continue sending the next closest units as required for the situation.

Typically our Superintendent would respond to a scene and they work with the dispatchers to
help coordinate the situation and ensure the resources needed are sent. County boundaries
don’t make a difference for things like this so Grey and then Huron County would respond if
asked.

Ray

From: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 9:14:29 AM

To: Ray Lux <rlux@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: RE: Industrial Emergency Questions C4 Z56 Carson

Good morning Ray,
Yes, that information is helpful. Thank you.

If there was a situation where several casualties occur, which exceeded the capacity of the
Bruce County Paramedic Services, is there a process for requesting additional paramedic
services assistance from surrounding counties? If yes, what does that process look like?

Thanks again,

From: Ray Lux <rlux@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Monday, March 25, 2024 2:55 PM

To: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: RE: Industrial Emergency Questions C4 Z56 Carson

We respond to medical emergencies and rely on fire departments to deal with industrial hazards.
We don’t have any specific Chemical Emergency Response Plans nor specific paramedic units to deal
with these. If there was a medical issue on site, we would respond as per normal. If for some
reason there were medical casualties due to a larger/overarching industrial/chemical emergency, we
would rely on the fire department to assist in making sure the area was safe before we entered
and/or bringing the patient out to us.

Not sure if this is what you are looking for?

Ray

From: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>
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Sent: Monday, March 25, 2024 11:21 AM
To: Ray Lux <rlux@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: Industrial Emergency Questions C4 Z56 Carson

Good morning Ray,

We are reaching out to Paramedic Services to gain an understanding on the services and
capacity levels for an industrial emergency within Bruce County.

Further to the public meeting that was held for County Official Plan file C-2023-004 and Zoning
By-law Amendment file Z-2023-056, a question was raised on the emergency response for an
industrial emergency. Please refer to the attached Request For Comments for this file.
Additional documentation for this application is available on our website at
https://www.brucecounty.on.ca/active-planning-applications. The property/business is located
within the Town of Saugeen Shores.

Does Paramedic Services have an emergency response plan for industrial emergencies and if
yes, what does that look like? Is there a Chemical Emergency Response Plan and Unit?

Looking for Paramedic Services’ expertise on how an industrial emergency response would be
processed and if Bruce County has sufficient paramedic services for such an emergency.

Thank you for your time and | look forward to hearing from you,

Klarika Hamer

Applications Technician

Planning and Development
Corporation of the County of Bruce

Office: 226-909-1601
Direct: 226-909-3359

www.brucecounty.on.ca
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From: Jeffrey Loney

To: Coreena Smith

Subject: RE: Revised Request for Agency Comments2 C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Friday, October 4, 2024 9:54:39 AM

Attachments: image001.png

Good Morning,

Economic Development has thoroughly reviewed the revised submission for Application C4 Z56 and
is satisfied with the evaluation of available industrial lands across the County. The comprehensive
assessment of current and future land availability is critical for supporting long-term business
growth, innovation, and investment attraction, which aligns with best practices in economic
development planning.

In particular, the retention of the existing workforce at the current site, coupled with the thoughtful
approach to transitioning work back and forth between the current and new locations, reflects sound
economic development principles. Workforce stability is a key factor in maintaining operational
continuity, supporting local employment, and minimizing disruption to the broader economy. This
approach also mitigates the risk of workforce attrition, a critical consideration given the current
labour market challenges.

Furthermore, the planned transition supports sustainable growth by ensuring that existing business
operations can continue while the new site is being developed. This phased approach minimizes
downtime, enhances productivity, and provides businesses with the flexibility to scale up without
compromising current operations. From an economic development standpoint, this strategy
encourages business retention and expansion (BRE) while reinforcing regional economic resilience.

We also appreciate the applicant's consideration of infrastructure needs, while some of the
information for the Bruce Energy Centre remains out of date, the argument still remains sufficient. By
integrating long-term workforce, infrastructure, and operational planning, this project demonstrates a
forward-thinking approach to economic development that will benefit the County's industrial sector.

In summary, Economic Development supports this application as it is aligned with core principles of
sustainable growth, workforce retention, and investment attraction.

From: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Friday, September 20, 2024 12:25 PM

To: Jeffrey Loney <JLoney@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: Revised Request for Agency Comments2 C4 756 Carson

Jeff,
Here is a link to the B2l Consolidated Agency Comments as of March 20 2024 C4 Z56 Carson.pdf

which shows the various formats in which we receive agency/departmental comments (e.g., email,
letter, notes on the County’s request for comments). County Transportation comments are at the



[PDF




end. This consolidation does not include the most recent comments received from Saugeen Shores (
SS5 C4 756 Carson.pdf), Saugeen Ojibway Nation and the Historic Saugeen Metis on the Carson
file.

Let me know if you need anything else.

Sincerely,

Coreena Smith

Senior Planner

Planning and Development
Corporation of the County of Bruce

Office: 226-909-1601
Direct: 1-226-909-6305

www.brucecounty.on.ca

Orange Shirt Day / National Day for Truth
and Reconciliation | September 30

Join us in reflecting, showing support, and joining
the global conversation on this day that honours
the thousands of First Nations, Métis, and Inuit
children across Canada who were forced to attend
residential schools. Artwork by Taylor Cameron,
Saugeen First Nation. To learn more visit Orange

Shirt Society - Creating Awareness
(orangeshirtday.org)

Individuals who submit letters and other information to Council and its Committees should be aware that
any personal information contained within their communications may become part of the public record
and may be made available through the agenda process which includes publication on the County’s
website.

If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all
copies (electronic or otherwise). Thank you for your cooperation.
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If you feel that this email was commercial in nature and you do not wish to receive further
electronic messages from the County of Bruce, please click on the following link to
unsubscribe: Unsubscribe. Please be advised that this may restrict our ability to send
messages to you in the future.

Jeffrey Loney

Economic Development Manager
Planning and Development
Corporation of the County of Bruce

Office: 226-909-3306

WWW. brucecounty,on,ca

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
unsubscribe: Unsubscribe. Please be advised that this may restrict our ability to send messages
to you in the future.



From: Patient Relations

To: Klarika Hamer

Cc: Fry, Graham; Dixon, Jesse

Subject: RE: Industrial Emergency Questions C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 10:27:12 AM
Attachments: image002.png

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Klarika

I am responding to your email on behalf of our Contingency Planning committee from Brightshores.
This group looks after planning and preparing our hospitals for emergency situations. We do have
standardized corporate plans for CBRN response, Disaster responses and evacuations. These plans
are enacted when we are notified by local agencies or identify issues through our emergency
departments.

We have in the past tested these response plans at our Southampton hospital in conjunction with
Bruce Power.

I am not sure if you need to know the specifics of these plan but our group would be happy to
discuss this with you if you have further questions.

Thanks

Diana Ryman (she/her)

Director of Quality and Safety

Brightshores Health System

T519.376.2121 x2311

www.brightshores.ca

From: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, April 9, 2024 14:48

To: Web Contact <web@brightshores.ca>; Monck, Marta <mmonck@brightshores.ca>
Cc: Patient Relations <patientrelations@brightshores.ca>

Subject: RE: Industrial Emergency Questions C4 Z56 Carson

Importance: High

CAUTION: ****This email originated outside of GBIN. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please
delete the message if you are unsure about the content.****

Good afternoon,

Further to my email below from March 25, 2024, would someone be able to provide us with a
response?
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www.brightshores.ca

Kind regards,

From: Klarika Hamer
Sent: Monday, March 25, 2024 11:11 AM

To: web@brightshores.ca; mmonck@brightshores.ca

Subject: Industrial Emergency Questions C4 Z56 Carson

Good morning,

Please forward this email to the respective department/staff for this inquiry.

We are reaching out to Brightshores Health System to gain some understanding on the
services and the capacity levels for an industrial emergency within Bruce County.

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

Does Brightshores Health System have an emergency response plan for industrial
emergencies and if yes, what does that look like? Is there a Chemical Emergency Response
Plan and Unit?

Do our local hospitals have capacity and sufficient health care services for industrial
emergencies? How are the hospitals notified and where do patients get transferred for care?

Looking for Brightshores Health System’s expertise on how an industrial emergency response
would be processed and if Bruce and Grey Counties have sufficient health care services for
such an emergency.

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

H
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From: Amy Rogers

To: Pegelo, Jessica (MTO)
Cc: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub
Subject: RE: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Tuesday, August 15, 2023 8:24:50 AM
Attachments: ~WRDO0000.jpa

image001.png

Good morning Jessica,
Thank you for letting us know,
Amy

From: Pegelo, Jessica (MTQO) <Jessica.Pegelo@ontario.ca>
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2023 5:21 PM

To: Amy Rogers <AmRogers@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: RE: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon Amy,

Thank you for circulating MTO with the OPA and ZBA applications. MTO will require
more time to review and provide comments. Generally, MTO require four to six to
review and comment on applications.

Comments will be provided.

Kind Regards,

Jessica Pegelo

Ministry of Transportation

Corridor Management Planner

Highway Corridor Management Section

659 Exeter Rd. London, ON N6E 1L3

Telephone: 519-379-4397 Fax: 519-376-6842

E-mail: jessica.pegelo@ontario.ca

From: Amy Rogers <AmRogers@brucecounty.on.ca>
Sent: August 4, 2023 9:39 AM
To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>
Cc: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: Request for Comments C4 756 Carson
CAUTION -- EXTERNAL E-MAIL - Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender.
Good morning,
Please see the attached Request for Agency Comments, Notice of Complete Application, Planning
Justification Report, Functional Servicing Report, Stormwater Management Report, Transportation
Impact Study, Site plan, and Application for file number C-2023-004 and Z-2023-056. All files are

available to download from the County website: Planning Saugeen Shores | Bruce County.
SVCA — Please be advised that $580.00 has been collected on behalf of the SVCA for the review of
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From: Pegelo, Jessica (MTO)

To: Coreena Smith

Cc: Amy Rogers

Subject: RE: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Thursday, September 21, 2023 4:18:57 PM
Attachments: image001.png

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon Coreena,

Documents Reviewed:

« Site Plan — Prepared By: Cobide Engineering Inc., Dated: May 2023

o Traffic Impact Study — Prepared By: Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited,
Stamped By: M.A. Brouwer, Dated: 2023/06/05

« Functional Servicing Report - Prepared By: Cobide Engineering Inc., Stamped
By: T.L. Burnside, Dated: 6/8/2023

» Stormwater Management Report — Prepared By: Cobide Engineering Inc.,
Stamped By: T.L. Burnside, Dated: 3/6/2023

The Ministry of Transportation (MTO) have completed a review of the proposal to
redesignate a portion of the property from Agricultural Areas to Agricultural Areas with
Exceptions and to rezone that same area from Agricultural (A) to Agricultural
Commercial Special with Holding (AC2-x-H) to permit a concrete manufacturing plant
with outdoor storage, parking and a stormwater management pond, and a future PVC
manufacturing facility. The proposal has been considered in accordance with the
requirements of the Public Transportation and Highway Improvement Act, MTO'’s
Highway Access Management Policy and all related policies. The following outlines
MTO’s comments:

The subject property is located adjacent to Highway 21, within MTO’s Permit Control
Area (PCA), and as such, MTO permits are required before any demolition, grading,
construction or alteration to the site commences.

Highway 21 at this location is classified as a 2B Arterial in MTO’s Access
Management Classification System. As such, all requirements, guidelines and best
practices in accordance with this classification shall apply.

Building and Land Use

MTO requires all buildings, structures and features integral to the site to be located a
minimum of 14 metres from the highway property limit, inclusive of landscaping
features, fire-lanes, parking and storm water management facilities.

Upon review of the above referenced site plan, MTO have the following comments:



Ontario a




SWNM plan outlet is not shown in plan view or in a detail. The outlet structure
itself must be entirely on private lands with the appropriate setback based on
highway class.

The landscaped berm should be shown in more detail than simply hatching an
area where it will be built. At a minimum the location of the toe of slope should
be shown. MTO require that the toe of slope be located a minimum of 3m from
the highway property limit.

The Functional Servicing Report indicates that there will be a connection made
to an existing watermain in the southwest corner of the property. The watermain
connection and the location of the watermain on Highway 21 should be shown
on the site plan.

The Functional Servicing Report recommends on-site sewage treatment. The
location of the on-site sewage treatment should be shown on the site plan.

Functional Servicing Report and Storm Water Management

Upon review of the above referenced Functional Servicing Report and Stormwater
Management Report, MTO have the following comments:

Stormwater Management Report

Page 1... The report indicates that “The lands are 53 hectares in total...” The
drainage area in catchments 101 and 201 are 43.73 hectares. Please confirm
the size of the lands.

Page 4... The report indicates that “The main design guideline utilized in the
review is the Ministry of the Environment’s “Stormwater Management Planning
and Design (SWMP&D) Manual,” dated March 2003.” The proponent should be
directed to the document titled “MTO Stormwater Management Requirements
for Land Development Proposals 2009 (References Updated April 2022)”. This
requirement was identified in MTO’s pre-consultation comments provided in
October 2022.

Page 4... The report indicates that “...information on the long-term operation
and maintenance techniques for stormwater management facilities that may be
implemented in the development of the subdivision...”. MTO require details in
the report on how the pond will be maintained.

Page 5... The report indicates that “Surface water flows by sheet flow and
discharges to the Highway 21 roadside ditch” in the pre-development condition.
Based on a review of the contours shown on the pre-development SWM areas
plan this does not seem likely. Some drainage would sheet flow into adjacent
privately owned lands and/or into the drainage system for Carlisle Street.
Please explain or revise in the report.

Page 6... In the post development condition, should there not be more
catchment areas? One (or more) for the portion from the top of the berm
westerly that will drain uncontrolled into either the highway ditch or the adjacent
privately owned lands and another for the remainder that will drain controlled
towards the pond. Please explain or revise in the report.

Page 7... The outlet configuration of the proposed pond described in the report
is not shown on any of the plans provided. MTO require that the outlet



configuration of the proposed pond be shown on all plans.

e Page 10... Sections 7.1 and 7.2 seem to be written for a residential subdivision.
These sections discuss minimum grades from the back of curb, runoff draining
from rooftops being directed overland across the grass lawns, notes being
added to lot grading plans and grassed drainage swales along rear yards. None
of these seem applicable to this proposed development. Please explain or
revise in the report.

e Page 10... The report indicates that “The wet pond facility will have a forebay
that will be the primary location for sediment removal.” The location of the berm
along three sides of the pond would make access to the forebay challenging.
Without knowing where the outlet is this is difficult to assess. The location of the
outlet and the forebay should be shown on site plan as well as the access route
to the forebay. No access will be permitted from Highway 21 for pond
maintenance.

Functional Servicing Report

e Page 4... The report indicates that “The proposed watermain will be connected
to the municipal system on Highway 21. There is currently a 500mm diameter
watermain on Highway 21. This watermains will provide service to the proposed
development via a proposed connection at the southwest corner of the site.”
The report should indicate which side of the highway the watermain is on. Is a
highway crossing required?

The applicant should be directed to MTO’s Stormwater Management Requirements
for Land Development Proposals using the following link:

Stormwater Management Planning and Design Manual | Ontario.ca

MTO anticipate receiving a revised Functional Servicing Report and Stormwater
Management Report for review.

Access & Traffic Impact Review

MTO have reviewed the TIS and have the following comments:

e MTO require that trip generation, distribution, and assignment patterns for both
the existing and proposed new site be indicated separately.

e MTO require that the consultant identify the LUC of the ITE trip generation
manual that is used for trip estimation.

The TIS shall assess any potential impacts to the highway by the anticipated
development traffic. The TIS shall identify any highway improvements necessitated by
the development and shall be completed by a Registry, Appraisal and Qualification
System (RAQS) approved traffic consultant and in accordance with MTO’s TIS
guidelines.

Note that the cost of the TIS and any highway improvements as a result of the
development are the financial responsibility of the developer.
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All access must be off of Bruce Road 3.

MTO anticipate receiving a revised TIS for review.

Signs

Any/all signage visible from Highway 21, including temporary development signs,
must be identified on the plans, must conform to MTO policies and guidelines, and
will require a valid MTO Sign Permit before installation.

Encroachments

Any encroachments and works identified within the Highway 21 property limits are
subject to MTO conditions, approval and permits, prior to construction. All provincial
highway property encroachments are strictly regulated and must meet all conditions
set out by MTO.

General Comments

MTO looks forward to the advancement of this development, and we anticipate
receiving additional details for review and comment as the project progresses.

Please feel free to contact me directly should you have any questions or concerns.
Kind Regards,

Jessica Pegelo

Ministry of Transportation

Corridor Management Planner

Highway Corridor Management Section
659 Exeter Rd. London, ON NéE 1L3
Telephone: 519-379-4397 Fax: 519-376-6842

E-mail: jessica.pegelo@ontario.ca
Ontario @

From: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>
Sent: September 15, 2023 1:46 PM

To: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: FW: Request for Comments C4 756 Carson

CAUTION -- EXTERNAL E-MAIL - Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender.


mailto:jessica.pegelo@ontario.ca

Good afternoon,
| am just following up on this request for comments for a proposal in Saugeen Shores. Comments
were due August 25, 2023 and | know some had requested an extension to that period.

It would be appreciated if you could provide feedback no later than September 22, 2023.

Sincerely,

From: Amy Rogers <AmRogers@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 9:39 AM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>
Cc: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson

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
this Application.

Roger — the Development Sign that is required to be posted at the property is being sent to you via
courier. Please post the sign by August 14, 2023. Once posted, please email a picture of the posted

sign to beplpe@brucecounty.on.ca.

Thank you,

Amy Rogers

Applications Technician

Planning and Development
Corporation of the County of Bruce

Office: 226-909-3107
Direct: 1-226-909-3107

www.brucecounty.on.ca
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From:

To:

Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Pegelo, Jessica (MTO)

Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub

FW: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice Z56 Carson
Tuesday, February 6, 2024 12:13:41 PM

Additional Supporting Materials Email C4 Z56 Carson.pdf

Planning Justification Report Revised C4 756 Carson.pdf

Functional Servicina Report Revised C4 Z56 Carson.pdf

Stormwater Management Report Revised C4 Z56 Carson.pdf

Transportation Impact Study - Response to MTO Comments C4 Z56 Carson.pdf
Public Comment Matrix Letter C4 7256 Carson.pdf

Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation C4 Z56 Carson.pdf

Site Plan Revised C4 Z56 Carson 2023 12 13.pdf

Geotechnical Investigation C4 Z56 Carson Reduced.pdf

Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson.pdf

Public Meeting Notice Z56 Carson.pdf

You don't often get email from jessica.pegelo@ontario.ca. Learn why this is important

** [CAUTION]: Thisemail originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon,

MTO are in the process of reviewing the revised documentation submitted as part of
Applications C4 and Z56. MTO may not be able to provided comments by the
requested return date of February 14, 2024. However, generally, MTO are supportive

of the proposal and comments will be provided soon.
If there are any questions, please let me know.
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

Sent: January 9, 2024 11:09 AM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>
Cc: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice Z56

Carson
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From: Dana Kieffer

To: Coreena Smith

Cc: Klarika Hamer; _ Travis Burnside; Candace Hamm; Jay Pausner
Subject: 2023-12-13 Carson"s Supply Supporting Materials 05027

Date: Wednesday, December 13, 2023 2:58:21 PM

Attachments: 2023-12-12 Public Meeting Comment Matrix Letter 05027.pdf

2023-12-06 Carsons FSR 05027.pdf

05027- Updated Carson's Expansion Planning Justification Report 2023-12-13.pdf

GRH-L Carson WS Report.pdf

X-Base Plan 05027 2023-11-30-SP1.pdf

22-816.R01 - Proposed Industrial Expansion - 5331 Bruce Road 3. Town of Saugeen Shores ON - February 8
2023.pdf

2023-12-06 Carsons SWM Report.pdf

(220658) Carson"s Supply TIS - MTO Comments Response - 2023-12.pdf

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Coreena,

As requested, the following is attached:

Amended site plan (attached as X Base Plan)

Comment matrix to address public comments based on issues raised, not individual responses
(attached as 2023-12-12 Public Meeting Comment Matrix)

Hydrogeology letter per Town comments (attached as GRH-L Carson WS)

Geotechnical report to demonstrate assessment has been completed (attached as 22-
816.R01...)

Applicant summary of their existing operation and proposed operation, how they differ (if at
all), with comments on how the operation differs from some of the public perceptions (for
example, relating to PVC use/production) (below)

Revised TIS, FSR and SWM to address agency comments (attached as Carsons Supply TIS-
MTO Comments, Carsons FSR and Carsons SWM)

Revised PJR to account for additional residences (attached as Updated Carsons Expansion
Planning Justification Report)

Please let me know if you require anything further.

Kind regards,

dk

Dana Kieffer, M.Sc.(Planning), MCIP, RPP

Cobide Engineering Inc.
517 10! Street

Hanover, ON N4N 1R4

T +1 519-506-5959 ext. 106
E dkieffer@cobideeng.com

www.cobideeng.com

From: Joson Corson [





Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2023 11:22 AM
To: Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>
Subject: PVC pipe process

Hi Dana,
As per your request. Here is the process of making PVC pipe.

1. We receive the PVC Pellets in on transport.

2. PVC pellets are feed into the extruder where the melting and heating occurs in multiple
zones.

3. The melted is extruded over a die to shape it into the size of pipe.

4. Formed pipe travels through a cooling tank .

5. Pipe is feed through a perforator that drills the holes in it and through a saw that cut it to the
proper length.

6. The ends of the pipe are then reheated, and the bells are added to the ends.

7. Pipe is skidded in crates then place in the proper area of the area.

Hope these helps.
Thanks,

Jason

Jason Carson
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INTRODUCTION

On behalf of our client, Cobide Engineering Inc. is pleased to submit the Planning Justification Report in
support of the Bruce County Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment applications for the
property located at 5331 Bruce Road 3 (hereinafter called the subject lands).

The intent of this report is to analyze the land use planning merits of the applications and determine the
appropriateness of the proposed uses. The request will be analyzed within the context of the surrounding
community and the relevant planning documents, including the Provincial Policy Statement, the Bruce
County Official Plan and the Town of Saugeen Shores Comprehensive Zoning By-law.

A copy of the proposed Concept Plan has been included in Appendix A.

1.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The content of this Planning Justification includes:
e Adescription of the site, its existing physical conditions and its context within the surrounding area;
e A description of the Development Concept;
e An outline of and rationale for the subject application;
e An overview of the other supporting reports and studies;

e An overview of the relevant planning policy and regulations that affect the proposed planning
application, including Provincial, County, and Municipal policy and regulations; and

¢ Anassessment of the proposed planning application in respect to the relevant policy and regulatory
framework, and a planning opinion and justification for the applications.

1.2 PRE-CONSULTATION AND REQUIRED SUPPORTING STUDIES

On October 3, 2022, a pre-consultation meeting was held to review the submission requirements related
to the Carson’s Supply Expansion project.

As per the meeting summary circulated October 3, 2022, and attached to this report in Appendix B It was
outlined at that meeting the following would be required:

1. A Planning Justification Report;

2. A Functional Servicing Report;

3. A Stormwater Management Report; and
4

A Traffic Impact Study

All of these studies have been completed and are included in this submission.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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2. SITE CONTEXT

2.1 SITE DESCRIPTION

The subject lands are located at 5331 Bruce Road 3 and are known legally as Lots 10 & 11, Concession
12, geograpghic Township of Saugeen; Plan 154, Part Lots K & L. The subject lands have frontage on
Highway 21 and Bruce Road 3, with access obtained from Bruce Road 3. The lands are located between
the communities of Port Elgin and Southampton in a mixed use area.

The lands are 53 hectares in total and are host to a house and a barn situated on the Eastern side of the
property.

2.2 SURROUNDING LAND USES

The subject lands are located 855 m from the edge of the urban boundary of Southampton and 286 m from
the edge of the urban boundary of Port Elgin. Therefore, the subject lands are surrounded by a variety of
land uses.

North: Residential homes, Southport Golf Course and Saugeen Golf Club.
South: Agricultural lands and three licensed gravel pits.

West: Residential homes, Southport Church, a landscaping business with a nursery, Highway 21, and
agricultural lands,

East: a licensed gravel pit and a private residence

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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THE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

The applications will facilitate a partial relocation and expansion of Carson’s Supply, a 40-year-old
commercial business located in Port Elgin and currently operates out of 1071 Goderich St., Port Elgin.

Carson’s Supply is a wholesale provider of plumbing, HVAC, waterworks supplies and precast concrete
structures. They have a custom PVC injection and extrusion facility at their Port Elgin warehouse that ships
throughout North America.

The Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment would permit the construction of a concrete
manufacturing plant, that would produce products such as catch basins, septic holding tanks and electrical
utility vaults. It would also provide ample outdoor storage for these large materials.

It would further permit a PVC manufacturing facility to be constructed in the future. In total, it is estimated
that 50 new employees will be required to operate these facilities.

The subject lands are ideally located for a space extensive industrial and commercial use given the rural
location outside the periphery of a settlement area and in an area that already is interspersed with
commercial, recreational and non-agricultural uses.

3.1 SITE FEATURES

The proposed development will occupy the western portion of the subject lands and will use approximately
13.5 ha of land. The development concept includes future expansion plans.

The proposed site features are as follows:

1. A proposed concrete pre-cast plant, identified in grey, with a planned future expansion to this
facility shown adjacent to the west;

A proposed PVC manufacturing facility;
A large area for outdoor storage and loading;

A parking area; and

o M 0N

A stormwater management pond.

The site also is proposed to be surrounded on three sides with a landscaped berm to insulate from noise
and visually screen the development from neighbours.

Further, the proposed project will be visually screened from Bruce Road 3 due to its location behind the
cluster of trees that are proposed to remain.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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OVERVIEW OF SUPPORTING STUDIES

4.1 TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY

A Traffic Impact Study was completed by Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited. The impact
assessment includes an analysis of existing traffic conditions, describes the proposed development, traffic
forecasts for the assumed full buildout of the proposed development and beyond.

4.2 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REPORT

A Preliminary Stormwater Management Plan was completed by Travis Burnside, P.Eng of Cobide
Engineering Ltd. Based on the findings of this report, the following conclusions were made:

1. Stormwater quantity control will be provided via a wet pond SWM Facility with an outlet
configuration as described previously.

2. Stormwater quantity control for the development will maintain or lower pre-development flows at
all discharge points during the storm events.

3. Stormwater quality will be provided by a treatment train approach which will include lot level
control, conveyance control and ‘end-of-pipe’ control measures

4.3 FUNCTIONAL SERVICING REPORT

1. Municipal water is proposed, and flows are available to support the development.

2. ltis proposed an on-site sewage treatment and disposal systems is constructed for the proposed
buildings. The proposed septic system would require MECP approval due to the proposed peak
flow.

3. Swales will be used to convey stormwater around and through the site to the proposed SWM
Pond that will control runoff to pre development peak flows at the downstream discharge point.

RATIONALE FOR APPLICATIONS

5.1 CURRENT PLANNING DESIGNATIONS AND ZONES

The subject lands are designated Agriculture in the Bruce County Official Plan and zoned Agriculture (A)
in the Town of Saugeen Shores Comprehensive Zoning By-law.

5.2 REQUIRED APPLICATIONS

A Bruce County Official Plan Amendment is requested to permit the use.

A re-zoning of a portion of the property to Agricultural Commercial Special (AC2- x) to permit the use is
requested.

The details of these amendments will be discussed in further detail below.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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PLANNING POLICY

6.1 PLANNING ACT

The Planning Act requires approval authorities considering planning applications to have regard to, among
other things, matters of Provincial Interest. Those matters of Provincial Interest relevant to the Subject
Applications are as follows:

(b) the protection of the agricultural resources of the Province;
(k) the adequate provision of employment opportunities;

(p) the appropriate location of growth and development;

The Planning Act also requires decisions related to planning applications to be consistent with Provincial
Policy (such as the Provincial Policy Statement) in effect on the date of the decision. Section 16 of the
Planning Act provides the legislative authority for municipalities to regulate the following (among other
matters) in Official Plans:

+ Goals, objectives and policies to manage and direct physical change and the effects on the social,
economic, built and natural environment of the municipality;

» Descriptions of the means for informing and obtaining input from the public with respect to Official
Plan Amendments and Zoning By-laws; and

Section 34 of the Planning Act provides the legislative authority for municipalities to regulate the following
(among other matters) in Zoning By-laws:

« the use of land;

+ the type of construction, height, bulk, location, size, floor area, spacing, character and use of
buildings;

* minimum and maximum density;
* minimum and maximum height; and

* requirement to provide off-street parking and/or loading facilities.

6.2 PROVINCIAL POLICY STATEMENT

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) provides policy direction on matters of provincial interest related to
land use planning and development. As a key part of Ontario’s policy-led planning system, the PPS sets
the policy foundation for regulating the development and use of land through Municipal documents like the
Official Plan and Zoning By-law. The current PPS came into effect May 1, 2020. Section 3(5) of the Planning
Act requires that all decisions affecting planning matters shall be consistent with policy statements issued
under the Act. The following table demonstrates how the proposed Official Plan Amendment and Zoning
By-law Amendment are consistent with the policies of the 2020 PPS that, in our opinion, have particular
relevance to this proposal:

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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6.2.1 1.0 BUILDING STRONG HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Table 1: Provincial Policy Statement Policies

1.1.1 b) accommodating an appropriate affordable
and market-based range and mix of residential
types (including single-detached, additional
residential units, multi-unit housing, affordable
housing and housing for older persons),
employment (including industrial and commercial),
institutional (including places of worship,
cemeteries and long-term care homes),
recreation, park and open space, and other uses
to meet long-term needs;

The land needs analysis for the Town of Saugeen
Shores in regards to employment lands that have
been completed for the new County Official Plan
states there are a lack of larger sites for
employment uses and manufacturing County-
wide. There is a projected shortfall of employment
lands over the planning term in the Town of
Saugeen Shores of 7 hectares (gross).

1.1.1 d) avoiding development and land use
patterns that would prevent the efficient
expansion of settlement areas in those areas
which are adjacent or close to settlement areas;

The subject lands are located between two
settlement areas- being Port Elgin and
Southampton. The development of these lands
as proposed in the development concept will not
impede future expansion of the settlement areas,
and the lands could theoretically be included in a
settlement area, should they be expanded that
direction.

1.1.2 Sufficient land shall be made available to
accommodate an appropriate range and mix of
land uses to meet projected needs for a time
horizon of up to 25 years, informed by provincial
guidelines. However, where an alternate time
period has been established for specific areas of
the Province as a result of a provincial planning
exercise or a provincial plan, that time frame may
be used for municipalities within the area.

Bruce County has completed a land needs
analysis for the Town of Saugeen Shores as a
part of the update to the Bruce County Official
Plan. It finds there is a shortfall of 7 ha projected
employment lands over the planning term.

1.1.3.1 Settlement areas shall be the focus of
growth and development.

The proponent has looked extensively for a site in
the settlement area, offering to purchase a lot in
the Innovation Park which, at the time, was
declined. Pre-cast concrete fabrication is
considered a “heavy industrial” use and creates
dust and noise; and uses process waters to mix
the concrete. Currently, there are minimal
setbacks between Carson’s Supply and the
adjacent residential uses and there have been
several complaints against the business from
adjacent residential uses in the past.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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There is a lack of suitable employment lands
within the settlement area that offer the required
buffer between residential and manufacturing
uses, along with a size that is sufficient for the
proponents’ outdoor storage needs.

1.2.6.1 Major facilities and sensitive land uses
shall be planned and developed to avoid, or if
avoidance is not possible, minimize and mitigate
any potential adverse effects from odour, noise
and other contaminants, minimize risk to public
health and safety, and to ensure the long-term
operational and economic viability of major
facilities in accordance with provincial guidelines,
standards and procedures.

The PPS defines major facilities as facilities which
may require separation from sensitive land uses,
including but not limited to airports,
manufacturing uses...

At the current location, Carson’s is surrounded on
three sides by residential uses and has a long
history of noise and dust complaints from
residents. Despite mitigative efforts such as straw
bales, landscaping and fencing, these complaints
continue. There is simply not enough room on the
site to insulate the use better.

Where avoidance is not possible in accordance
with policy 1.2.6.1, planning authorities shall
protect the long-term viability of existing or
planned industrial, manufacturing or other uses
that are vulnerable to encroachment by ensuring
that the planning and development of proposed
adjacent sensitive land uses are only permitted if
the following are demonstrated in accordance with
provincial guidelines, standards and procedures:

a) there is an identified need for the proposed
use;

b) alternative locations for the proposed use
have been evaluated and there are no
reasonable alternative locations;

c) adverse effects to the proposed sensitive
land use are minimized and mitigated; and

d) potential impacts to industrial, manufacturing
or other uses are minimized and mitigated.

Carson’s Supply has been in business for 40
years and is seeking to expand to better suit their
client’s needs. Carson’s services all over Ontario
and into the United States with their manufactured
products. There is a demonstrated need for the
use.

As previously discussed, the proponent looked for
a site in the settlement area and a suitable site
was not available.

The subject lands offer an opportunity for
avoidance and mitigation of incompatibilities.
Since it is a larger property, more effective
buffering can be used including a landscaped
berm and physical separation of the use from the
sensitive uses such as the residential and church
uses that are adjacent. All of the surrounding
uses are approximately 230 m from the proposed
facility. For comparison, there is a 0 m setback
with the current facility and residential uses on
three sides.

1.3.1 b) Planning authorities shall promote
economic development and competitiveness by:
providing opportunities for a diversified economic
base, including maintaining a range and choice of
suitable sites for employment uses which support

The present Carson’s Supply’s site is surrounded
on three sides by residential uses and there have
been multiple complaints regarding noise, dust
and hours of operation.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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a wide range of economic activities and ancillary
uses, and take into account the needs of existing
and future businesses;

The proponent is seeking an amendment for the
to expand the use and locate on the subject lands
in an Agricultural Area for the following reasons:

1. Recent studies indicate there is a lack of
large sites in Bruce County suitable for
manufacturing uses.

Many of the existing sites do not have
enough separation between the proposed
use and residential uses.

There is a projected shortfall of
employment lands within the Town of
Saugeen Shores over the planning term.

The subject lands have County Road and
Highway 21 frontage that will support the
movement of goods.

1.3.2.2 At the time of the official plan review or
update, planning authorities should assess
employment areas identified in local official plans
to ensure that this designation is appropriate to
the planned function of the employment area.
Employment areas planned for industrial and
manufacturing uses shall provide for separation or
mitigation from sensitive land uses to maintain the
long-term operational and economic viability of
the planned uses and function of these areas.

The Plan the Bruce: Good Growth Discussion
paper from September, 2022 identifies that “While
Bruce County has a relatively large supply of
designated Employment Lands to accommodate
long-term demand in most locations, the County’s
existing supply of larger vacant employment
parcels is limited.”

While the proposed use is 13.5 ha, much of this
area is spatial separation between the proposed
use and surrounding uses to mitigate potential
negative impacts.

1.3.2.3 Within employment areas planned for
industrial or manufacturing uses, planning
authorities shall prohibit residential uses and
prohibit or limit other sensitive land uses that are
not ancillary to the primary employment uses in
order to maintain land use compatibility.
Employment areas planned for industrial or
manufacturing uses should include an appropriate
transition to adjacent non-employment areas.

The subject lands offer more space and therefore
more physical separation between the proposed
use and adjacent sensitive uses. Further, a
landscaped berm is proposed to screen and
buffer noise. This will help ensure land use
compatibility.

6.2.2 2.0 WISE USE AND MANAGEMENT

OF RESOURCES

2.3.1 Prime agricultural areas shall be protected
for long-term use for agriculture. Prime
agricultural areas are areas where prime

The subject lands are in a pocket of Class 2F,
Brady Sandy Loam soils. The lands are presently
farmed and are in a designated prime agricultural
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agricultural lands predominate. Specialty crop
areas shall be given the highest priority for
protection, followed by Canada Land Inventory
Class 1, 2, and 3 lands, and any associated Class
4 through 7 lands within the prime agricultural
area, in this order of priority.

area. The ‘F’ subclass of soils are noted for their
low natural fertility that is either correctable with
careful management with the use of fertilizers and
soil amendments or is difficult to correct in a
feasible way. Please see Figure 5 for the Soils
Map.

Through the County’s Official Plan process, the
subject lands have been identified as a “Potential
Prime Agricultural Area” which may, when the
new Official Plan progresses, result in a re-
designation from prime to rural. Please see Figure
4 for the Draft Land Evaluation and Area Review
Map

One could surmise, that the subject lands location
in a fragmented area, with a number of non-
agricultural uses in the immediate vicinity could
have contributed to this consideration for re-
designation.

Despite the above, the Prime Agricultural Areas
policies of the PPS will apply and be discussed as
that is the designation at the present time.

2.3.3.1 In prime agricultural areas, permitted uses
and activities are: agricultural uses, agriculture-
related uses and on-farm diversified uses.
Proposed agriculture-related uses and on-farm
diversified uses shall be compatible with, and
shall not hinder, surrounding agricultural
operations. Criteria for these uses may be based
on guidelines developed by the Province or
municipal approaches, as set out in municipal
planning documents, which achieve the same
objectives.

A non-agricultural use is proposed and as such
Policy 2.3.6.1 applies.

2.3.3.3 New land uses in prime agricultural areas,
including the creation of lots and new or
expanding livestock facilities, shall comply with
the minimum distance separation formulae.

There are no barns in the immediate vicinity, save
and except the barn on the property, which is not
required to meet MDS as per Guideline 14 in the
Minimum Distance Separation Document.

2.3.6.1 Planning authorities may only permit non-
agricultural uses in prime agricultural areas for:

a) extraction of minerals, petroleum resources
and mineral aggregate resources; or

b) limited non-residential uses, provided that all of
the following are demonstrated:

The development concept proposes to utilize the
limited non-residential use provision.
1. The land is not a speciality crop area.
2. The proposed use complies with
Minimum Distance Separation.
3. As per the Plan the Bruce: Good Growth
Final Report, dated September 2022, the

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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1. the land does not comprise a specialty crop
area;
2. the proposed use complies with the minimum
distance separation formulae;
3. there is an identified need within the planning
horizon provided for in policy 1.1.2 for additional
land to accommodate the proposed use; and
4. alternative locations have been evaluated, and
i. there are no reasonable alternative locations
which avoid prime agricultural areas; and

ii. there are no reasonable alternative locations
in prime agricultural areas with lower priority
agricultural lands.

Town of Saugeen Shores has a projected
shortfall of employment lands over the
planning term. Further, the report
identifies a lack of larger employment
parcels County-wide which is what this
use needs and proposes.

4. Several locations were considered by the
proponent. The proponent is hoping to
stay in the Port Elgin Area and to locate
closely to the 1071 Goderich St. location
that they currently operate their business
out of. They further were hoping to stay
close to the Highway 21/ Bruce Road 3
corridors to ensure sufficient highway
access in both directions to move their
manufactured goods.

The proponents approached the Town of
Saugeen Shores to locate in the
Innovation Park. The Park accounts for
9.3 ha of the employment land totals in
Saugeen Shores, but Carson’s Supply
was declined to purchase a lot. Most
sites within the Town have residential
uses that are close, which Carson’s
Supply wanted to avoid.

The Highway 21 corridor is mostly made
of these Class 2 lands, with variable
pockets of more fertile and less fertile
soil. There are no reasonable alternative
lands that have the locational advantage
of the subject lands.

2.3.6.2 Impacts from any new or expanding non-
agricultural uses on surrounding agricultural
operations and lands are to be mitigated to the
extent feasible.

Impacts on adjacent agricultural uses are not
anticipated. The use will be buffered by 40 h of
farmed land to the adjacent farms and the use is
located towards the settlement area, highway,
and more commercially-developed portion. It is
proposed to be insulated by a berm to the South.

6.3 BRUCE COUNTY OFFICIAL PLAN

The Bruce County Official Plan was approved by the Ontario Municipal Board in 1999. The Five-Year
Review to the Plan was approved by MMAH in 2010. The purpose of the Bruce County Official Plan is to
establish a policy framework to guide the physical, social and economic development of the County and to
protect the natural environment within the County to the year 2021. Bruce County is currently working on a
new Official Plan.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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The property is designated Agricultural Area.

Figure 2: County of Bruce Official Plan designation. The subject lands are outlined in orange. Retrieved March 3, 2023, from Bruce County
Maps.

6.3.1 SECTION 4.5: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
iv) Identify and support those industries and trends that are key to the County’s economic future;
vi) Promote a broader range of growth to provide employment opportunities within the County;

vii) Make provisions for land, services and facilities to satisfy the requirements of economic activities;

6.3.2 SECTION 5.5 AGRICULTURAL AREAS

Sections 5.5.1 Introduction, Section 5.5.2 Agricultural Objectives and Section 5.5.4.1 Permitted Uses in
Agricultural Areas outline that while industrial and commercial uses are permitted in the Agricultural Area,
they are required to be agriculture-related uses which are directly supportive of agriculture or limited on-
farm diversified uses which are secondary to the primary agricultural use of the property.

Discussion

An amendment is requested to permit an industrial use that is not agricultural in nature, consistent with the
PPS policy 2.3.6,1 due to the lack of suitable industrial lands in the settlement areas of Port Elgin and
Southampton and the demonstrated need over the planning horizon for employment lands.

Given the lack of suitable, space-expansive employment lands in Saugeen Shores and the consistency
with the requirements of PPS 2.3.6.1 to locate limited non-residential uses in prime agricultural areas, a
Bruce County Official Plan Amendment to permit a pre-cast concrete and PVC fabricating facilities on lands
in an Agricultural Area can be justified.

6.3.3 MINIMUM DISTANCE SEPARATION

Section 5.5.11 Provincial Minimum Distance Separation required that new land uses, including the
expansion of existing or the establishment of any non-agricultural uses including the creation of lots, and
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new or expanding livestock facilities shall comply with the Provincial Minimum Distance Separation
Formulae (as amended from time to time).

Discussion

The air photo shows a barn is +/- 655 m from the proposed new zone. This barn is outside of the 460 m
screening area and the new zone is not expected to have an impact on the existing barn.

Total: 677.17 m |8

Figure 3: Barns in the immediate vicinity

6.3.4 PROPOSED UPDATES TO THE BRUCE COUNTY OFFICIAL PLAN PRIME
AGRICULTURAL AREAS

Bruce County is in the process of updating the Official Plan and has completed a Land Evaluation and Area
Review (LEAR) Map. LEAR is a commonly used tool in Ontario that has been developed by the Ontario
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs to quantitatively evaluate the relative importance of lands for
agriculture based on the land's inherent characteristics and other factors affecting agricultural potential.
LEARs are often used as a starting point to identify prime agricultural areas.

There are two parts to a LEAR evaluation:

1. Land Evaluation (LE), which assesses inherent soil and climatic conditions for agriculture.
OMAFRA's CLI mapping is used to identify and compare the agricultural capability for common
field crops.

2. Area Review (AR), which considers other factors important to agricultural potential such as
fragmentation of the land base and how land is used.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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Together, these considerations form the basis to map the prime agricultural area.

Figure 4: Draft Land Evaluation and Area Review Map

The subject lands have been identified as a “Potential Prime Agricultural Area” (shown in green) which is
up for consideration to be re-designated from prime agricultural area to rural. One could surmise that that
this is due to the fragmented nature of the immediate vicinity, the soil being a subclass that is less fertile,
and the surrounding uses have that would make it more challenging to farm. While this is preliminary, and
not yet approved, it does indicate that the area is potentially suitable to the wider range of industrial uses
that are permitted in the Rural designation. It is noted that this map is considered draft, and unfortunately,
Carson’s Supply’s expansion timelines do not fit with waiting to see how these policies are eventually
implemented.

6.4 AGRICULTURAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

While an Agricultural Impact Assessment was not a submission requirement for a complete application, the
report author deemed it important to address Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs Draft
Agricultural Impact Assessment (AlA) Guidance due to the subject land’s location in a designated
Agricultural Area and proposed non-agricultural use. This section will assess potential impacts to
agriculture and highlight how the development concept proposes to mitigate potential impacts to agriculture,
farm operations and the surrounding area.

From current and historic air photos, the lands are presently farmed, and the lands have been used for
agriculture in the past.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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6.4.1 PROPOSED USE

The subject lands are proposed to be used for a manufacturing use. Approximately 13.5 hectares are
proposed to be re-zoned to permit this use. Much of this land will be for buffering and outdoor storage of
manufactured materials. This use cannot be considered an agricultural use, an agriculture-related use or
an on-farm diversified use, as permitted in Section 2.3.3 of the PPS, but the location of a non-agricultural
use in a Prime Agricultural Area is contemplated in Section 2.3.6 subject to tests that were discussed
previously in this report.

6.4.2 SOILS

The subject lands are in a large area of Class 2F, Brady Sandy Loam soils. The ‘F’ subclass of soils are
noted for their low natural fertility that is either correctable with careful management with the use of fertilizers
and soil amendments or is difficult to correct in a feasible way.

UR(URBAN]

BRADY, SANDY, LCAM

Figure 5: Soils Map

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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6.4.3 SLOPE AND TOPOGRAPHY

ol Oetiesa
8
&

Figure 6: Map with Elevations

The lands are relatively flat and slope gently from East to West.

6.4.4 IMPROVEMENTS TO AGRICULTURAL LANDS

A portion of the subject lands, as identified by the purple hatched area, have been tile drained.

Figure 7: Map of Tile Drainage

6.4.5 LAND USE CHARACTERISTICS

The site is made up of two 40-ha original Crown lots being Lots 9 & 10, Concession 12, former Township
of Saugeen. The Eastern portion, being Lot 10, remains with the 40-ha intact and has a farmstead
including a house and barn. The Western portion, being Lot 9, has been divided into a total of 10 lots.
The rail trail runs through the original Crown Lot as well.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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Historic air photos indicate the lands were used for row crops and/ or hay. The lands appear to have
been used as separate fields in the past, but appear to have been used as one large parcel more
recently.

Figure 8: 2015 Air Photo

——
Clud

Figure 9: 2020 Air Photo

6.4.6 ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY BENEFITS OF AGRICULTURE

Agriculture plays a large role in Bruce County’s economy and the County hosts 1928 farms, 22% of
Ontario’s beef production and more than half a million acres of farmland.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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6.4.7 ASSESSMENT OF IMPACTS

Section 3.2 of the Draft Agricultural Impact Assessment Guidelines speaks to avoiding, minimizing and
mitigating impacts and gives a number of impacts to be considered and/or avoided if possible.

Objective

Proposed

Avoid the loss and
fragmentation of agricultural
land

The development concept is not proposing lot creation or further
fragmentation and proposes to operate in the current parcel fabric.
The proposed use meets MDS.

The development concept locates the proposed non-agricultural uses
to the West, thereby locating the proposed non-agriculture use closer
to the established non-agricultural uses and maintaining a 40-hectare
parcel to continue to be farmed to the East. This helps ensure the
continuity of farmland and ensures large parcels to maintain flexibility
for the future.

Carson’s Supply wished to expand in the same area as they are
currently located. Alternative locations were evaluated located in the
settlement areas of Port Elgin and Southampton, but there are not
sufficient large-scale employment lands with a buffer between them
and residential uses available. Due to the past history of the
business receiving complaints, Carson’s wanted to prioritize locating
in an area that can provide a buffer between their business and
adjacent sensitive uses.

The subject lands are located in a highly fragmented portion of the
agricultural area, have a number of non-agricultural uses in the
immediate vicinity and are adjacent to two settlement areas. In
Bruce County’s analysis during the new Official Plan process, the
Land Evaluation and Area Review (LEAR) proposes the subject
lands as candidate lands to be changed from an Agricultural
designation to a Rural designation.

Avoid the loss of infrastructure,
services or assets important to
the surrounding agricultural
community and agri-food
sector

The portion of the subject lands proposed to host the non-agricultural
use are vacant and in a highly fragmented area. Outside of the
actual loss of land in agricultural production, they do not host
infrastructure, services or assets important to agriculture.

Avoid impacts from increased
non-agricultural road use in
agricultural areas

The development concept is located on an arterial road and in the
immediate vicinity of a provincial highway. A traffic study has been
completed to ensure no negative impact.

Avoid impacts from changes in
water quality and quantity

A stormwater management report was included in the submission to
ensure impacts to water quality and quantity are mitigated.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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Minimize impacts on farmland | To help minimize conflicts regarding noise, dust and odour a
and agricultural operations landscaped berm is proposed on three sides. The majority of the
property will continue to be farmed.

6.4.8 NET IMPACTS

The net impact on the Agricultural Area after the mitigative efforts proposed would be the loss of 13.5 ha
of agricultural lands in active production.

6.4.9 CONCLUSIONS

In conclusion, alternative locations were evaluated but it was found that there were not sufficiently large
enough lands to host the proposed use, the outdoor storage needs and provide a physical separation and
buffer between the use and adjacent residential uses in the settlement area.

The proponent wished to locate close to the Carson’s Supply location at 1071 Goderich St. in Port Elgin.
While there are very small pockets of lower capability farmland in the area, the vast majority of the land
surrounding Port Elgin are Classes 1-3, limiting opportunities to locate on lower priority farmland.

This section has shown that impacts to agriculture can be appropriately mitigated. The subject lands’
location in an already fragmented area, on and close to arterial roads, close to the settlement areas and in
an area that has several non-agricultural uses makes the proposed use’s location in a present Agricultural
Area justifiable.

6.5 ONTARIO D-6 GUIDELINES: COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES

6.5.1 INTRODUCTION

The D-6 guidelines are intended to be applied in the land use planning process to prevent or minimize
future land use problems due to the encroachment of sensitive land uses and industrial land uses on one
another. The guidelines assist in determining compatible mixed land uses and compatible intensification of
land uses. The guideline is intended to apply when a change in land use is proposed.

The proposed use can be considered a Class Il Industrial Facility as there will outdoor storage, frequent
movement of products and noise and dust may occasionally be perceived off the property.

6.5.2 INFLUENCE AREAS FOR INDUSTRIAL LAND USES

The potential influence for a Class Il facility is 300 m, but the actual influence can be determined after
buffers have been uses to reduce, eliminate or otherwise intercept adverse effects. The D-6 Guidelines
recommends a minimum separation distance between Class Il facilities and sensitive uses of 70 m.

6.5.3 PROPOSED SETBACKS

The proposed setback between the proposed buildings and outdoor storage areas to the surrounding
uses after the full buildout are:

1. 81 m from the outdoor storage area to the Western property line (Southport church)

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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2. 87 m from the outdoor storage area to the Northern property line (residential houses)
3. 416 m to the Eastern property line

4. 29 m to the Southern property line (commercial use)

6.5.4 CONCLUSIONS

The development concept exceeds the minimum separation distances recommended in the D6 Guidelines
between the proposed manufacturing use and the surrounding sensitive uses. Given these setbacks will
be coupled with mitigative measures such as the landscaped berms and any point source controls, the
development can be considered to be consistent with the D6 Guidelines.

6.6 TOWN OF SAUGEEN SHORES COMPREHENSIVE ZONING BY-LAW

The Corporation of the Town of Saugeen Shores By-Law number 75-2006, as amended, being a by-law to
regulate the use of lands and the character, location and use of buildings and structures in the Town of
Saugeen Shores.

Southport
Golf Caurse

Figure 10: Current Zoning Map, retrieved August 8, 2022, from Bruce County Maps

The property is currently zoned Agriculture (A). There appears to be a small zoning mapping error on the
property with the Institutional (1) zone from the church extended into the zoning of the property. Consistent

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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with Section 4.6.a ii) of the Zoning By-law, we would respectfully ask this to be updated as part of the zoning
by-law amendment.

The permitted uses of the Agriculture (A) zone do not permit manufacturing or an industrial and therefore
a Zoning By-Law Amendment is requested.

6.6.2 THE PROPOSED ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

A zoning of Agricultural Commercial Special (AC2- x) is requested. Permitted in this zone is “industrial use”
and “warehouse” which in conjunction, would be sufficient to permit the proposed PVC plant. These uses
are defined as:

"INDUSTRIAL USE" means the use of any land, building or structure for the purpose of manufacturing,
assembling, making, preparing, inspecting, ornamenting, finishing, treating, altering, repairing,
warehousing, storing or adapting for sale any goods, substance, article or thing, or any part thereof, and
the storage of building or construction equipment and materials, as distinguished from the buying and
selling of commodities and the supplying of personal services.

"WAREHOUSE" shall mean a building used or intended to be used for the bulk storage of goods,
merchandise or materials and shall include wholesale establishments.

Section 3.32 r ix) of the Zoning Bylaw states asphalt/concrete/tar plants must be specifically permitted in
the Zone, as such its requested that the amendment include a special provision to permit that use.

Regulations Required Provided
Lot Area (minimum) 4000 m?2 535,500 m2
Lot Frontage (minimum) 30.0m 566 m
Lot Depth (minimum) 40 m 4119 m
Front and Exterior Side Yard Depth (minimum) 15m 243 m
Interior Side Yard Width (minimum) 10m 187 m
Rear Yard Depth (minimum) 10m 100 m
Lot Coverage (maximum) 15% of lot area 0.7%
Building Height (maximum) 12m 10m
Landscaped Open Space (minimum) 10% of lot area Exceeds

6.6.3 REQUESTED AMENDMENTS:

A concrete plant is requested as a permitted use.

One amendment to the general provisions is requested. Section 3.22.1 f) of the zoning bylaw restricts open
storage to not cover more than 35% of the lot area of any lot nor exceed twice the ground floor area of the
main building on the lot.

The proposed buildings are 3843 m?, and there is 60,700 m? of outdoor storage proposed, which is
significantly more than twice the size of the building. Due to the large nature of the pre-cast concrete
structures that are proposed to be manufactured at the facility, they simply take up more room to store and
require more room to be loaded and unloaded.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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It should be noted that the Zoning By-law has a Light Industrial Zone that industrial uses within the
Settlement Area are placed into. This zone does not permit “industrial uses” being those uses that
manufacture products such as what is proposed for the Carson’s Supply expansion. Rather, the Light
Industrial zone permits “industry, non-effluent producing” which does not utilize process waters and which
does not produce waste waters during the manufacturing process. Just to highlight, that no matter where
the development concept located, it was going to require a Zoning By-law Amendment and that the only
zone which permits ‘industrial uses’ as of right is the requested zoning of A2.

CONCLUSIONS & PLANNING OPINION

The proposed Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment are justified and represent good
planning for the following reasons:

1. The proposal is consistent with the Planning Act, and the Provincial Policy Statement.

2. There is a lack of suitable employment lands within the settlement area that offer the required
buffer between residential and manufacturing uses, along with a size that is sufficient for the
proponents’ outdoor storage needs.

3. Section 2.3.6 of the Provincial Policy Statement permits limited non-residential uses in
Agricultural Areas and the proposed meets the required tests:

a. The land is not a speciality crop area.
b. The proposed use complies with Minimum Distance Separation.

c. As per the Plan the Bruce: Good Growth Final Report, dated September 2022, the
Town of Saugeen Shores has a projected shortfall of employment lands over the
planning term. Further, the report identifies a lack of larger employment parcels
County-wide which is what this use needs and proposes.

d. Several alternate locations were considered but none were found to be suitable.

4. The proposal is consistent with the Draft Agricultural Impact Assessment Guidelines from the
Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs and impacts to the surrounding
agricultural land will be mitigates.

5. The proposal is consistent with Ontario’s D-6 Guidelines;
6. The proposal contributes to employment opportunities in the Town of Saugeen Shores;

7. The proposed development well poised to take use of existing arterial roads.

Thank you for your consideration of this application, please contact the undersigned with any questions
pertaining to this report.

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

H:\Carson's Supply\05027- Expansion\Reports\PJR\Planning Justification Report.docx
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) E u B I D E MEETING SUMMARY

ENGINEERING INC

Carson’s Supply Expansion
05027

Date: October 3, 2022 Project: 05027
Time: 11:00 am Location: Virtual

Attendees: Mr. Adam Stanley, County of Bruce
Ms. Coreena Smith, County of Bruce
Mr. Jay Pausner, Town of Saugeen Shores
Ms. Dana Mitchell, Town of Saugeen Shores
Mr. Jason Carson, Proponent
Mr. Roger Carson, Proponent
Mr. Roger Carson Jr., Proponent
Ms. Dana Kieffer, Cobide Engineering Inc.

Regrets:

Ms. Jessica Pegelo, MTO

Mr. Tyler Shantz, MMAH
Purpose: Pre- Consultation Meeting
Distribution:  All Present & Regrets

Prepared By: Dana Kieffer

On October 3, 2022, a pre-consultation meeting was held to review the submission requirements related
to the expansion of Carson’s Supply and the establishment of a pre-cast concrete plant and PVC
manufacturing facility located at the property with Roll #411044000203200.

The following is a review of items discussed.

1.0 OVERVIEW OF PROPERTY

The proposal would establish two facilities: a pre-cast concrete plant and
a PVC manufacturing plant at the location.

Road connections are currently proposed to Bruce Road 3.

2.0 OFFICIAL PLAN
, . L . Action:
The property’s current land use designation is Agriculture. Although the Cobide
property is a candidate to have its designation changed to ‘Rural’ through
the Land Evaluation and Area Review (LEAR) process through the on-
going process to develop a new Bruce County Official Plan.

A County Official Plan Amendment will be required to facilitate the
development.

3.0 ZONING BY-LAW

HANOVER 517 10" Street, Hanover, Ontario NAN 1R1 Tel.: (519) 506-5959






Carson’s Supply Expansion
Meeting Summary — October 3, 2022 Page 2

The property is currently zoned ‘Agricultural (A) and therefore a Zoning éf)g?c'lwe
By-Law Amendment will be required to allow for industrial development
of the property.
4.0 PLANNING JUSTIFICATION REPORT
. . . . . . Action:
It is proposed to utilize PPS Section 2.3.6 Non-Agriculture Uses in Prime Cobide
Agricultural Areas to permit the proposed development. The PJR will be
required to address the criteria in the PPS to the satisfaction of the
County and TSS.
TSS would like further analysis why the proposed development cannot
be accommodated at the Kuehl Electric or Willies Electric locations.
Compatibility to surrounding residential uses must also be addressed.
5.0 FUNCTIONAL SERVICING REPORT
A FSR will be required to address the proposed private servicing, ézt;’)?c'l,e
watermain capacity and pressure. It was indicated that a private well and
septic system would service the industrial function but the development
would connect to Town water for domestic use, if possible.
6.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
. . . Action:
A stormwater management report will be required to address the impacts Cobide
of the development.
7.0 TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
. ) Action:
Mr. Stanley indicated the need for a Traffic Impact Study as well as a Cobide

geotechnical review of Bruce Road 3 at the location.
8.0 OTHER BUSINESS

Ms. Smith confirmed there was an employment lands shortfall in TSS as
per the recent Bruce County Growth Discussion Paper.

The meeting adjourned at 11:30 am.

The foregoing is considered to be a true and accurate record of all items discussed. If any discrepancies
or inconsistencies are noted, please contact the writer immediately.

COBIDE ENGINEERING INC.

Dana Kieffer, M.Sc. (Planning), MCIP, RPP
Senior Development Planner

HANOVER 517 10" Street, Hanover, Ontario N4AN 1R1 Tel.: (519) 506-5959
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INTRODUCTION

Cobide Engineering Inc. was retained to complete a Functional Servicing Report in support of the Bruce
County Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment applications for the property located at
5331 Bruce Road 3 (hereinafter called the subject lands).

A copy of the proposed Site Plan has been included in Appendix A as Drawing SP1.
1.1 LOCATION

The subject lands are located at 5331 Bruce Road 3 and are known legally as Lots 10 & 11, Concession
12, geograpghic Township of Saugeen; Plan 154, Part Lots K & L. The subject lands have frontage on
Highway 21 and Bruce Road 3, with acess obtained from Bruce Road 3. The lands are located between
the communities of Port Elgin and Southampton in a mixed use area.

The lands are 53 hectares in total and are host to a house and a barn situated on the Eastern side of the
property.

ure : hoto, retrieved Mac 28, 2023

1.2 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

The applications will facilitate a partial relocation and expansion of Carson’s Supply, a 40-year-old
commercial business located in Port Elgin and currently operates out of 1071 Goderich St., Port Elgin

Carson’s Supply is a wholesale provider of plumbing, HVAC, waterworks supplies and precast concrete
structures. They have a custom PVC injection and extrusion facility at their Port Elgin warehouse that
ships throughout North America.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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The Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment would permit the construction of a concrete
manufacturing plant, that would produce products such as catch basins, septic holding tanks and
electrical utility vaults. It would also provide ample outdoor storage for these large materials.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

The water distribution system will be sized based on the existing conditions at the connection to the
municipal system and the development demands which are determined by the Ministry of the
Environment (MOE) Design Guidelines for Drinking-Water Systems (2008).

2.1 DESIGN CRITERIA

The water distribution system will be design in accordance MOE guidelines which state the system
“should be designed to satisfy the greater of the following demands:

e  Maximum day demand plus fire flow; or,
e Peak hour demand

The maximum day demand and peak hour demand are based on the projected water consumption from
the development and the fire flow is based on the type of the development.

The system will require modelling during the detailed design stage to ensure the water pressure
throughout the system is within the requirements of the MOE.

Based on MOE guidelines, the minimum pressure at ground level at all points in the distribution system
under maximum day demand plus fire flow conditions are to be 140 kPa (20 psi). The normal operation
pressure should be between 350 kPa (50 psi) to 480 kPa (70 psi). There shall be no point in the
distribution system that has a normal operating pressure of less than 275 kPa (40 psi). The maximum
pressure in the pipe cannot exceed 700 kPa (100 psi).

2.2 WATER CONSUMPTION

The system will be designed based on a domestic water demand of 950 L/water closet/day (per OBC)
and 150 L/ Loading Bay/day. The peaking factors will be derived from Table 3-1 of the MOE Design
Guidelines. There is an estimated to be three water closets and six loading bays per building for a total of
9 water closets and 18 loading bays to be connected to the municipal system.

Table 1 below summarizes the projected maximum day and peak hour demands for the proposed
development.

Table 1 - Proposed Water Demands

Demand Consumption Peaking Peak Rate Peak Rate
(L/day) Factor (L/day) (L/s)
Maximum Day 11,250 275 30,938 0.36
Peak Hour 11,250 4.0 45,000 0.52

The proposed concrete structure production facility will not be supplied from the municipal water system.
A new well will be installed on the property to supply the proposed production component of the facility.

2.3 FIRE FLOW

The AWWA Manual of Water Supply Practices M31 — Distribution System Requirements for Fire
Protection and the Fire Underwriters Survey document Water Supply for Public Fire Protection will
determine the required fire flows.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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The fire flows are dependent upon many factors including the type of construction materials, building
height and density of the development.

The fire flow requirements for a commercial building are expected to be 9000 L/min which would need to
be sustained for 1.5 hours.

2.4 DESIGN FLOW RATES

The watermain within the development will be required to maintain the aforementioned pressure while
supplying 150.4 L/s (MDD + Fire Flow). The pipes should be designed with a pipe roughness C-value of
110 which is typically used to represent PVC pipe.

2.5 WATERMAIN CONFIGURATION

The proposed watermain will be connected to the municipal system on Highway 21. There is currently a
500mm diameter watermain on the east side of Highway 21. This watermain will provide service to the
proposed development via a proposed connection at the southwest corner of the site. No highway
crossing will be required. Detailed servicing drawings will be provided during the Site Plan Approval
process.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM

3.1 ASSESSMENT OF SANITARY SERVICING OPTIONS

The following sewage servicing options to be considered in this report include the following:
1. Gravity sanitary sewers only;
2. On-site gravity sewers with sewage pump station and forcemain;

3. Individual On-site sewage treatment and disposal systems.
3.11 GRAVITY SANITARY SEWERS ONLY (OPTION 1)

The first option includes constructing a new gravity sanitary sewer system from the development and
connecting it by gravity to the closest municipal sewage collection system which is located at South
Street and Meadow Lane in Southampton.

Due to topographical constraints and distance from the site, a gravity connection to the Southampton
sewage collection system is not feasible. Therefore, no further review of this option will be undertaken.

3.1.2 ON-SITE GRAVITY SANITARY SEWERS WITH SEWAGE PUMP STATION
(OPTION 2)

This option is similar to Option 1 in that a new gravity sanitary sewer collection system would be
constructed within the site. A pumping station would be constructed on site to pump the raw sewage from
the proposed development through a new 1.5km forcemain to the existing sanitary sewer system as
discussed above.

Due to the required length of the forcemain and the MTO'’s policy of not allowing private infrastructure
within their corridor which is required along a significant portion of the proposed route, a dedicated
forcemain and pumping station from the proposed site to Southampton would not be feasible. Therefore,
no further review of this option will be undertaken.

3.1.3  INDIVDUAL ON-SITE SEWAGE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SYSTEM
(OPTION 3)

This option would involve constructing an on-site sewage treatment and disposal systems for the
proposed buildings. The proposed septic system would require MECP approval due to the proposed peak
flow. The property is large enough to support a septic system without concern for the nitrate loading at
the downstream property line. This option is the most cost effective solution to provide sanitary servicing
to the proposed development and the only viable option therefore is the recommended preferred
alternative.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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STORM SEWER SYSTEM

The preliminary stormwater management report for this site is provided under separate cover. For
existing and proposed drainage conditions including quality and quantity control provisions please refer to
the preliminary stormwater management report.

Swales will be used to convey stormwater around and through the site to the proposed SWM Pond that
will control runoff to pre development peak flows at the downstream discharge point.

Detailed grading drawings will be provided during the Site Plan Approval process.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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GRADING & EROSION AND SEDIMENT
CONTROL

5.1

CONSTRUCTION STAGE

The following are details regarding the erosion and sediment control measures to be implemented during
construction:

Placement of siltation fences in all areas where surface drainage flows over disturbed areas.
Siltation fence shall remain erect until construction is completed and the upstream area is fully re-
vegetated.

The stormwater management pond should be constructed first to act as a sedimentation pond
during construction. Following construction, the pond is to be excavated to final grades and all
sediments removed and disposed of in a manner that will not impact downstream properties;

Placement of temporary rock check dams within swales and any other locations where a
concentrated flow of runoff may occur. All proposed drainage swales are to be seeded during
construction;

Installation of filter cloth under all new and existing catchbasin grates until paving is completed;

Mud mats will be placed at construction accesses to keep public roadways free from debris
during the construction period.

Once the ground surface of the site has been stabilized, the rock check dams and siltation fences can
then be removed.

During the construction phase, it is important to ensure that erosion/sediment control is in place to ensure
against transport of sediment into the existing downstream drainage ditches.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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UTILITIES

6.1 STREETLIGHTS

The configuration of the streetlights will be designed in accordance with municipal standards. Concrete
poles shall be used with LED streetlights. Lighting will be installed to ensure that lighting does not spill
onto neighbouring properties in accordance with Saugeen Shores By-laws.

6.2 ELECTRICITY

The development is currently shown within the Hydro One service area. Hydro One will be responsible for
preparing and approving the design of the electrical distribution system.

6.3 NATURAL GAS

Enbridge will be responsible for completing the design of the natural gas service to the proposed site and
obtaining the necessary Municipal Consents.

6.4 TELEPHONE/ CABLE TV/INTERNET

Bruce Telecom and Eastlink will be given the opportunity to provide telephone, cable TV and internet
services to the site. They will complete their own design and obtain the necessary Municipal Consents.

Sincerely,

Cobide Engineering Inc.

P . fro

Travis Burnside, P. Eng. T. L. BURNSIDE

100199868

H:\Carsons Supply\05027- Expansion\Reports\FSR - Dec 23\2023-11-29 Carsons FSR 05027.docx
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INTRODUCTION

Cobide Engineering Inc. was retained to complete a stormwater management report in support of the
Bruce County Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment applications for the property
located at 5331 Bruce Road 3 (hereinafter called the subject lands).

A copy of the proposed Site Plan has been included in Appendix A as Drawing SP1.
11 LOCATION

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

1.3 SCOPE OF WORK

The stormwater management report addresses the design and implementation of drainage and
stormwater management facilities for the development.

The report includes:

e Details for erosion protection and sedimentation control for short term, construction phase and
the long term.

e Quantity Control
¢ Quality Control

e Provisions for major flows through the development

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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DRAINAGE CHARACTERISTICS

21 REGIONAL

The site is not located near any major watercourses.

2.2 LOCAL
There is a ditch along Highway 21 that conveys runoff from the site.
2.3 SOILS

According to the Bruce County Soils Survey (January, 1954), the soils on the site are classified as Brady
Sandy Loam (Bsl). Brady Sandy Loams are described as well sorted sandy outwash. These soils are
typically associated with the Hydrologic Soils Group (HSG) AB.

2.4 DISCHARGE POINTS
For the purposes of the report, Discharge Point #1 the Highway 21 roadside ditch.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
No 05027
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STORMWATER CONTROL

The design guidelines and constraints utilized in the stormwater management review for the development
are as follows:

3.1 DESIGN GUIDELINES

The main design guideline utilized in the review is the Ministry of Transportation “Stormwater
Management Requirements for Land Development Proposals” dated 2009, updated April 2022.

The SWM guidelines details the methodologies for the preparation and evaluation of urban/suburban
stormwater management measures. The document provides direction on the design of drainage/
stormwater management facilities required to meet the goals and objectives of the various Municipal/
Provincial Review Agencies.

The SWM report also provides information on the long-term operation and maintenance techniques for
stormwater management facilities that will be implemented in the development of the lands.

The storm sewer design criteria to be used are as follows:

¢ Runoff from the 5 year storm is to be conveyed to a sufficient outlet via a combination of storm
sewers and grass swales/ditches;

e Major storm runoff (i.e. >5 years) is to be contained within specified drainage corridors and not
adversely impact any of the proposed units within the development or off-site properties;

3.2 METHODOLOGY FOR COMPUTING STORMWATER RUNOFF

As noted previously, the objectives of the Stormwater Management (SWM) Plan for development is to
ensure that there is an adequate outlet to convey the runoff from the minor and major storm systems.

The objectives are to be achieved by completing the following tasks:
i. Determining the existing drainage conditions.
ii. Determining the post-development drainage conditions.

iii. Design stormwater management measures that meet the criteria of the Town of Saugeen
Shores, Ministry of Transportation (MTO) and Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority
(SVCA).

iv. Summarize the analysis by identifying conclusions and recommendations.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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EXISTING CONDITIONS

The site was previously used for agricultural purposes. The site is tile drained currently. The existing tile
drains within the development area will be removed as part of the development of the site. The remaining
tiles will be re-routed to outlet to the proposed swales.

The existing catchments areas are delineated in Drawing SWM1 in Appendix A.

Summarized below is a description of each of the drainage catchment areas.

4.1

CATCHMENT AREA 101

This catchment area encompasses the entire development area and the lands upstream that
discharge through the development site. It does not encompass the area to the south of the
proposed development impact area that is remaining unchanged from current conditions.

Surface water flows by sheet flow and discharges to the Highway 21 roadside ditch either directly
or through private property to the Carlisle Street ditch which then outlets the Highway 21 roadside
ditch. All of the runoff crosses to the west side of Highway 21 through a 750mm diameter cross
culvert between Carlisle Street and the Saugeen Rail Trail.

Catchment Area 101 is considered to discharge at Discharge Point #1 for the purposes of this
report.

Drainage Area = 43.73 ha.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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PROPOSED CONDITIONS

The proposed catchment area boundaries are delineated on Drawing SWM2 in Appendix A.

Summarized below is a description of each of the drainage catchment areas.

5.1

CATCHMENT 201

This catchment area encompasses the entire development and the lands upstream that
discharge through the development site.

Surface water flows by a combination of sheet flow and ditching, discharging to the proposed
SWM Pond and outletting to Highway 21 roadside ditch.

Catchment Area 201 is considered to discharge at Discharge Point #1 for the purposes of this
report.

Drainage Area = 42.43 ha

CATCHMENT 202

This catchment area encompasses the Highway 21 side of the berm that cannot be conveyed to
the SWM Pond.

Surface water flows by sheet flow and discharges to the Highway 21 roadside ditch.

Catchment Area 202 is considered to discharge at Discharge Point #1 for the purposes of this
report.

Drainage Area = 1.27 ha

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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QUANTITY CONTROL MODELLING

The hydrologic modelling software PCSWMM Version 7.5.3406 Professional 2D was used to determine
the pre and post-development peak flows of the 2 yr., 5 yr., 25 yr., 50 yr., and 100 yr. storm events (6
hour duration, SCS Type II, AMC |l storm, site specific MTO IDF Parameters). The SWM design was
completed on the basis that all post development flows must match pre-development levels to the
respective outlets. A copy of the IDF Parameters has been included in Appendix B.

The pre-development and post development parameters and model outputs are contained in Appendix C
and D respectively.

6.1 DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

The intent of stormwater quantity control is to limit the flows under proposed conditions to existing levels
or less to protect the downstream watercourses, infrastructure and properties.

Minor flows from the majority of the development will be conveyed to the proposed stormwater
management facility via a new storm sewer collection system that will be constructed throughout the
development. This storm sewer collection system will be designed to accommodate all flows up to and
including the 5 year storm event.

Maijor flows (>5 year), will be conveyed overland within the road allowance of each street.

Due to the increase in impervious area, stormwater quantity control will be required for the site. The
design of the stormwater management facility has assumed a free outlet from the pond.

6.2 SWM FACILITY CHARACTERISTICS

The stormwater management facility and outlet structure have been designed to control peak runoff rates
as well as conform to MOE best practices.

In order to provide the above required volumes and discharges, the following SWM Facility geometry is
being proposed:

Table 6.1 — SWM Facility Geometry

SWM FACILITY DETAILED DESIGN
Side Slope 4:1
SWM Facility 201.50 m (Forebay)
Bottom 202.00 m (elsewhere)
Permanent Pool 203.00 m
Top Elevation 205.00 m
g n Bz 204.01 m
Elevation

The outlet configuration for the SWM Facility will be as follows:
e A 300mm outlet pipe with a 225mm orifice that will outlet towards the existing ditch.

o A 450mm outlet pipe that will outlet towards the existing ditch.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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e An emergency overflow weir will allow for storm events larger than the 100 year storm or if the
outlets are blocked to drain away from the pond. The weir will be 3m wide with 5:1 sideslopes
and a depth of 0.3m. The emergency overflow weir will be located above the 100 year water
level.

As seen by the proposed inverts, the proposed stormwater management facility will be constructed as a
wet pond.

6.2.1 SWM FACILITY PERFORMANCE

Below is a summary of the hydraulic performance of the stormwater SWM Facility during the various
storm events.

Table 6.2 — SWM Facility Performance

RETURN PERIOD ELEVATION STORAGE DISCHARGE
(m) (md) (I/s)
2 Year 203.34 2,260 54
5 Year 203.50 3,760 72
25 Year 203.80 6,775 120
50 Year 203.91 7,895 172
100 Year 204.01 8,976 233

6.3 MODELLING RESULTS

Based upon the above outlet structure, the following summarizes the pre-development and post
development peak flows to the discharge point.

Table 6.3 - Peak Flow Summary

DISCHARGE POINT #1

RETURN (I/s)
PERIOD
PRE POST
2 Year 86 62
5 Year 175 103
25 Year 380 170
50 Year 490 200
100 Year 614 233

The following summarizes the pre-development and post development results at each discharge point:

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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6.3.1 DISCHARGE POINT #1

The peak flows in all storm events in the post development scenario are below pre-development
levels.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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QUALITY CONTROL

To meet the requirements of the SVCA and the MECP, stormwater quality control will be provided for the
proposed development. The MOE SWMP&D Manual recommends that the required level of protection be
associated with the habitat sensitivity of the receiving watercourse. The ultimate receiving watercourse for
this development is the Lake Huron. For the purposes of this report, an ‘Enhanced’ water quality
protection level will be implemented in accordance to the MOE 2003 Guidelines and SVCA requirements.

The use of a wet pond for this development was selected as an ‘end of pipe’ control measure. The basic
function of a wetland or wet pond is to remove pollutants from runoff through detention. A wet pond SWM
Facility was selected for this development.

The wet pond facility will have a forebay that will be the primary location for sediment removal. The
forebay will be designed during the detailed design stages in conformance with the MOE design
guidelines to achieve an “Enhanced” Level of protection.

7.1.1 EXTENDED DETENTION

The MOE guidelines require that extended detention SWM facility’s provide quality treatment of 40m3/ha
and discharge it over a minimum of 24 hours. Having an extended detention component in the quality
ponds provides settlement of suspended solids.

The following table summarizes the volume requirements based the MOE Guidelines.
Table 7.1 - Water Quality Requirements

POSTDEV  MOE VOLUME REQUIREMENT MOE PERMANENT
DRAINAGE FOR ENHANCED PROTECTION  EXTENDED POOL
AREA BASED ON 13.1% IMPERVIOUS DETENTION  REQUIRED
(ha) (95 m*ha) (40 m¥ha) (m?)
42.43 ha 4,030 m? 1,697 m3 2,333 m?

The wet pond facility will provide 28,970 m? of active storage volume which will release the 25mm storm
event over more than 24 hours. The pond will provide a permanent pool volume of 4,920 m3. The SWM
facility will feature an outlet that draws from the bottom to limit the thermal variations of the SWM facility
water discharging into the natural environment.

Cobide Engineering Inc.
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EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

8.1

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
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CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS

The above report presented the Preliminary Stormwater Management Plan in support of the Zoning By-
law amendment, Official Plan Amendment and Site Plan Approval Applications. Based on the findings of
this report, the following conclusions are made:

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

3. Stormwater quality will be provided by a Forebay in the wet pond SWM Facility.
The development to provide an “Enhanced” Level of protection for the site.

Based on the above conclusions of this report, it is recommended that the above Stormwater
Management Report for the site be submitted to the County of Bruce, Town of Saugeen Shores, Ministry
of Transportation and SVCA to obtain approvals.

Sincerely,

Cobide Engineering Inc.

OM W’ T L. BURNSIDE

100199868

Travis Burnside, P. Eng.

C:\Users\Admin\Documents\Cobide\Take Home\SWM\2023-11-29 Carsons Expansion SWM Report.docx
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5/15/23, 9:14 AM

Active coordinate

44° 27' 45" N, 81° 21' 14" W (44.462500,-81.354167)
Retrieved: Mon, 15 May 2023 13:07:48 GMT
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Location summary
These are the locations in the selection.
IDF Curve: 44° 27' 45" N, 81° 21' 14" W (44.462500,-81.354167)
Results
An IDF curve was found.
Coordinate: 44.462500, -81.354167
IDF curve year: 2010
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Coefficient summary

IDF Curve: 44° 27' 45" N, 81° 21' 14" W (44.462500,-81.354167)
Retrieved: Mon, 15 May 2023 13:07:48 GMT

Data year: 2010
IDF curve year: 2010

Return period 2-yr 5-yr 10-yr
A 221 295 34.3
B -0.699 -0.699 -0.699

Statistics

Rainfall intensity (mm hr'1)

Duration 5-min 10-min 15-min 30-min
2-yr 125.5 77.3 58.2 35.9
S-yr 167.6 103.2 77.7 47.9
10-yr 194.8 120.0 90.4 55.7
25-yr 2295 141.4 106.5 65.6
50-yr 255.0 157.1 118.3 72.9
100-yr 280.6 172.8 130.2 80.2

Rainfall depth (mm)

Duration 5-min 10-min 15-min 30-min
2-yr 10.5 12.9 14.6 17.9
5-yr 14.0 17.2 19.4 23.9
10-yr 16.2 20.0 22,6 27.8
25-yr 19.1 23.6 26.6 32.8
50-yr 21.3 26.2 29.6 36.4
100-yr 23.4 28.8 32.5 40.1

Terms of Use
You agree to the Terms of Use of this site by reviewing, using, or interpreting these data.

Ontario Ministry of Transportation | Terms and Conditions | About
Last Modified: September 2016

www.eng.uwaterloo.ca/~dprincz/mto_site/results_out.shtml?coords=44.466505,-81.357711

25-yr
40.4
-0.699

1-hr
221
29.5
34.3
40.4
44.9
49.4

1-hr
221
29.5
34.3
40.4
44.9
494

IDF Curve Look-up - Ministry of Transportation

2-hr
13.6
18.2
211
24.9
27.7
304

2-hr
27.2
36.3
42.3
49.8
55.3
60.9

50-yr
44.9
-0.699

6-hr
6.3
8.4
9.8
1.5
12.8
141

6-hr
37.9
50.6
58.8
69.3
77.0
84.7

12-hr
3.9
52
6.0
71
7.9
8.7

12-hr
467
62.3
72.5
85.4
94.9
104.4

100-yr

49.4

-0.699

24-hr
24
3.2
3.7
4.4
4.9
54

24-hr
57.5
76.8
89.3
105.2
116.9
128.6

2/2
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Table A1 Parameter Summary Table

SWM Conditions

Drainage Flow Total Manning's
. Model . Area 9 Gradient| Imperv. . 9 CN
Outlet Location Description Channel | Length n
Catchment ID (ha) (%) Connected (Perv.)
(m) (m) o (Perv.)
(%)
101 Pre Development 43.70 355 1231 1.3 0.0 0.14 69.4
201 Post Development 42.43 355 1195 1.3 13.1 0.16 68.2
202 Maijority of Development 1.27 355 36 33.0 0.0 0.30 60.0






Table A.2 Site Soils: (as per Ontario Soil Survey Report No. 35 for Wellington County)

Soil Type Hydologic Soil Group
Brady Sandy Loam AB
TABLE OF CURVE NUMBERS (CN's)
Land Use Hydrologic Soil Type
A AB B BC C CD D Manning's 'n’
Meadow 50 54 58 64.5 71 74.5 78 0.4 continuous grass
Woodlot 50 55.3 60.5 67 73.5 76.8 80 0.4 forests
Long Grass 55 60 65 72 79 81.5 84 0.3 natural, not maintained
Lawns 60 65.5 71 77 83 86 89 0.25 maintained
Pasture/Range 58 61.5 65 70.5 76 78.5 81 0.17 farm pasture
Crop 66 70 74 78 82 84 86 0.13 farm land
Fallow (bare) 77 82 86 89 91 93 94 0.05 idle farm land (bare)
Built-up 60 65.5 71 77 83 89 89 0.25  |lLawns Existing
|[Streets, paved 98 98 98 98 98 98 98 0.01
HYDROLOGIC SOIL TYPE (%)
Hydrologic Soil Type
Catchment A AB B BC c b b TOTAL
101 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 100
201 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 100
202 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 100
LAND USE (%)
Lon Pasture Fallow Imperv. Not Imperv
Catchment Meadow | Woodlot 9 Lawns Crop Connected perv. Total
Grass Range (Bare) Connected
(Rooftops)
101 0 4 0 0 0.0 96.0 0 0.0 0.0 100
201 0 4 10 0 0 73 0 0.0 13.1 100
202 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 100
CURVE NUMBER (CN)
Imperv. Not | Weighted .
Catchment Meadow | Woodlot Long Lawns Pasture Crop Fallow Built-up Connected CN - Man'nllng s
Grass Range (Bare) ) n
(Rooftops) | Pervious
101 54 55.3 60 65.5 61.5 70 82 65.5 90 69.4 0.14
201 54 55.3 60 66 62 70 82 66 90 68.2 0.16
202 54 55.3 60 65.5 61.5 70 82 65.5 90 60.0 0.30






Table A.3: Impervious Area Determination

Existing Conditions

Area of Total Area Impervious Area
Concern (ha) Connected
(ha) (%)
101 43.70 0.00 0.0
201 42.43 5.55 13.1

202 1.27 0.00 0.0

Impervious Area

Not Connected (Rooftops)

(ha)
0.00

0.00

0.00

(%)
0.0

0.0

0.0

Total
(%)

0.0
13.1

0.0





Table A.3 - Impervious Area Determination

Catchment

101 0 mof 20
0 Impervious Area 148
0  Roof Area 220

201 0 mof 10
1 Impervious Area 55450
0  Roof Area 220

202 0 mof 20
0  Impervious Area 1380
0  Roof Area 2025

m wide ROW @ 45% imperv.

m? @ 100% imperv.
m? @ 100% imperv.

m wide ROW @ 50% imperv.

m? @ 100% imperv.
m? @ 100% imperv.

m wide ROW @ 45% imperv.

m? @ 100% imperv.
m? @ 100% imperv.

Imperv. Area
0.00 ha

0.00 ha
0.00 ha
0.00 ha

0.00 ha
5.55 ha
0.00 ha
5.55 ha

0.00 ha
0.00 ha
0.00 ha
0.00 ha

Imperv %
0.0 %
0.0 %
0.0 %

0.0 %
13.1 %
0.0 %

0.0 %
0.0 %
0.0 %
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CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION - SWM MODEL — MODEL DETAILS

[TITLE]

;;Project Title/Notes

[OPTIONS]

;;Option Value

FLOW_UNITS LPS

INFILTRATION CURVE_NUMBER

FLOW_ROUTING DYNWAVE

LINK OFFSETS ELEVATION

MIN_SLOPE 0

ALLOW_PONDING NO

SKIP_STEADY STATE NO

START DATE 5/8/2023

START_TIME 00:00:00

REPORT_START DATE 5/8/2023

REPORT_ START TIME 00:00:00

END_DATE 5/9/2023

END_ TIME 00:00:00

SWEEP_START 1/1

SWEEP_END 12/31

DRY DAYS 0

REPORT STEP 00:01:00

WET STEP 00:05:00

DRY STEP 00:05:00

ROUTING_STEP 5

RULE STEP 00:00:00

INERTIAL DAMPING PARTIAL

NORMAL FLOW LIMITED BOTH

FORCE MAIN EQUATION H-W

VARIABLE STEP 0.75

LENGTHENING_ STEP 0

MIN_ SURFAREA 0

MAX TRIALS 8

HEAD TOLERANCE 0

SYS FLOW_TOL 5

LAT FLOW_TOL 5

MINIMUM STEP 0.5

THREADS 8

[EVAPORATION]

; ;Data Source Parameters

CONSTANT 0.0

DRY_ ONLY NO

[RAINGAGES]

; ;Name Format Interval SCF Source

SCS_Type_II_25mm INTENSITY 0:06 1.0 TIMESERIES SCS_Type_II_25mm

SCS Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO INTENSITY 0:06 1.0 TIMESERIES SCS Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO
SCS Type II 50.4mm 5yr MTO INTENSITY 0:06 1.0 TIMESERIES SCS Type II 50.4mm 5yr MTO
SCS_Type_II_69.3mm_25yr MTO INTENSITY 0:06 1.0 TIMESERIES SCS_Type II_69.3mm_25yr MTO
SCS_Type_II_77mm_50yr_MTO INTENSITY 0:06 1.0 TIMESERIES SCS_Type_II_77mm_50yr_MTO
SCS_Type II 84.7mm_100yr MTO INTENSITY 0:06 1.0 TIMESERIES SCS Type II 84.7mm_100yr MTO
[SUBCATCHMENTS]

; s Name Rain Gage Outlet Area $Imperv Width %Slope CurbLen SnowPack
101 SCS_Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO OF1 43.734 0 355 1.3 0
201 SCS Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO SUL 42.43 13.1 355 1.3 0
202 SCS Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO J1 1.27 0 355 33 0
[SUBAREAS]

;s Subcatchment N-Imperv N-Perv S—-Imperv S-Perv PctZero RouteTo PctRouted
101 0.01 0.14 0.05 0.05 25 OUTLET

201 0.01 0.16 0.05 0.05 25 OUTLET

202 0.01 0.3 0.05 0.05 25 OUTLET
[INFILTRATION]

; 7 Subcatchment Paraml Param2 Param3 Paramé Paramb





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION - SWM MODEL — MODEL DETAILS

101 69.4 12.7 7 0 0

201 68.2 12.7 7 0 0

202 60 12.7 7 0 0

[JUNCTIONS]

; s Name Elevation MaxDepth InitDepth SurDepth Aponded

Jl 202.8 2 0 0 0

[OUTFALLS]

; ;Name Elevation Type Stage Data Gated Route To

OF1 0 FREE NO

OF2 202.6 FREE NO

[STORAGE]

; ;Name Elev. MaxDepth InitDepth Shape Curve Name/Params SurDepth Fevap Psi
Ksat IMD

SUl 201.5 3.5 1.5 TABULAR Pond 0 0
[CONDUITS]

; s Name From Node To Node Length Roughness InOffset OutOffset InitFlow
MaxFlow

C1l Jl OF2 52.345 0.01 202.8 202.6 0 0
[ORIFICES]

; ; Name From Node To Node Type Offset Qcoeff Gated CloseTime
OR1 SUl Jl SIDE 203 0.65 NO 0

OR2 SuUl Jl SIDE 203.7 0.65 NO 0
[XSECTIONS]

;:Link Shape Geoml Geom2 Geom3 Geom4 Barrels Culvert

C1l TRIANGULAR 1 6 0 0 1

OR1 CIRCULAR 0.225 0 0 0

OR2 CIRCULAR 0.45 0 0 0

[LOSSES]

;:Link Kentry Kexit Kavg Flap Gate Seepage

[CURVES]

; ;Name Type X-Value Y-Value

Pond Storage 0 275

Pond 0.49 445

Pond 0.5 4200

Pond 1 4720

Pond 1.5 5250

Pond 2 9625

Pond 2.5 10950

Pond 3 20050

Pond 3.5 28430

[TIMESERIES]

; 7 Name Date Time Value

;SCS Type II 25mm design storm, total rainfall = 25 mm, rain interval = 6 minutes, rain units = mm/hr.

SCs_Type II_25mm

;SCS Type II 37.9mm design storm, total rainfall = 37.9 mm, rain interval = 6 minutes, rain units = mm/hr.
SCS_Type II_37.%mm_2yr MTO

;SCS Type II 50.4mm design storm, total rainfall = 50.4 mm, rain interval = 6 minutes, rain units = mm/hr.
SCS_Type II_50.4mm_5yr MTO

;SCS Type II 69.3mm design storm, total rainfall = 69.3 mm, rain interval = 6 minutes, rain units = mm/hr.
SCs_Type II_69.3mm 25yr MTO





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION - SWM MODEL — MODEL DETAILS

;SCS Type II 77mm design storm, total rainfall = 77 mm, rain interval = 6 minutes, rain units = mm/hr.
SCs_Type II_77mm_50yr MTO

;SCS Type II 84.7mm design storm, total rainfall = 84.7 mm, rain interval = 6 minutes, rain units = mm/hr.
SCs_Type II 84.7mm 100yr MTO

[REPORT]
; ;Reporting Options
INPUT YES

CONTROLS NO
SUBCATCHMENTS ALL
NODES ALL

LINKS ALL

[TAGS]
[MAP]

DIMENSIONS 468879.74585 4923167.8492 472328.22715 4924082.8688
UNITS Meters





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL -2 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

EPA STORM WATER MANAGEMENT MODEL - VERSION 5.1 (Build 5.1.015)

KAKKKK KKK KK KK

Element Count
Kk kkkkkk ok ok ok kk

Number of rain gages ...... 6
Number of subcatchments ... 3
Number of nodes ........... 4
Number of links ........... 3
Number of pollutants ...... 0
Number of land uses ....... 0

Khkkkhkhkhkkhkkhk kK kK

Raingage Summary
R Rk kb kb ki

Data Recording
Name Data Source Type Interval
SCS Type II 25mm SCS Type II 25mm INTENSITY 6 min.
SCS Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO SCS Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO INTENSITY 6 min.
SCS_Type II 50.4mm 5yr MTO SCS Type II 50.4mm 5S5yr MTO INTENSITY 6 min.
SCS_Type II 69.3mm 25yr MTO SCS Type II 69.3mm 25yr MTO INTENSITY 6 min.
SCs_Type II_77mm_50yr MTO SCS_Type II_77mm_50yr MTO INTENSITY 6 min.
SCS_Type II_84.7mm_100yr MTO SCS_Type II 84.7mm 100yr MTO INTENSITY 6 min.
KAXKXKXKXKAKAXA XXX XA XXX XXX KK
Subcatchment Summary
R R R
Name Area Width $Imperv %Slope Rain Gage Outlet
101 43.73 355.00 0.00 1.3000 SCS Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO OF1
201 42.43 355.00 13.10 1.3000 SCs_Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO SU1
202 1.27 355.00 0.00 33.0000 sCs_Type II 37.9mm 2yr MTO J1
R R R Rk ki ki
Node Summary
KKK K KKK KKKk Kk
Invert Max. Ponded External

Name Type Elev. Depth Area Inflow
Jl JUNCTION 202.80 2.00 0.0
OF1 OUTFALL 0.00 0.00 0.0
OF2 OUTFALL 202.60 1.00 0.0
SUl STORAGE 201.50 3.50 0.0
Kk kkhkkkkkkhkkkk
Link Summary
KAKKKXKKK KK KK
Name From Node To Node Type Length %$Slope Roughness
C1l Jl OF2 CONDUIT 52.3 0.3821 0.0100
OR1 SUl Jl ORIFICE
OR2 SUl Jl ORIFICE
ER R Rk 2k b b b b b b b b b b i i
Cross Section Summary
R R R R R R R R R R

Full Full Hyd. Max. No. of Full
Conduit Shape Depth Area Rad. Width Barrels Flow
C1l TRIANGULAR 1.00 3.00 0.47 6.00 1 11279.43

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R e I

NOTE: The summary statistics displayed in this report are





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL -2 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

based on results found at every computational time step,

not just on results from each reporting time step.
R R R R I I b b b b b b b b b b I I I b h I I b b I E h b b b b b b b b b b b b i i

KhkKk Kk Kk kK hK KKk Kh KKK

Analysis Options

R R R Rk ki i

Flow Units ............... LPS
Process Models:

Rainfall/Runoff ........ YES

RDIT ..iiiiiiiiiiiiinn NO

Snowmelt ............... NO

Groundwater ............ NO

Flow Routing ........... YES

Ponding Allowed ........ NO

Water Quality .......... NO
Infiltration Method ...... CURVE_NUMBER
Flow Routing Method ...... DYNWAVE
Surcharge Method ......... EXTRAN
Starting Date ............ 05/08/2023 00:00:00
Ending Date .............. 05/09/2023 00:00:00
Antecedent Dry Days ...... 0.0
Report Time Step ......... 00:01:00
Wet Time Step ........c.... 00:05:00
Dry Time Step ............ 00:05:00
Routing Time Step ........ 5.00 sec
Variable Time Step ....... YES
Maximum Trials ........... 8
Number of Threads ........ 1
Head Tolerance ........... 0.001524 m
R R R R R R R I R I volume Depth
Runoff Quantity Continuity hectare-m mm
R Ik dh 2k bk kb gk b kb b b b b O S S
Total Precipitation ...... 3.314 37.900
Evaporation LosSs ......... 0.000 0.000
Infiltration Loss ........ 2.730 31.225
Surface Runoff ........... 0.511 5.843
Final Storage ............ 0.073 0.837
Continuity Error (%) ..... -0.014
khkhkhkhkhkkhkkhkkhkkhkhkhkhkhkhhhkhkhkkhkkkkkxixx Volume Volume
Flow Routing Continuity hectare-m 1076 ltr
KAKKKAKKANKAKARKAKANKAR KR KRR KRR KN RN KA XX *x*x .
Dry Weather Inflow ....... 0.000 0.000
Wet Weather Inflow ....... 0.511 5.114
Groundwater Inflow ....... 0.000 0.000
RDITI Inflow ....iuvevnenn.. 0.000 0.000
External Inflow .......... 0.000 0.000
External Outflow ......... 0.447 4.470
Flooding LOSS «.evvvvnnnn. 0.000 0.000
Evaporation Loss ......... 0.000 0.000
Exfiltration Loss ........ 0.000 0.000
Initial Stored Volume 0.492 4.922
Final Stored Volume ...... 0.557 5.566
Continuity Error (%) ..... -0.004

R R R R R R R R R R

Time-Step Critical Elements
KAXKKKX XA AKX KA KAKAKA XX KAXA XXX XA XA XA KKK K

None

R IR Ik kb b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b b 3

Highest Flow Instability Indexes
R R R R R R R R R R R R R i Rk R i

All links are stable.

R R R R R I

Routing Time Step Summary





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL -2 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

R R R Rk kg kb b b b b b b b b b b b b i

Minimum Time Step 4.50 sec
Average Time Step 5.00 sec
Maximum Time Step 5.00 sec
Percent in Steady State 0.00
Average Iterations per Step 2.00
Percent Not Converging 0.00
Time Step Frequencies :
5.000 - 3.155 sec : 100.00 %
3.155 - 1.991 sec : 0.00 %
1.991 - 1.256 sec : 0.00 %
1.256 - 0.792 sec 0.00 %
0.792 - 0.500 sec 0.00 %
KAXKKKKAKAKAKAKAKAKAKAKAXAXAXAXAXA XA KN XXX KKK
Subcatchment Runoff Summary
khkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkkhhkk*k
Total Total Total Total Imperv Perv Total Total
Peak Runoff
Precip Runon Evap Infil Runoff Runoff Runoff Runoff
Runoff Coeff
Subcatchment mm mm mm mm mm mm mm 1076 ltr
LPS
101 37.90 0.00 0.00 33.28 0.00 3.70 3.70 1.62
85.81 0.098
201 37.90 0.00 0.00 29.11 4.98 3.05 8.02 3.40
1010.03 0.212
202 37.90 0.00 0.00 30.97 0.00 6.87 6.87 0.09
31.19 0.181
R R R R R
Node Depth Summary
RER R R Rk kb b kb b bk ki
Average Maximum Maximum Time of Max Reported
Depth Depth HGL Occurrence Max Depth
Node Type Meters Meters Meters days hr:min Meters
Jl JUNCTION 0.10 0.14 202.94 0 03:06 0.14
OF1 OUTFALL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 00:00 0.00
OF2 OUTFALL 0.10 0.14 202.74 0 03:06 0.14
Sul STORAGE 1.70 1.84 203.34 0 06:50 1.84
khkhkkhkhkkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkkkkhkkk
Node Inflow Summary
Rk kb bk kb b b b b i
Maximum Maximum Lateral Total Flow
Lateral Total Time of Max Inflow Inflow Balance
Inflow Inflow Occurrence Volume Volume Error
Node Type LPS LPS days hr:min 1076 1ltr 1076 ltr Percent
Jl JUNCTION 31.19 61.77 0 03:06 0.0876 2.85 0.019
OF1 OUTFALL 85.81 85.81 0 06:00 1.62 1.62 0.000
OF2 OUTFALL 0.00 61.97 0 03:06 0 2.85 0.000
SUl STORAGE 1010.03 1010.03 0 03:00 3.41 8.33 0.001

R R R R R R R

Node Surcharge Summary
KAXKXKAKAKAKA XXX XXX XXX XXX KKK

No nodes were surcharged.





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL -2 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

R R R R b b b b b b i i

Node Flooding Summary
khkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhhkkk*k

No nodes were flooded.

R R R

Storage Volume Summary
khkkkhkkkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkkkkkkk*k

Average Avg Evap Exfil Maximum Max Time of Max Maximum
Volume Pcnt Pcnt Pent Volume Pcnt Occurrence Outflow
Storage Unit 1000 m3 Full Loss Loss 1000 m3 Full days hr:min LPS
SUl 6.212 18 0 0 7.180 21 0 06:50 54.13

R R R R R R R R

Outfall Loading Summary
KAXKXKXKAKXKAKAKAKAXAXAXA XXX XXX XK KK

Flow Avg Max Total
Freq Flow Flow Volume
Outfall Node Pcnt LPS LPS 1076 ltr
OF1 92.80 20.18 85.81 1.618
OF2 97.97 33.69 61.97 2.852
System 95.39 53.87 141.37 4.470
R Rk kb ik b b b b b b b b b b
Link Flow Summary
R R R
Maximum Time of Max Maximum Max/ Max/
|Flow| Occurrence |Veloc| Full Full
Link Type LPS days hr:min m/sec Flow Depth
Ccl CONDUIT 61.97 0 03:06 1.02 0.01 0.14
OR1 ORIFICE 54.13 0 06:50 1.00
OR2 ORIFICE 0.00 0 00:00 0.00

R R Rk b Ik bk b b b b b b b b b b b b b b 3 i

Flow Classification Summary
khkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkhkhkhkkhhkx*k

Adjusted  -—-—--—--—- Fraction of Time in Flow Class --—---—-----

/Actual Up Down Sub Sup Up Down Norm Inlet

Conduit Length Dry Dry Dry Crit Crit Crit Crit Ltd Ctrl
C1l 1.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.91 0.00 0.00 0.79 0.00

R R R R R R R R

Conduit Surcharge Summary
RR R R IRk 2k kb kb b b b b b b b b b b i

No conduits were surcharged.

Analysis begun on: Tue Dec 5 20:40:31 2023
Analysis ended on: Tue Dec 5 20:40:31 2023
Total elapsed time: < 1 sec





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL -5 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

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
101 43.73 355.00 0.00 1.3000 SCS Type II 50.4mm 5S5yr MTO OF1
201 42.43 355.00 13.10 1.3000 SCs_Type II 50.4mm_ S5yr MTO SU1
202 1.27 355.00 0.00 33.0000 sCs_Type II 50.4mm 5yr MTO J1
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
R R R R R R R I R I Volume Depth
Runoff Quantity Continuity hectare-m mm
R Ik dh 2k bk kb gk b kb b b b b O S S
Total Precipitation ...... 4.407 50.400
Evaporation LosSs ......... 0.000 0.000
Infiltration Loss ........ 3.432 39.256
Surface Runoff ........... 0.897 10.258
Final Storage ............ 0.078 0.891
Continuity Error (%) ..... -0.011
kAhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkhkkhkhkkhkhkkhkhhkkhhkx Volume Volume
Flow Routing Continuity hectare-m 1076 ltr
KAKKKAKKANKAKARKAKANKAR KR KRR KRR KN RN KA XX *x*x .
Dry Weather Inflow ....... 0.000 0.000
Wet Weather Inflow ....... 0.898 8.979
Groundwater Inflow ....... 0.000 0.000
RDITI Inflow ....iuvevnenn.. 0.000 0.000
External Inflow .......... 0.000 0.000
External Outflow ......... 0.782 7.817
Flooding LOSS «.evvvvnnnn. 0.000 0.000
Evaporation Loss ......... 0.000 0.000
Exfiltration Loss ........ 0.000 0.000
Initial Stored Volume 0.492 4.922
Final Stored Volume ...... 0.608 6.084
Continuity Error (%) ..... -0.005

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
101 50.40 0.00 0.00 41.79 0.00 7.63 7.63 3.34
174.85 0.151
201 50.40 0.00 0.00 36.65 6.62 6.31 12.93 5.49
1406.59 0.257
202 50.40 0.00 0.00 38.84 0.00 11.51 11.51 0.15
59.71 0.228
R R R R R
Node Depth Summary
RER R R Rk kb b kb b bk ki
Average Maximum Maximum Time of Max Reported
Depth Depth HGL Occurrence Max Depth
Node Type Meters Meters Meters days hr:min Meters
Jl JUNCTION 0.13 0.17 202.97 0 03:06 0.17
OF1 OUTFALL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 00:00 0.00
OF2 OUTFALL 0.13 0.17 202.77 0 03:06 0.17
Sul STORAGE 1.83 2.00 203.50 0 07:47 2.00
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
Jl JUNCTION 59.71 102.95 0 03:06 0.147 4.48 0.022
OF1 OUTFALL 174.85 174.85 0 05:00 3.34 3.34 0.000
OF2 OUTFALL 0.00 102.86 0 03:06 0 4.48 0.000
SUl STORAGE 1406.59 1406.59 0 03:00 5.49 10.4 0.001

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
SUl 7.214 21 0 0 8.680 26 0 07:47 71.65

R R R R R R R R

Outfall Loading Summary
KAXKXKXKAKXKAKAKAKAXAXAXA XXX XXX XK KK

Flow Avg Max Total
Freq Flow Flow Volume
Outfall Node Pcnt LPS LPS 1076 ltr
OF1 94.14 41.07 174.85 3.340
OF2 98.29 52.71 102.86 4.477
System 96.22 93.78 244.60 7.817
R Rk kb ik b b b b b b b b b b
Link Flow Summary
R R R
Maximum Time of Max Maximum Max/ Max/
|Flow| Occurrence |Veloc| Full Full
Link Type LPS days hr:min m/sec Flow Depth
C1l CONDUIT 102.86 0 03:06 1.16 0.01 0.17
OR1 ORIFICE 71.65 0 07:47 1.00
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
C1l 1.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.93 0.00 0.00 0.75 0.00

R R R R R R R R

Conduit Surcharge Summary
RR R R IRk 2k kb kb b b b b b b b b b b i

No conduits were surcharged.

Analysis begun on: Tue Dec 5 20:38:44 2023
Analysis ended on: Tue Dec 5 20:38:44 2023
Total elapsed time: < 1 sec





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL — 25 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

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
101 43.73 355.00 0.00 1.3000 SCS Type II 69.3mm 25yr MTO OF1
201 42.43 355.00 13.10 1.3000 SCs_Type II 69.3mm_ 25yr MTO SU1l
202 1.27 355.00 0.00 33.0000 sCS_Type II 69.3mm 25yr MTO J1
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
Total Precipitation ...... 6.059 69.300
Evaporation LosSs ......... 0.000 0.000
Infiltration Loss ........ 4.302 49.197
Surface Runoff ........... 1.680 19.218
Final Storage ............ 0.078 0.889
Continuity Error (%) ..... -0.007
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
Wet Weather Inflow ....... 1.682 16.822
Groundwater Inflow ....... 0.000 0.000
RDITI Inflow ....iuvevnenn.. 0.000 0.000
External Inflow .......... 0.000 0.000
External Outflow ......... 1.392 13.923
Flooding LOSS «.evvvvnnnn. 0.000 0.000
Evaporation Loss ......... 0.000 0.000
Exfiltration Loss ........ 0.000 0.000
Initial Stored Volume 0.492 4.922
Final Stored Volume ...... 0.782 7.821
Continuity Error (%) ..... -0.006

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
101 69.30 0.00 0.00 52.22 0.00 16.07 16.07 7.03
380.47 0.232
201 69.30 0.00 0.00 46.08 9.11 13.33 22.44 9.52
2047.26 0.324
202 69.30 0.00 0.00 49.18 0.00 20.08 20.08 0.26
115.30 0.290
R R R R R
Node Depth Summary
RER R R Rk kb b kb b bk ki
Average Maximum Maximum Time of Max Reported
Depth Depth HGL Occurrence Max Depth
Node Type Meters Meters Meters days hr:min Meters
Jl JUNCTION 0.15 0.21 203.01 0 03:06 0.21
OF1 OUTFALL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 00:00 0.00
OF2 OUTFALL 0.15 0.21 202.81 0 03:06 0.21
Sul STORAGE 2.06 2.30 203.80 0 08:13 2.30
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
Jl JUNCTION 115.30 170.61 0 03:06 0.256 6.89 0.025
OF1 OUTFALL 380.47 380.47 0 04:18 7.04 7.04 0.000
OF2 OUTFALL 0.00 170.36 0 03:06 0 6.89 0.000
SUl STORAGE 2047.26 2047.26 0 03:00 9.53 14.5 0.002

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
SUl 9.360 28 0 0 11.695 35 0 08:13 119.60

R R R R R R R R

Outfall Loading Summary
KAXKXKXKAKXKAKAKAKAXAXAXA XXX XXX XK KK

Flow Avg Max Total
Freq Flow Flow Volume
Outfall Node Pcnt LPS LPS 1076 ltr
OF1 95.45 85.32 380.47 7.036
OF2 98.58 80.86 170.36 6.887
System 97.01 166.17 468.94 13.923
R Rk kb ik b b b b b b b b b b
Link Flow Summary
R R R
Maximum Time of Max Maximum Max/ Max/
|Flow| Occurrence |Veloc| Full Full
Link Type LPS days hr:min m/sec Flow Depth
C1l CONDUIT 170.36 0 03:06 1.32 0.02 0.21
OR1 ORIFICE 95.26 0 08:13 1.00
OR2 ORIFICE 24 .34 0 08:13 0.23

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
C1l 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.94 0.00 0.00 0.69 0.00

R R R R R R R R

Conduit Surcharge Summary
RR R R IRk 2k kb kb b b b b b b b b b b i

No conduits were surcharged.

Analysis begun on: Tue Dec 5 20:37:44 2023
Analysis ended on: Tue Dec 5 20:37:44 2023
Total elapsed time: < 1 sec





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL - 50 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

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
101 43.73 355.00 0.00 1.3000 SCs Type II 77mm 50yr MTO OF1
201 42.43 355.00 13.10 1.3000 SCs_Type II_ 77mm 50yr MTO SU1
202 1.27 355.00 0.00 33.0000 sCS_Type II 77mm 50yr MTO J1
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
Total Precipitation ...... 6.732 77.000
Evaporation LosSs ......... 0.000 0.000
Infiltration Loss ........ 4.597 52.581
Surface Runoff ........... 2.057 23.529
Final Storage ............ 0.078 0.895
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
Wet Weather Inflow ....... 2.059 20.595
Groundwater Inflow ....... 0.000 0.000
RDITI Inflow ....iuvevnenn.. 0.000 0.000
External Inflow .......... 0.000 0.000
External Outflow ......... 1.722 17.221
Flooding LOSS «.evvvvnnnn. 0.000 0.000
Evaporation Loss ......... 0.000 0.000
Exfiltration Loss ........ 0.000 0.000
Initial Stored Volume 0.492 4.922
Final Stored Volume ...... 0.830 8.296
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
101 77.00 0.00 0.00 55.85 0.00 20.19 20.19 8.83
489.61 0.262
201 77.00 0.00 0.00 49.20 10.12 16.83 26.95 11.44
2323.24 0.350
202 77.00 0.00 0.00 52.93 0.00 24.03 24.03 0.31
141.23 0.312
R R R R R
Node Depth Summary
RER R R Rk kb b kb b bk ki
Average Maximum Maximum Time of Max Reported
Depth Depth HGL Occurrence Max Depth
Node Type Meters Meters Meters days hr:min Meters
Jl JUNCTION 0.16 0.22 203.02 0 03:06 0.22
OF1 OUTFALL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 00:00 0.00
OF2 OUTFALL 0.16 0.22 202.82 0 03:06 0.22
Sul STORAGE 2.12 2.41 203.91 0 07:48 2.41
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
Jl JUNCTION 141.23 200.68 0 03:06 0.306 8.38 0.022
OF1 OUTFALL 489.61 489.61 0 04:06 8.84 8.84 0.000
OF2 OUTFALL 0.00 200.40 0 03:06 0 8.38 0.000
SUl STORAGE 2323.24 2323.24 0 03:00 11.4 16.4 0.002

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
SUl 10.010 30 0 0 12.815 38 0 07:48 171.78

R R R R R R R R

Outfall Loading Summary
KAXKXKXKAKXKAKAKAKAXAXAXA XXX XXX XK KK

Flow Avg Max Total
Freq Flow Flow Volume
Outfall Node Pcnt LPS LPS 1076 ltr
OF1 95.85 106.74 489.61 8.840
OF2 98.66 98.32 200.40 8.382
System 97.25 205.06 585.35 17.221
R Rk kb ik b b b b b b b b b b
Link Flow Summary
R R R
Maximum Time of Max Maximum Max/ Max/
|Flow| Occurrence |Veloc| Full Full
Link Type LPS days hr:min m/sec Flow Depth
C1l CONDUIT 200.40 0 03:06 1.37 0.02 0.22
OR1 ORIFICE 102.29 0 07:48 1.00
OR2 ORIFICE 69.50 0 07:48 0.47

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
C1l 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.95 0.00 0.00 0.71 0.00

R R R R R R R R

Conduit Surcharge Summary
RR R R IRk 2k kb kb b b b b b b b b b b i

No conduits were surcharged.

Analysis begun on: Tue Dec 5 20:35:30 2023
Analysis ended on: Tue Dec 5 20:35:30 2023
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
101 43.73 355.00 0.00 1.3000 SCS Type II 84.7mm 100yr MTO OF1
s1 42.43 355.00 13.10 1.3000 SCS_Type II 84.7mm_100yr MTO SU1l
S2 1.27 355.00 0.00 33.0000 sCS_Type II 84.7mm 100yr MTO J1
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
Total Precipitation ...... 7.406 84.700
Evaporation LosSs ......... 0.000 0.000
Infiltration Loss ........ 4.867 55.659
Surface Runoff ........... 2.461 28.146
Final Storage ............ 0.079 0.898
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
Wet Weather Inflow ....... 2.464 24.636
Groundwater Inflow ....... 0.000 0.000
RDITI Inflow ....iuvevnenn.. 0.000 0.000
External Inflow .......... 0.000 0.000
External Outflow ......... 2.094 20.939
Flooding LOSS «.evvvvnnnn. 0.000 0.000
Evaporation Loss ......... 0.000 0.000
Exfiltration Loss ........ 0.000 0.000
Initial Stored Volume 0.492 4.922
Final Stored Volume ...... 0.862 8.620
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





CARSONS SUPPLY EXPANSION — SWM MODEL - 100 YEAR DESIGN STORM EVENT

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
101 84.70 0.00 0.00 59.01 0.00 24.68 24.68 10.80
614.08 0.291
S1 84.70 0.00 0.00 52.19 11.13 20.58 31.71 13.46
2608.29 0.374
sS2 84.70 0.00 0.00 56.46 0.00 28.21 28.21 0.36
168.67 0.333
R R R R R
Node Depth Summary
RER R R Rk kb b kb b bk ki
Average Maximum Maximum Time of Max Reported
Depth Depth HGL Occurrence Max Depth
Node Type Meters Meters Meters days hr:min Meters
Jl JUNCTION 0.17 0.23 203.03 0 07:26 0.23
OF1 OUTFALL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 00:00 0.00
OF2 OUTFALL 0.17 0.23 202.83 0 07:26 0.23
SUl STORAGE 2.18 2.51 204.01 0 07:28 2.51
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
Jl JUNCTION 168.67 233.29 0 07:26 0.36 10.1 0.019
OF1 OUTFALL 614.08 614.08 0 04:00 10.8 10.8 0.000
OF2 OUTFALL 0.00 233.29 0 07:26 0 10.1 0.000
SUl STORAGE 2608.29 2608.29 0 03:00 13.5 18.4 0.002

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
SUl 10.561 31 0 0 13.896 41 0 07:28 232.79

R R R R R R R R

Outfall Loading Summary
KAXKXKXKAKXKAKAKAKAXAXAXA XXX XXX XK KK

Flow Avg Max Total
Freq Flow Flow Volume
Outfall Node Pcnt LPS LPS 1076 ltr
OF1 96.19 130.03 614.08 10.807
OF2 98.73 118.78 233.29 10.133
System 97.46 248.81 721.92 20.939
R Rk kb ik b b b b b b b b b b
Link Flow Summary
R R R
Maximum Time of Max Maximum Max/ Max/
|Flow| Occurrence |Veloc| Full Full
Link Type LPS days hr:min m/sec Flow Depth
C1l CONDUIT 233.29 0 07:26 1.43 0.02 0.23
OR1 ORIFICE 108.49 0 07:28 1.00
OR2 ORIFICE 124.30 0 07:28 0.69

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
C1l 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.95 0.00 0.00 0.73 0.00

R R R R R R R R

Conduit Surcharge Summary
RR R R IRk 2k kb kb b b b b b b b b b b i

No conduits were surcharged.

Analysis begun on: Sat Dec 2 13:21:41 2023
Analysis ended on: Sat Dec 2 13:21:41 2023
Total elapsed time: < 1 sec
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2023-12-06
Project: 220658

2128080 Ontario Inc.
c/o Dana Kieffer
Cobide Engineering
517 10" Street
Hanover ON N4N 1R4

Dear Ms. Kieffer:
RE: CARSON SUPPLY RELOCATION

5331 BRUCE ROAD 3, SAUGEEN SHORES
RESPONSE TO MTO COMMENTS

Paradigm Transportation conducted a Transportation Impact Study for the relocation of Carson
Supply in Saugeen Shores. The report is dated February 2023. After review, the Ministry of
Transportation provided the following comments:

Access & Traffic Impact Review MTO have reviewed the TIS and have the following
comments:

1. MTO require that trip generation, distribution, and assignment patterns for both the
existing and proposed new site be indicated separately.

2. MTO require that the consultant identify the LUC of the ITE trip generation manual that is
used for trip estimation.

The TIS shall assess any potential impacts to the highway by the anticipated development
traffic. The TIS shall identify any highway improvements necessitated by the development
and shall be completed by a Registry, Appraisal and Qualification System (RAQS) approved
traffic consultant and in accordance with MTO’s TIS guidelines. Note that the cost of the TIS
and any highway improvements as a result of the development are the financial
responsibility of the developer.

All access must be off Bruce Road 3.

MTO anticipate receiving a revise TIS for review.






This letter provides responses to the above comments.

Comment 1: Trip generation was determined by observing the existing site located at 1071
Goderich Street in Port Elgin (see Section 3.2 of the TIS). The number of trips observed were
divided by the Gross Floor Area of the existing building (approximately 38,750 sq. ft.) to
determine the trip rates (0.723 in the AM peak hour and 0.568 in the PM peak hour). These
rates were applied to the GFA of the proposed building at the relocation site (41,366 sq. ft.),
which is shown in Table 3.1 of the TIS. Table 3.2 of the TIS shows the observed distribution of
the trips, which were applied to the relocated building. As the existing site is located at the
north end of Port Elgin and the new site is in between Port Elgin and Southampton, the
distribution was considered to be the same based on the north/south split.

The observed trips from the existing site are summarized in Table 1.

TABLE 1: OBSERVED SITE TRIPS AT EXISTING SITE

Land Use AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
In Out Total Rate In Out Total Rate
Carson Supply (1071
Goderich Street, Port Elgin) 38,750 sq. ft. 16 12 28| 0.723 5 17 22( 0.568
Total Trip Generation 16 12 28 5 17 22

Comment 2: As the trip generation was based on the existing operation in Port Elgin, the ITE
Trip Generation Manual was not used.

Additional Comments: The potential impacts of the proposed development were analysed in
Chapter 4 of the TIS, where it was found that the existing southbound left-turn lane is forecast
to be sufficient.

All Access is proposed to be off Bruce Road 3. No other accesses were contemplated in the
TIS.

A revised TIS is not anticipated to be required as no changes to the TIS would be made based
on these comments. All information requested is already in the TIS.

Yours very truly,

PARADIGM TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Mm&m

Matt Brouwer
P.Eng.
Senior Project Manager

Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited | Page 2 \«






.) COBIDE

ENGINEERING INC

December 12, 2023

BY EMAIL ONLY

Coreena Smith, Senior Planner Tel: 519-881-1291
Corporation of the County of Bruce Fax: 519-881-1619
30 Park Street, P.O. Box 70 Email: cjsmith@brucecounty.on.ca

Walkerton, ON NOG 2V0

Subject: Applications for Bruce County Official Plan Amendment C-4-2023
and Zoning By-law Amendment Z-56-2023
Carson’s Supply Expansion
5331 Bruce Road 6,
Town of Saugeen Shores

Introduction
On behalf of our client, Cobide Engineering Inc. submitted a Planning Justification

Report in support of the Bruce County Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law
Amendment applications dated May, 2023, followed by an addendum letter dated
August 23, 2023 for the property located at 5331 Bruce Road 6, located between the
communities of Port Elgin and Southampton, Town of Saugeen Shores (hereinafter
called the subject lands).

The applications will facilitate a partial relocation and expansion of Carson’s Supply, a
40-year-old commercial business located in Port Elgin and currently operates out of
1071 Goderich St., Port Elgin.

Carson’s Supply is a wholesale provider of plumbing, HVAC, waterworks supplies and
precast concrete structures. They have a custom PVC injection and extrusion facility at
their Port Elgin warehouse that ships throughout North America.

The Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment would permit the
construction of a concrete manufacturing plant, that would produce products such as
catch basins, septic holding tanks and electrical utility vaults. It would also provide
ample outdoor storage for these large materials.

It would further permit a custom PVC extrusion facility to be constructed in the future. In
total, it is estimated that 50 new employees will be required to operate these facilities.

1|Page
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The subject lands are ideally located for a space extensive industrial and commercial
use given the rural location outside the periphery of a settlement area and in an area
that already is interspersed with commercial, recreational and non-agricultural uses.

Comments
In advance of the Public Meeting that Town of Saugeen Shores to hear the applications,

The Town of Saugeen Shores and County of Bruce, the approval authorities for the
applications, have requested a comment matrix addressing the matters that were
highlighted by the approximately 30 letters received by the public from circulation of the
Notice of Complete Application. The comments have been organized by themes with
excerpts from the comments received. Each theme has been responded to by the
applicant and the development team.

Theme 1: location further from the population, and on land specifically slated for
Industrial use (rather than farmland).

This is an egregious change from Agricultural land to Manufacturing with no precedent
in the area. Choose a space where other businesses and industries are located, not
farms and homes.

Response: it is noted that land that is designated and zoned for Industrial uses are
limited to location within settlement areas. The addendum letter provided by D. Kieffer
on August 23, 2023 provides a more detailed analysis of properties that were
considered.

Bruce County has completed a land needs analysis for the Town of Saugeen Shores as
a part of the update to the Bruce County Official Plan. It finds there is a shortfall of 7 ha
projected employment lands over the planning term. The Plan the Bruce: Good Growth
Discussion paper from September, 2022 also identifies that “While Bruce County has a
relatively large supply of designated Employment Lands to accommodate long-term
demand in most locations, the County’s existing supply of larger vacant employment
parcels is limited.”

Carson’s Supply, at their current location at 1071 Goderich St. extrude PVC pipe and
form and pour the concrete structures. It is noted that the expansion would include the
manufacturing of concrete, rather than ready mix being brought into the new site.

1071 Goderich St. is the main throughfare in Port Elgin and is surrounded by residential
development on three sides. The subject lands show as two properties on the GIS. As
per the D-6 Guidelines, Compatibility between Industrial Facilities, a 70 m setback
between a Class Il Industrial use and sensitive uses is recommended. In the figures
below, a 70 m buffer was applied to each property. When the properties are buffered
70 m, approximately 35 residential dwellings are located within this recommended
setback.
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Using the air photography, the actual setbacks of the outdoor storage areas to the
residences vary between 25 m and 8.8 m. The building itself is 91 m from property
boundary.

At the proposed location, five residential dwellings and a church are located within the
70 m buffer from property bounda

Figure 4: Proposed Location Buffered 70 m |
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The proposed site plan proposes an actual setback of 81 m from the outdoor storage
areas to the residences. 187 m is proposed between the building and the property
boundary. There will also be mitigative efforts, such as landscaped berms, which will

further reduce impacts.

There are several businesses in the area including: Southport Golf Course, Saugeen
Golf Club, Everest Trees and Gingrich Service Centre. With the current location, the
number of homes with the required 70 m buffer are greatly reduced from the current
location at 1071 Goderich St. to the proposed location, despite the fact it is zoned Light

Industrial.

EXISTING HOUSES

CARLISEEST

OUTDOOR STORAGE

— Lot HCH LANECAPED BERM_

oo

Figure 5: Proposed Site Plan

The subject lands offer an opportunity for avoidance and mitigation of incompatibilities.
Since it is a larger property, more effective buffering can be used including a
landscaped berm and physical separation of the use from the sensitive uses such as

the residential and church uses that are adjacent.

As for the comment regarding prime farmland, Carson’s Supply has searched

extensively for a site, as outlined in the addendum letter provided by D. Kieffer on
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August 23, 2023. A suitable site is not available in the settlement area, or lower priority
agricultural land. Non-residential uses are permitted in prime agricultural areas subject
to PPS Policy 2.3.6:

Planning authorities may only permit non-agricultural uses in prime agricultural areas

for:

a) extraction of minerals, petroleum resources
b) mineral aggregate resources; or
c) limited non-residential uses, provided that all of the following are demonstrated:

a.
b.

C.

the land does not comprise a specialty crop area;
the proposed use complies with the minimum distance separation
formulae;
there is an identified need within the planning horizon provided for in
policy 1.1.2 for additional land to accommodate the proposed use; and
alternative locations have been evaluated, and
i. there are no reasonable alternative locations which avoid prime
agricultural areas; and
ii. there are no reasonable alternative locations in prime agricultural
areas with lower priority agricultural lands.

The development concept proposes to utilize the permissions contained in the PPS to
permit limited non-residential uses. The proposal meets the conditions required as

follows:

1.
2.
3.

The land is not a speciality crop area.

The proposed use complies with Minimum Distance Separation.

As per the Plan the Bruce: Good Growth Final Report, dated September
2022, the Town of Saugeen Shores has a projected shortfall of
employment lands over the planning term. Further, the report identifies a
lack of larger employment parcels County-wide which is what this use
needs and proposes.

. Several locations were considered by the proponent. The proponent is

hoping to stay in the Port Elgin Area and to locate closely to the 1071
Goderich St. location that they currently operate their business out of.
They further were hoping to stay close to the Highway 21/ Bruce Road 3
corridors to ensure sufficient highway access in both directions to move
their manufactured goods. The proponents approached the Town of
Saugeen Shores to locate in the Innovation Park. The Park accounts for
9.3 ha of the employment land totals in Saugeen Shores, but Carson’s
Supply was declined to purchase a lot. Most sites within the Town have
residential uses that are close, which Carson’s Supply wanted to avoid.
The Highway 21 corridor is mostly made of these Class 2 lands, with
variable pockets of more fertile and less fertile soil. There are no
reasonable alternative lands that have the locational advantage of the
subject lands.

It is worth noting that the subject lands have been identified as a “Potential Prime
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Agricultural Area” in the Land Evaluation and Area Review (LEAR) Study completed for
the on-going update to the Bruce County Official Plan. This identification could
potentially lead the subject lands to be re-designated from prime agricultural area to
rural. One could surmise that that this is due to the fragmented nature of the immediate
vicinity, the soil being a subclass that is less fertile, and the surrounding uses have that
would make it more challenging to farm. While this is preliminary, and not yet approved,
it does indicate that the area is potentially suitable to the wider range of industrial uses
that are permitted in the Rural designation. It is noted that this map is considered draft,
and unfortunately, Carson’s Supply’s expansion timelines do not fit with waiting to see
how these policies are eventually implemented.

The portion of the subject lands proposed to host the non-agricultural use are vacant
and outside of the loss of land in agricultural production, they do not host infrastructure,
services or assets important to agriculture.

Theme 2: Noise and light pollution.

Response: A Photometrics Plan will be a requirement of Site Plan Approval, which will
help mitigate the light pollution. In addition, the landscaped berm will provide both light
and noise insultation the surrounding residences and businesses.

Theme 3: concrete dust/air pollution created with the operation. A proposed solution to
this in the engineering report is to "oil" the ground to reduce the amount of dust going
into the air, with the assumption that runoff will be collected by the "stormwater
management" pond that is to be part of the development. To my knowledge this is not
and never has been the intended purpose of a stormwater management ponds.

Response: The engineering reports provided to support the applications do not suggest
oil will be used as a dust suppressant. Normally, Calcium Chloride is used for this
purpose, if required.

Theme 3: Groundwater Contamination the water table in this immediate area is very
close to surface and several neighboring properties still rely on shallow dug wells. The
"Oiling" of the ground to reduce particulate in the air poses a very high risk to
contaminating the ground water supply. In addition, the discharge from daily operations
also has the potential to contaminate ground water supply in the area. There is also a
small spring fed creek that borders the proposed development. This creek stays cold
and runs year round even in extreme drought conditions and it eventually outlets into
Lake Huron and the Saugeen River, making it a contributing factor to good habitat for
fish and other aquatic life. The creek is constantly full of various species of amphibians,
which are an indicator of good water quality/healthy aquatic ecosystems.
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In this area the water table is at or just below the surface. It is impossible to keep the
surface runoff from entering the ground water.

Response: As noted above, oiling is not suggested as a dust suppressant. The SWM
facility will feature an outlet that draws from the bottom to limit the thermal variations of
the SWM facility water discharging into the natural environment.

Yes, it natural some of the water will infiltrate the groundwater. Materials on site will be
stored inside which will limit these from flowing into the groundwater.

Theme 4: Noise pollution from trucks and forklifts beeping, entering and exiting the
site.

Response: the subject lands and surrounding residences are directly adjacent to
Highway 21 and Bruce Road 3, as such a significant amount of traffic-related noise is
already present at the site. It is further noted that the present use, designation, and
zoning is for agriculture. Trucks, tractors, forklifts and other related heavy machinery
are often used to support that use and are the norm in that zone.

The physical separation between the outdoor storage areas and the sensitive uses,
along with the landscaped buffer, will aid in noise reduction.

An acoustic audit will be completed after the construction of the facility to ensure MECP
compliance.

Theme 5: Traffic and possible accidents from transport trucks and others turning in and
out of the site. Bruce County Rd. 3 has heavy traffic leading to Port Elgin, Southampton
Sauble Beach and points beyond. The entrance proposed is an 80km zone and there
are 2 busy golf courses directly across from the property.

Response: the application is supported by a Traffic Impact Study prepared by
Paradigm Solutions. All study area intersections were found to have acceptable levels
of service and forecast to operate at acceptable levels of service under 2024, 2029 and
2034 projected traffic conditions.

Comment: Industrial Park The Town of Saugeen Shores set aside lands and provided
services and Infrastructure at Taxpayers Cost for an "Innovation Park" they should do
the same for Industry does not fit the parameters for that park.

Response: As a development team, we think that is a great idea.
Comment: Location at Main Corner This corner is a main entrance to the community
of Saugeen Shores, as such it should be maintained in a way that is not contrary to the

Public's wishes. Concession 10 East where the Police Building and the County EMS
and other industrial businesses exist would be more suitable.
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Response: Firstly, there is not a parcel with sufficient area or separation from
residential uses in the area identified by the commenter. As shown on Figure 6 below,
yellow is residential zoning. In addition, the portion of the property designated Light
Industrial is approximately 8.4 ha, which is not large enough for the proposed
development.

Secondly, the proposed development at 5331 Bruce Road 3 will be shielded from
roadside views due to its location behind the small, forested area adjacent to Bruce
Road 3 and the proposed landscaped berms.

1|

Conclusions
The proposed Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment are justified
and represent good planning for the following reasons:

1. The proposal is consistent with the Planning Act, and the Provincial Policy
Statement.

2. There is a lack of suitable employment lands within the settlement area that
offer the required buffer between residential and manufacturing uses, along
with a size that is sufficient for the proponents’ outdoor storage needs.

3. Section 2.3.6 of the Provincial Policy Statement permits limited non-
residential uses in Agricultural Areas and the proposed meets the required
tests:

a. The land is not a specialty crop area.

b. The proposed use complies with Minimum Distance Separation.
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c. As per the Plan the Bruce: Good Growth Final Report, dated
September 2022, the Town of Saugeen Shores has a projected
shortfall of employment lands over the planning term. Further, the
report identifies a lack of larger employment parcels County-wide
which is what this use needs and proposes.

d. Several alternate locations were considered but none were found to be
suitable.

4. The proposal is consistent with the Draft Agricultural Impact Assessment
Guidelines from the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs
and impacts to the surrounding agricultural land will be mitigates.

5. The proposal is consistent with Ontario’s D-6 Guidelines;

6. The proposal contributes to employment opportunities in the Town of
Saugeen Shores;

7. The proposed development is well-poised to make use of existing arterial
roads.

Thank you for your consideration of this application, please contact the undersigned
with any questions pertaining to this report.

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

November 28, 2023

2128080 Ontario Inc.
1032 Bruce Road 33
Port Elgin, Ontario
NOH 2C5

Attention: Mr. Jason Carson

Dear Sirs:

Re:  Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation
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

potential to service the proposed site with groundwater as a source of drinking water.

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
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Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation, Lots K &L, Registered Plan No. 154, Town of Saugeen Shores November 28, 2023
2128080 Ontario Inc. Project 23009.00

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

facilities.

The proposed development will occupy the western portion of the subject lands and will use

approximately 13.5 ha of land. The development concept includes future expansion plans.

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
about 4.9 L/min. Since all this water is taken within about 8-hours per day, the well should

yield 15 L/min for 8 continuous hours of operation each day.
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
water contributes leakage into the confined aquifer.

Table 3 provides calculations using two sets of assumptions for the bedrock aquifer. The
bedrock aquifer appears to be productive based on the high, test rates at the nearby Saugeen
Shores Golf Club. The two scenarios were prepared using the Theis equation and the

following assumptions:

» It is assumed there is no groundwater recharge to the aquifer for 365 days, a conservative
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
and tested to evaluate well yield and groundwater quality under Ontario Regulation 319/08.

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
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GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION

PROPOSED INDUSTRIAL EXPANSION
5331 BRUCE ROAD 3
SAUGEEN SHORES, ONTARIO

CMT Project 22-816.R01

Prepared for:

Cobide Engineering Inc.

February 8, 2023





February 8, 2023 22-816.R01

Cobide Engineering Inc.
517 — 10" Street
Hanover, Ontario

N4N 1R4

Attention: Dana Kieffer, M. Sc. (Planning), MCIP, RPP
Dear Dana:
Re:  Geotechnical Investigation

Proposed Industrial Expansion

5331 Bruce Road 3
Town of Saugeen Shores, Ontario

As requested, CMT Engineering Inc. conducted a geotechnical investigation at the
above-referenced site, and we are pleased to present the enclosed report.

We trust that this information meets your present requirements, and we thank you for allowing us
to undertake this project. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact our
office.

Yours truly,

Brandow Figg

Brandon R Figg, C.Tech.
Senior Soil Technician

ht
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

The services of CMT Engineering Inc. (CMT Inc.) were retained by Cobide Engineering Inc. to
conduct a geotechnical investigation for the proposed industrial expansion to be constructed at
the existing facility located at 5331 Bruce Road 3, in the Town of Saugeen Shores, Ontario. The
location of the subject site is shown on Drawing 1.

It is understood that the owner is proposing to construct a new 18.3 m by 70.0 m building and
potentially two (2) future 18.3 m by 70.0 m buildings along with two (2) 30,350 m? outdoor
storage areas for storage of pre-cast concrete structures and PVC pipe and parking for forty-four
(44) passenger vehicles. It is understood that it would also be anticipated that 10 to 15 flatbed
trailers would come and go daily from the site and that once the two (2) buildings are constructed
and operating there would be approximately 50 employees using the facility. It is understood that
the new facility will be serviced by an on-site sewage system and a new storm water
management pond (SWMP) would be constructed in the Southwest corner of the site.

It is also understood that recommendations will also be required for Bruce Road 3, from the
entrance driveway to the site to Highway 21, to support a traffic study on increased truck traffic
for the establishment of a new industrial use site.

The purpose of the geotechnical investigation was to assess the existing soil and groundwater
conditions encountered in the boreholes. Included in the assessment are the soil classification
and groundwater observations, as well as comments and recommendations regarding
geotechnical resistance (bearing capacity); serviceability limit states (anticipated settlement);
recommended founding elevations; site classification for seismic site response; dewatering
considerations; recommendations for site grading, site servicing, excavations and backfilling;
recommendations for slab-on-grade construction; pavement/gravel design/drainage; soil design
properties; and a summary of the laboratory test results.

2.0 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

The site is currently an existing agricultural field used for crop production.

The site is bounded by Bruce Road 3 to the North, agricultural land to the East, commercial and
industrial to the South, as well as an existing church, Carlisle Street and Highway 21 to the West.
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3.0 FIELD AND LABORATORY PROCEDURES

The field investigation was conducted on November 24 and November 29, 2022 and comprised
the advancement of fifteen (15) boreholes (referenced as Boreholes 1 to 15, inclusive), utilizing a
Geoprobe 7822DT drillrig operated by employees of CMT Dirilling Inc. Boreholes 1, 2 and 3
were advanced on Bruce Road 3 to depths of approximately 3.05 m (10.0 ft) below the existing
pavement elevation. Boreholes 4 and 5 were advanced in the area of the proposed septic area to
depths of approximately 3.05 m (10.0 ft) below the existing ground surface elevation. Borehole 6
was advanced in the area of the proposed driveway to a depth of approximately ranging
3.05 m (10.0 ft) below the existing ground elevation. Boreholes 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 were advanced
in the area of the proposed buildings to depths ranging between approximately 3.05 m (10.0 ft)
and 7.62 m (25.0 ft) below the existing ground surface. Boreholes 12, 13 and 14 were advanced
in the area of the proposed outdoor storage areas to depths of approximately 1.52 m (5.0 ft)
below the existing ground surface. Borehole 15 was advanced in the area of the proposed
stormwater management pond to a depth of approximately 6.10 m (20.0 ft) below the existing
ground surface.

Standard penetration testing and sampling was carried out in Boreholes 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 15
using 38 mm inside diameter split spoon sampling equipment and an automatic hammer, in
accordance with ASTM D 1586 "Standard Test Method for Standard Penetration Test (SPT) and
Split-Barrel Sampling of Soils". In Borehole 11, SPT soil sampling was conducted at 0.76 m
(2.5 ft) intervals to borehole termination. In Boreholes 7, 8, 9, 10 and 15 SPT soil sampling was
generally conducted at 0.76 m (2.5 ft) intervals to 2.13 m (7.0 ft), and every 1.52 m (5.0 ft)
thereafter, to borehole termination. Macro core (MC5) direct push sampling was typically
conducted between the SPT soil samples conducted below 3.05 m (10.0 ft) depth. A penetration
cone was conducted in Borehole 8 at a depth of 6.10 m (20.0 ft) to borehole termination. Also,
Macro core (MC5) direct push sampling was conducted continuously from the surface at
Boreholes 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 12, 13 and 14 to borehole termination.

Technical staff from CMT Inc. observed the drilling operation and collected and logged the
recovered soil samples. A small portion of each sample was placed in a sealed, marked jar for
moisture content determinations.

Boreholes 7, 10 and 15 were equipped with 25 mm diameter PVVC monitoring wells comprised of
1.5 m long screens backfilled with sand filter and then riser pipe, backfilled with bentonite. The
monitoring wells were installed according with the Ontario Water Resources Act,
Regulation 903 (O.Reg. 903) by well technicians licensed by the Ministry of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks (MECP), working for a contractor also licensed by the MECP.
Boreholes not instrumented with monitoring wells were backfilled with bentonite in accordance
with O.Reg. 903. The monitoring wells are registered with the MECP and must be
decommissioned in accordance with O.Reg. 903 prior to future construction. The well log
records are provided in Appendix C.
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Representative samples from the boreholes at the following depths were submitted to the CMT
Inc. laboratory in St. Clements, Ontario for grain size analyses:

Borehole 4 — approximate depth 0.20 m to 1.52 m (0.7 ft to 5.0 ft)
Borehole 5 — approximate depth 1.52 m to 3.05 m (5.0 ft to 10.0 ft)
Borehole 12 — approximate depth 0.20 m to 1.52 m (0.7 ft to 1.52 ft)
Borehole 15 — approximate depth 1.52 m to 2.13 m (5.0 ft to 7.0 ft)
Borehole 15 — approximate depth 3.05 m to 3.66 m (10.0 ft to 12.0 ft)

The borehole logs are provided in Appendix A and the grain size analyses are provided in
Appendix B.

CMT Inc. personnel surveyed the ground surface elevations at the borehole locations (using laser
survey equipment) on November 24,2022. The nail in hydro pole (set by
Cobide Engineering Inc.) was utilized as a temporary benchmark with a reported geodetic
elevation of 207.55 m. As such, the ground surface elevations at the borehole locations ranged
from approximately 203.37 m to 205.89 m. The locations of the boreholes are shown on
Drawing 2 and 3.

4.0 SUBSOIL CONDITIONS

The soils encountered in the boreholes are described briefly below with a more detailed
stratigraphic description provided on the borehole logs in Appendix A. The following paragraphs
have been simplified into terms of major soil strata. The soil boundaries indicated have been
inferred from non-continuous samples and observations of sampling and drilling resistance and
typically represent transitions from one soil type to another rather than exact planes of geological
change. Further, the subsurface conditions are anticipated to vary between and beyond the
borehole locations.

4.1. Asphaltic Concrete

Weathered, asphaltic concrete (asphalt) was encountered at the surface of Borehole 1 and
at the surface and underlying the granular fill at Boreholes 2 and 3. The thickness of the
asphalt at the borehole locations ranged from approximately 50 mm to 200 mm. The
asphalt thickness is anticipated to vary throughout the area of Bruce Road 3.





CMT Engineering Inc. Page 4
February 8, 2023 22-816.R01

4.2. Granular Fill

Loose, brown sand and gravel (granular fill) with trace silt and clay was encountered
underlying the surficial asphalt in Boreholes 1 and 3 and underlying the surface and
buried asphalt in Borehole 2. The thickness of the granular fill at the borehole locations
ranged between approximately 270 mm to 580 mm, however the thickness of the granular
fill is anticipated to vary throughout the project area of Bruce Road 3.

4.3. Topsoil/Buried Topsoil

Dark brown, very loose, moist, silty, organic topsoil was encountered at the surface in
Boreholes 4 to 15, inclusive and underlying the buried asphalt in Borehole 3. The
thickness of the topsoil/buried topsoil at the borehole locations ranged from
approximately 170 mm to 780 mm (average 475 mm). It should be expected that the
topsoil thickness will vary throughout the site. Materials noted as topsoil in this report
were classified based on visual and textural evidence. Testing of organic content or for
other nutrients was not carried out.

4.4. Sand Fill

Brown to black sand fill with trace organics was encountered underlying the granular fill
at Borehole 1. The sand fill had a thickness of approximately 2.06 m and was considered
to be visually compact at the time of the investigation. The sand fill was considered to be
moist, with a moisture content of approximately 10.0%.

45. Sand

Brown and/or grey sand, with trace to some silt, trace clay and gravel was encountered
underlying the sand fill in Borehole 1, underlying the granular fill in Borehole 2,
underlying the buried topsoil in Borehole 3, underlying the surficial topsoil at Boreholes
4 to 15, inclusive. The sand was considered to be very loose to dense, with SPT N-values
ranging from 2 to 32 blows per 0.30 m (average 17 blows per 0.30 m). The sand was
considered to be moist to saturated, with moisture contents ranging from about 15.7% to
25.1% (average 20.4%).
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4.6. Clayey Silt

Grey clayey silt with trace sand was encountered underlying the sand in Boreholes 8, 10
and 15 and within the sand in Borehole 9. The clayey silt soil was considered to be very
loose to dense, with SPT N-values ranging from 0 to 34 blows per 0.30 m (average 17
blows per 0.30 m). The clayey silt soil was considered to be saturated, with moisture
contents ranging from about 19.7% to 25.6% (average 22.7%).

47.  Groundwater

Monitoring wells were installed in Boreholes 7, 10 and 15 to measure the static
groundwater levels. The water levels in Boreholes 7, 10 and 15 were measured by CMT
Inc. personnel on December 14, 2022,

The recorded groundwater elevations from the monitoring wells installed in Boreholes 7,
10 and 15, the approximate zone of saturation observed in all of the boreholes, as well as
the ground surface and bottom of borehole elevations, are provided in the following table:

Approximate

Elevation of Water Estimated Zone

of Saturation

Ground in -
Borehole | Surface Monitoring Well atirs T'm? o Bottom of B_orehole
. Investigation Elevation
No. Elevation (m) (m)
(m) December 14, 2022 .
Elevation
(Depth to Water) {i)
BH 1 100.00 B 97.54 to 9.6.95 96.95
(assumed) (termination)
BH 2 100.00 _ 98.81 to 9.6.95 96.95
(assumed) (termination)
BH 3 100.00 B 98.48 t0 96.95 96.95
(assumed) (termination)

BH4 | 204.30 - 203.89 t0 201.25 201.25
(termination)

BH 5 204.07 - 203.85 to 201.02 201.02
(termination)

BH 6 205.53 - 204.92 to 204.01 204.01
(termination)

203.66 204.34 t0 199.33
BH7 204.51 (0.85) (termination) 199.33
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Approximate .
Elevation of Water Es?mated Z_one
Ground in 0 Saturatlon
- at the Time of Bottom of Borehole
Borehole | Surface Monitoring Well N .
. Investigation Elevation
No. Elevation (m) (m)
(m) December 14, 2022 .
Elevation
(Depth to Water) (i)
BH8 | 20525 - 205.01 to 197.63 197.63
(termination)
BHO | 20453 - 204.3010 197.82 197.82
(termination)
204.16 204.78 t0 199.88
BH 10 205.06 (0.90) (termination) 199.88
BH11 | 205.30 - 204.54 0 202.25 202.25
(termination)
BH12 | 205.67 - 20545 t0 204.15 204.15
(termination)
BH13 | 205.80 - 205.67 10 204.37 204.37
(termination)
BH14 | 204.97 - 204.72 10 203.45 203.45
(termination)
201.34 202.61to 197.27
BH 15 203.37 (2.03) (termination) 197.27

It should be noted that groundwater levels (particularly perched water) are generally
dependent on the amount of precipitation, control of surface water, as well as the time of
year, and can fluctuate significantly in elevation and volume. The groundwater levels and
wet soil conditions encountered in the boreholes could make some excavations difficult.
It should be expected that caving or sloughing of the excavation walls will occur.

The monitoring wells must be decommissioned in accordance with O.Reg. 903, prior to

the start of construction.
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5.0 DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The following sections of the report provides an interpretation of the factual geotechnical data
obtained during the investigation and is intended for the guidance of the design engineer. Where
comments are made on construction, they are provided only to highlight those aspects which
could affect the design of the project. Contractors bidding on or undertaking the work should
make their own independent interpretation of the factual subsurface information provided as it
affects their proposed construction means and methods, equipment selection, scheduling, pricing,
and the like.

Utilizing the information gathered during the geotechnical investigation and assuming that the

borehole information is representative of the subsoil conditions throughout the site, the following
comments and recommendations are provided:

5.1.  Serviceability and Ultimate Limit Pressure

Based on the information obtained from the boreholes located in the areas of the
proposed structures (Boreholes 7 to 11, and 15), the following table provides a summary
of the estimated geotechnical reaction at the Serviceability Limit State (SLS) and the
factored geotechnical resistance at the Ultimate Limit State (ULS) at the various
elevations, including soil types:

Ground Estimated Depth to
Borehole Surface SLS ULS Highest Highest Soil Tvoe
No. ) kPa (psf) kPa (psf) Founding Founding yp
Elevation . :
(m) Elevation Elevation
(m) (m)
BH7 204.51 150 (3,000) | 225 (4,500) | 203.75t0199.33 0.76 Sand
(termination)
150 (3,000) | 225 (4,500) | 204.49to 200.78 0.76 Sand
0 0 200.78 t0 490.72 4.47 Clayey Silt
BH 8 205.25 (founding not
recommended)
150 (5,000) | 225 (6,500) | 198.24 to 197.63 7.01 Clayey Silt
(termination)
BH9 204.53 150 (3,000) | 225 (4,500) | 203.77 to 197.82 0.76 Sand/Clayey Silt
(termination)
BH 10 205.06 | 150 (3,000) | 225 (4,500) | 203.54 to 199.88 1.52 Sand/Clayey Silt
(termination)
BH 11 20530 | 150 (3,000) | 225 (a,500) | 294:2410202.25 | 46 sand
(termination)






CMT Engineering Inc.

Page 8

February 8, 2023 22-816.R01
Ground Estimated Depth to
Borehole surface SLS ULS Highest Highest Soil Tvpe
No. . kPa (psf) kPa (psf) Founding Founding yp
Elevation . .
(m) Elevation Elevation
(m) (m)
150 (3,000) | 225 (4,500) | 202.61 to 200.32 0.76 Sand
25 (500) 50 (1,000) | 200.32 to 198.80 3.05 Sand/Clayey Silt
BH 15 203.37 (founding not
recommended)
150 (3,000) | 225 (4,500) | 198.80 to 197.27 4.57 Clayey Silt
(termination)

Based on the bearing capacities and elevations provided in the table above, suitable
founding elevations for conventional foundations designed with a minimum bearing
capacity of 150 kPa (3,000 psf) at SLS and 225 kPa (4,500 psf) at the Ultimate Limit
State (ULS) generally range below elevations 204.54 m to 198.24 m for Boreholes 7 to
11, and 15 which corresponds with depths ranging between approximately 0.76 m and
7.01 m below the existing ground surface at the borehole locations.

Due to the varying depth of very loose to loose native soils and wet to saturated soils, the
founding soils must be assessed at the time of construction by qualified geotechnical
personnel in order to confirm their founding suitability, and to determine whether or not
mud mats and/or widening the footings may be required.

Should footings be designed to be constructed at elevations higher than the elevations
indicated in the table above, then structural fill will be required in order to achieve the
design grades for the proposed foundations. The serviceability limit pressure for good
quality granular structural fill placed and compacted in accordance with Section 5.4.4 of
this report and constructed on approved competent native soil is estimated to be at least
150 kPa (3,000 psf) at SLS and 225 kPa (4,500 psf) at ULS. Lean mix concrete fill could
also be utilized for this application.

Alternatively, footings could be stepped down to bear on approved undisturbed founding
soils. Due to the presence of very loose to loose soil and potential wet soil conditions, it
is imperative that the founding soils be assessed at the time of construction by qualified
geotechnical personnel in order to confirm their founding suitability.

Footings may be placed at a higher elevation relative to another footing provided that the
slope between the outside face of the footings is separated by a minimum slope of
10 horizontal to 7 vertical (10H:7V) with an imaginary line projected from the underside
of the footings. This must be taken into account for any deep structures such as elevator
pits, sump pits and/or pump chambers.
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It is recommended that structural foundation drawings be cross-referenced with site
servicing drawings to ensure that service pipes do not conflict with building foundations
(including the zone of influence down and away from the footings).

With respect to the Serviceability Limit State (SLS), the total and differential footing
settlements are not expected to exceed the generally acceptable limits of 25 mm (1") and
19 mm (3/4") respectively, assuming a minimum footing width of 0.6 m.

All exterior footings must be provided with a minimum of 1.2 m of soil cover or
equivalent thermal insulation in order to provide protection against frost action.

It should be noted that the native soils that exist at or below founding elevations may be
in a wet state and may be too wet to provide suitable bearing for foundations without
drainage, construction of a mud mat or granular drainage layer. It is imperative that the
subgrade soil be inspected and approved by competent geotechnical personnel to ensure
that the founding soils are suitable for bearing. Dewatering during construction may be
required (see Section 5.8 of this report).

At the time of investigation, the proposed founding elevations were not available.
CMT Inc. would be pleased to review design drawings when they become available and
provide further recommendations with respect to bearing and foundation elevations.

5.2.  Existing Road Structure Summary (Bruce Road 3)

Boreholes 1, 2 and 3 were advanced on Bruce Road 3 as part of the investigation for
the industrial facility expansion. Boreholes 1 and 3 were advanced in the South
bound lane and Borehole 2 was advanced in the North bound lane. The locations of
Boreholes 1, 2 and 3 are shown on Drawing 2.

Asphalt Granular Fill
Thickness Thickness
Borehole (mm) (mm) Subgrade Material

BH 1 125 270 Sand Fill/Sand
BH 2 200 (upper) 560 (upper) Sand

90 (lower) 340 (lower)
BH 3 113 (upper) 580 (upper) Topsoil/Sand

50 (lower) 0 (lower)
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The existing granular road base was observed to have an average estimated thickness of
438 m. A buried layer of asphalt was encountered in Boreholes 2 and 3 as well as a
buried granular layer in Borehole 2. Buried topsoil was encountered underlying the
buried asphalt is Borehole 3. Buried topsoil/organic material are highly susceptible to
frost heaving, low in permeability and have low strength values which can lead to frost
boils during rapid thawing and subsequent failure of the pavement structure. The existing
granular base was not tested with respect to OPSS 1010 gradation requirements for
Granular ‘A" or Granular 'B'; however, typically granular base materials that have been in
place over a prolonged period of time do not meet the gradation requirements of
OPSS 1010 and are not generally considered suitable for reuse in the new pavement
structure. In most cases, the materials exceed the allowable amount of fine soils
(materials passing the #200 sieve). The elevated fines content can generally be attributed
to mechanical breakdown of the aggregate which occurs over time due to vehicular traffic
as well as freeze/thaw cycles. As such, it is recommended that imported OPSS 1010
Granular 'B' and OPSS 1010 Granular 'A" materials be utilized in any new pavement
structure. The existing granular fill can be reused as backfill and/or roadway subgrade
fill, if required.

5.3. Seismic Site Classification

The site classification for seismic response in Table 4.1.8.4 of the 2012 Ontario Building
Code relates to the average properties of the upper 30.0 m of strata. The information
obtained in the geotechnical field investigation was gathered from the upper 1.52 m to
7.62 m of strata. Based on the information gathered in the geotechnical field
investigation, the site classification for seismic site response would be considered Site
Class D (stiff soil) for structures founded on the native soils at the recommended
founding elevations provided in Section 5.1 of this report. For foundations constructed on
structural fill, placed in accordance with Section 5.5.4. of this report, the site
classification for seismic site response would be considered Site Class D (stiff soil). The
structural engineer responsible for the design of the structure should review the
earthquake loads and effects.

5.4. Soil Design Parameters

The following table provides the estimated soil design parameters for imported granular
fill, as well as the existing native soils encountered on-site. It should be noted that earth
pressure coefficients (Ka, Kp, Ko) provided are for flat ground surface conditions and
will differ for areas with slopes or embankments.
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The estimated soil design parameters can be utilized for the design of perimeter shoring,
foundations and retaining walls, as required:

Soil/Rock | Eriction Coeffic_ient Coeffici_ent Coefficient Coefficient _
Soil Type Density Angle of Active | of Passive | of At-Rest of Eriction Cohesion
(kg/m®) | (Degree) Pressure Pressure Pressure o) (kPa)
(Ka) (Kp) (Ko)
Imported
Granular 'A' 2,100 34° 0.28 3.54 0.44 0.45 0
(OPSS 1010)
Imported
Granular 'B' 2,050 32° 0.31 3.25 0.47 041 0
(OPSS 1010)
Sand 1,850 33° 0.29 3.39 0.46 0.43 0
Clayey Silt 1,900 32° 0.31 3.25 0.47 0.41 0
5.5.  Site Preparation

The site preparation for the proposed new industrial expansion is anticipated to consist of
topsoil stripping, vegetation grubbing, removal of fill and unsuitable soils, the removal or
relocation of any existing services, the subexcavation of all unsuitable native soils
deemed not capable of supporting the design bearing capacity, followed by the placement
of structural fill (as required) and site grading to achieve proposed grades.

5.5.1. Topsoil Stripping and Vegetation Grubbing

All topsoil (including buried topsoil if encountered) must be removed from within
all proposed buildings, outdoor storage area, driveways, and parking lot envelopes
to expose approved competent subgrade soils. The topsoil may be used in
landscaped areas where some settlement can be tolerated; otherwise it should be
properly disposed of off-site.

Any vegetation (including tree stumps and root structures, as well as any loose
soils that are typically associated with root structures) must be removed from
within the proposed building, outdoor storage area, driveway, and parking lot
envelopes to expose approved competent subgrade soils.
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5.5.2. Fill/Unsuitable Soil Removal

Any existing fill containing organic material or unsuitable deleterious materials
such as ash or bricks, as well as any fill or native soils that are deemed unsuitable
to support foundations or slab-on-grades, must be subexcavated from within the
proposed building envelopes to expose approved competent subgrade soil. It
would also be sound construction practice to subexcavate all existing loose fill
from the outdoor storage area, parking lot and driveway areas; however, this may
not be cost-effective. At a minimum, any fill with intermixed organic material
should be subexcavated to prevent issues associated with frost heaving such as
loss of structural integrity and frost boils. Thorough inspection will be required at
the time of construction to assess any existing fill to ensure there is no buried
topsoil or other deleterious materials within the subgrade. Remedial action may
also be required to further consolidate any existing fill if it is decided to leave it in
place under the outdoor storage area, driveway, and parking lot areas. It would be
expected that some air-drying may be required in order to achieve the design
compaction. If any existing fill is left in place in the outdoor storage
area/driveway/parking lot, provisions for alterations to the design of the
pavement/gravel structure should be included in the tender documents. Review of
the subgrade including proof-roll and potential changes to the design of the
pavement/gravel structure, as required, will have to be addressed at the time of
construction.

Any subexcavated fill that may be intermixed with organics could be used in

non-structural landscaped areas where some settlement can be tolerated;
otherwise, it should be disposed of accordingly off-site.

5.5.3. Removal/Relocation of Existing Services

Any existing/abandoned underground services, including field tiles, (if present)
that may be located within the proposed building envelope, outdoor storage area,
parking lot and driveway areas should be removed/relocated. If left in place, the
location of existing services must be reviewed to ensure that they do not conflict
with the proposed foundation locations. Any terminated piping that is left in place
must be completely sealed with watertight mechanical covers, concrete, or grout
at termination points to prevent the migration of soils into pipe voids which can
result in potential settlement. All existing trench backfill material associated with
underground services must be subexcavated and the subsequent excavation should
be backfilled with approved soils placed in accordance with Section 5.5.4 of this
report.
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5.5.4. Site Grading

Following the subexcavation of any soils deemed unsuitable of supporting
foundations, slab-on-grade and/or outdoor storage area, driveway and parking lot
pavement/gravel structure, the exposed subgrade must be proof-rolled and any
loose/soft or unstable areas must be subexcavated and replaced with approved fill
materials.

Any fill materials required to achieve the design site grades should be placed
according to the following procedures:

Should the native subgrade soils at the design founding elevation in the
proposed building envelope(s) be comprised of wet or saturated soils, then a
granular drainage layer constructed in accordance with Section 9.14.4 of the
current Ontario Building Code (OBC) may be required. Alternatively, a lean
mix concrete mud mat may be placed overlying the subgrade soils to provide
a stable base;

Prior to placement of any structural fill, the subgrade for the proposed new
building, as well as the outdoor storage area, parking lots and driveways, must
be prepared large enough to accommodate a 1:1 slope commencing a distance
of 1.0 m beyond the outside edge of the proposed foundation and
pavement/concrete edge (where feasible) down to the approved competent
founding soils;

Soils approved for use as structural fill must be placed in loose lifts not
exceeding 0.3 m (12") in depth for granular soils (recommended fill materials)
and 0.2 m (8") in depth for silts and clays, or the capacity of the compactor
(whichever is less);

Imported granular fill materials (OPSS 1010 Type | or Type Il Granular 'B'
recommended for this application) can be compacted utilizing adequate heavy
vibratory smooth drum compaction equipment;

Fine-grained silt and clay soils (not recommended) must be compacted
utilizing adequate heavy padfoot vibratory compaction equipment;

Approved fill materials must be at suitable moisture contents to achieve the
specified compaction. The wet soils encountered in the boreholes would
generally be considered difficult for use as structural fill as they would require
extensive air-drying in order to achieve the specified density. Soil moisture
will also be dependent on weather conditions at the time of construction.
Granular soils may require the addition of water in order to achieve the
specified compaction;
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e Approved structural fill materials that will support structures (including
foundations, interior slab-on-grades, sidewalks and large expansive exterior
slabs) must be compacted to 100% standard Proctor maximum dry density
(SPMDD);

e Approved bulk fill (foundation wall backfill, bulk fill under slab-on-grades
that will not support footings or heavy point loading, bulk fill for outdoor
storage areas, driveways and parking lots) must be compacted to a minimum
95% SPMDD;

e Granular 'B' subbase and Granular'A' base materials for the roadway and
driveways, parking lot and outdoor storage areas must be compacted to 100%
SPMDD.

Based on the subsurface conditions observed in the boreholes, wet to saturated
soils will likely be encountered, depending on the depth of excavation. As such,
for soils excavated from the zone of saturation, significant air-drying along with
working of the soils may be required in order to achieve the specified compaction
of 100% SPMDD for structural fill and 95% SPMDD for bulk fill for the outdoor
storage area, parking lot and driveways. Utilizing the existing soils during site
grading may be more achievable if work is completed during the generally drier
summer months. Reuse of excavated soils on-site will be subject to approval from
qualified geotechnical personnel.

5.6. Foundation Subgrade Preparation

The native soils encountered in the boreholes are sensitive to changes in moisture content
and can become loose/soft if subjected to additional water or precipitation as well as
severe drying conditions. The native subgrade soils could also be easily disturbed if
traveled on during construction. Once they become disturbed, they are no longer
considered adequate for the support of shallow foundations. To ensure and protect the
integrity of the founding soils during construction operations, the following is
recommended:

e During construction, the subgrade should be sloped/ditched to a sump (as required)
located outside the building footprint (if feasible) in the excavation to promote
surface drainage of rainwater or seepage, and the collected water should be pumped
out of the excavation. It is critical that all water be controlled (not allowed to pond)
and that the subgrade and foundation preparation commence in dry conditions;
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e Should the native subgrade soils at the design founding elevations in the proposed
building envelope(s) comprise of wet/saturated soils, then a granular drainage layer,
constructed in accordance with Section 9.14.4 of the current Ontario Building Code
(OBC), may be required;

e Construction equipment travel and foot traffic on the founding soils should be
minimized;

e If construction is to be undertaken during subzero weather conditions, the founding
native soils and any potential fill materials must be maintained above freezing;

e Prior to placing concrete for the foundation, the area must be cleaned of all disturbed
or caved materials;

e The foundation formwork and concrete should be installed as soon as practical
following the excavation, inspection and approval of the founding soils. The longer
that the excavated soils remains open to weather conditions and groundwater seepage,
the greater the potential for construction problems to occur;

e |Ifitis expected that the founding soils will be left open to exposure for an extended
period of time, it is recommended that a 75 mm concrete mud slab be placed in order
to protect the structural integrity of the founding soils.

5.7. Slab-on-Grade/Modulus of Subgrade Reaction

Prior to the placement of the granular base for any slab-on-grade construction, the
subgrade should be proof-rolled. Any soft or weak zones, as well as any potential
unsuitable fill in the subgrade, should be subexcavated and backfilled with approved fill
materials (see Sections 5.5.4 and 5.10 of this report).

The following table provides the estimated modulus of subgrade reaction (k) for the
native soils encountered on-site:

Soil Type Estimated Modulus of Subgrade
Reaction (k)

Imported Granular 'A'/Granular 'B' s i
(OPSS 1010) 81,000 KN/m* (300 Ib/in®)

Sand 41,000 KN/m? (150 Ib/ind)
Clayey Silt 61,000 KN/m?® (225 Ib/in)
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In dry conditions, any slab-on-grades can be founded on a minimum thickness of 150 mm
(6™) of an OPSS 1010 granular material containing less than 10% fines and compacted to
100% SPMDD. Alternatively (particularly in wet conditions, which is anticipated),
150 mm (6™) of 19 mm clear crushed stone (OPSS 1004) should be used. Utilizing clear
crushed stone for the slab-on-grade base can assist in providing a moisture barrier by
reducing the potential for capillary rise of moisture from the subgrade soils. Compactive
effort is required to consolidate the clear stone. The 19 mm clear crushed stone should
meet the physical property and gradation requirements of OPSS 1004.

It is recommended that areas of extensive exterior slab-on-grade (sidewalks, accessibility
ramps and exterior stairs) be constructed with a Granular 'B' subbase (450 mm) and a
Granular 'A' base (150 mm), as well as incorporating subdrains, to provide rapid drainage
and reduce the effects of frost heaving. This is particularly critical at all barrier-free
access points. Alternatively, structural frost slabs could be designed and constructed, or
sufficient thermal insulation could be provided, at all door entrances and areas of
barrier-free access.

5.8. Excavations

All excavations must be carried out in accordance with Ontario Regulation 213/91
(Reg 213/91) of the Occupational Health and Safety Act and Regulations for
Construction Projects.

Type 3 Soils - In general, the fill and native soils encountered in the boreholes in a
drained state (not wet or saturated), would be classified as Type 3 soils under
Reg 213/91. The Type 3 soils must be sloped from the bottom of the excavation at a
minimum gradient of 1 horizontal to 1 vertical. All saturated soils encountered must be
treated as Type 4 soils, as described below.

Type 4 Soils - In general, any wet to saturated soils would be classified as Type 4 soils
under Reg 213/91. Type 4 soils must be sloped from the bottom of the excavation at a
minimum gradient of 3 horizontal to 1 vertical.

If it is not practical to excavate according to the above requirements, then a trench
support system (designed in accordance with the Ontario Health and Safety Act
Regulations) may be utilized. When using a temporary trench support system consisting
of trench boxes to reduce the lateral extent of the excavations, it should be noted that the
support system is intended primarily for the protection of workers as opposed to
controlling lateral soil movement. Any voids between the excavation walls and the
support system should be immediately filled to reduce the potential for loss of ground and
to provide support to existing adjacent utilities and structures, and it is recommended that
the excavation be carried out in short sections, with the support system installed
immediately upon excavation completion.
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5.9. Construction Dewatering Considerations

Monitoring wells were installed in Boreholes 7, 10 and 15 as part of the geotechnical
field investigation to measure the static groundwater level; however, wet to saturated
soils were observed in all of the boreholes. It should be noted that groundwater levels
were observed to range from approximately 0.85 m to 2.03 m below the existing ground
surface. Groundwater levels (particularly perched water) are generally dependent on the
amount of precipitation, control of surface water, as well as the time of year, and can
fluctuate significantly in elevation and volume. As such, provisions for site dewatering
should be part of the site development and construction process.

Seepage control requirements during construction will depend upon the area of work on
the site, the depth of the excavations, the time of year, the amount of precipitation and the
control of surface water. As required, seepage should generally be adequately controlled
using conventional construction dewatering techniques such as pumping from sump pits.
However, if heavy seepage occurs, it may be necessary to increase the number of pumps
or install a dewatering system during construction.

Dewatering should be performed in accordance with OPSS 517 and the control of water
must be in accordance with OPSS 518. It is the responsibility of the contractor to propose
a suitable dewatering system based on the groundwater elevation at the time of
construction. Collected water should discharge a sufficient distance away from the
excavation to prevent re-entry. Sediment control measures must be installed at the
discharge point of the dewatering system to avoid any potential adverse impacts on the
environment. It is recommended that the environmental consultant for this project be
consulted prior to any on-site water being discharged to municipal outlets to ensure
proper procedures are followed.

5.10. Service Pipe Bedding

The existing native soils encountered in the geotechnical investigation are generally
considered suitable for indirect support of the site service pipes. It is anticipate that some
instability due to saturated soil conditions will be encountered and as such it may be
necessary to increase the thickness of the granular base and utilize 19 mm clear stone to
create an adequate supporting base for the service pipes and/or manholes. Pipe
embedment, cover and backfill for both flexible and rigid pipes should be in accordance
with all current and applicable OPSD, OPSS and OBC standards and guidelines and as
follows:
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Flexible Pipes - The pipe bedding should be shaped to receive the bottom of the pipe. If
necessary, pipe culvert frost treatment should be undertaken in accordance with
OPSD-803.031. The trench excavations should be symmetrical with respect to the
centreline of the pipe. The granular material placed under the haunches of the pipe must
be compacted to 100% SPMDD prior to the continued placement and compaction of the
embedment material. The homogeneous granular material used for embedment should be
placed and compacted uniformly around the pipe. Should wet conditions be encountered
(anticipated) at the base of the trench, then the pipe bedding should consist of 19 mm
clear stone (meeting OPS Specifications) wrapped completely in a geotextile fabric such
as Terrafix 270 or equivalent.

Rigid Pipes - In general, the pipe installation recommendations for rigid pipes are the
same as those for flexible pipes, except that the minimum bedding depth below a rigid
pipe should be 0.15D (where D is the pipe diameter). In no case should this dimension be
less than 150 mm or greater than 300 mm.

Any service pipes that are not provided with sufficient frost coverage must be protected

with the necessary equivalent thermal insulation. The general contractor is responsible to
protect existing and new service piping from damage by heavy equipment.

5.11. Perimeter Building Drainage, Foundation Wall Backfill and Trench Backfill

In order to assist in maintaining dry buildings with respect to surface water seepage, it is
recommended that the exterior grades around the buildings be sloped down and away at a
2% gradient or more, for a distance of at least 1.5 m. Any surface discharge rainwater
leaders must be constructed with solid piping that discharges with positive drainage at
least 1.5 m away from the building foundations and/or beyond external slab-on-grades to
a drainage swale or appropriate storm drainage system.

Depending on the design founding elevations and groundwater levels at the time of
construction, it may be necessary to install a granular drainage layer to provide a suitable
base for the foundations. The granular drainage layer must conform to the general
requirements listed in Section 9.14.4 of the OBC 2012.

Should any of the proposed structures have a basement, an exterior perimeter drainage
system comprising perforated drainage pipe with a factory installed filter sock, bedded in
19 mm clear crushed stone, and wrapped in a geotextile filter fabric such as Terrafix
270R (or equivalent), is recommended to improve drainage around the buildings. The
drainage pipe should be installed at the founding elevation and be constructed with
positive drainage into a sump pit or other suitable outlet that provides positive drainage
away from the structure. The portion of the piping that connects any exterior drainage tile
system into an interior sump pit must comprise solid piping to prevent exterior water
from being introduced into the interior subslab stone. It may be prudent to install
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perforated drainage pipe in the interior area as well to provide an outlet for any water that
may collect in the subslab stone. It is also recommended that a capped cleanout port(s) be
extended up to the ground surface elevation to provide future access (if required).
Rainwater leaders must not be connected to the perimeter drainage system. Any
foundation walls that are constructed below the water table must be waterproofed, not
dampproofed. A waterproofing system should be installed in accordance with the OBC
(2012). 1t is recommended that a waterproofing specialist be consulted for a
waterproofing system to suit the site conditions.

In order to reduce the effects of surficial frost heave in areas that will be hard surfaced, it
is recommended that the exterior foundation backfill consist of free-draining granular
material such as imported sand or Granular 'B' Type | or Type Il (OPSS 1010), with a
maximum aggregate size not exceeding 100 mm, and that it extend a minimum lateral
distance of 600 mm out from the foundation walls and/or beyond perimeter sidewalks
and entranceway slabs. It is critical that particles greater than 100 mm in diameter are not
in contact with the foundation wall to prevent point loading and overstressing. The
backfill material used against the foundation walls must be placed such that the allowable
lateral capacities of the foundation walls are not exceeded. Where only one side of a
foundation wall will be backfilled, and the height of the wall is such that lateral support is
required, or where the concrete strength has not been achieved, the wall must be braced
or laterally supported prior to backfilling. In situations where both sides of the wall are
backfilled, the backfill should be placed in equal lifts, not exceeding 200 mm differential
on each side during backfill operations and the backfill should be compacted to a
minimum of 98% SPMDD.

It is recommended that frost tapers be constructed (refer to OPSD 3101.150 for typical
details) in order to minimize differential frost action between the foundation wall backfill
and any paved areas. The frost taper must be constructed utilizing the OPSS 1010
granular material that is used for the foundation wall backfill.

The native mineral soils, free of any organics or deleterious materials are generally
considered suitable for reuse as trench backfill and bulk fill; however, wet soils
encountered may require air-drying in order to achieve the specified compaction.
Air-drying cannot typically be achieved during winter construction; therefore, depending
on the time of year that construction takes place, it may be more feasible to utilize an
imported granular fill for this project (keeping in mind that frost tapers, as noted above,
would be recommended to minimize differential frost heave).
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Backfilling operations should be carried out with the following minimum requirements:

e Adequate heavy padfoot vibratory compaction equipment should be used for the
compaction and to break down any large blocky pieces of soil;

e Loose lift thicknesses should not exceed 0.3 m (12") for granular soils or 0.2 m (8")
for silt soils or the capacity of the compactor (whichever is less);

e The soils must be at suitable moisture contents to achieve compaction to a minimum
95% SPMDD in non-structural bulk fill areas. Service trenches excavated within the
zone of influence of footings for structures must be compacted to a minimum of
100% SPMDD;

e It is recommended that inspection and testing be carried out during construction to
confirm backfill quality, thickness and to ensure that compaction requirements are
achieved;

e Service trench backfill materials may consist of approved excavated soils with no
particles greater than 100 mm and no topsoil or other deleterious materials;

e If construction operations are undertaken in the winter, strict consideration should be

given to the condition of the backfill material to make certain that frozen material is
not used.

5.12. Pavement/Gravel Base Design/Drainage

All loose/soft native soils must be stripped and subexcavated from within the proposed
outdoor storage areas, sidewalks, driveways and surface parking lot areas; however, this
may not be cost-effective. At a minimum, any existing fill with intermixed organic
material, or other deleterious material should be subexcavated from the outdoor storage
areas, driveways and parking lot areas to prevent problems associated with frost heaving
such as loss of structural integrity and frost boils. Thorough inspection and proof-rolling
will be required at the time of construction to assess the existing fill to ensure there is no
deleterious material within the subgrade. Remedial action will also be required to further
consolidate any existing fill and/or loose/soft native soils if it is decided to leave them in
place. It would be expected that significant air-drying may be required in order to achieve
the design compaction. If any existing fill is left in place in the parking lot, provisions for
the alterations to the design of the pavement/gravel structure such as increasing the
thickness of the Granular 'B' base, installing a reinforcing geotextile and/or installing
biaxial geogrids, should be included in the tender documents. Review of the subgrade and
potential changes to the design of the pavement/gravel structure, as required, will have to
be addressed at the time of construction.
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Prior to placement of the granular base, the subgrade must be proof-rolled and any soft or
unstable areas should be subexcavated and replaced with suitable drier materials. The
subgrade should be graded smooth (free of depressions) and properly crowned to ensure
positive drainage, with a minimum grade of 3% toward catch basins or to the outdoor
storage area/parking lot/driveway edge (provided collection and proper gravity drainage
to a suitable outlet is provided). When service pipes are installed, pipe bedding and
backfilling should be undertaken as indicated in Sections 5.9 and 5.10 of this report.

Rapid drainage of the pavement/gravel structure is critical to ensure long-term
performance. The requirement for subdrains will be dependent on the composition of the
prepared pavement subgrade soils. It is recommended to install minimum 100 mm
diameter perforated subdrains to collect and redirect water beneath the pavement surface.
Subdrains should be designed and installed in accordance with OPSS 405 and
OPSD 216.021. If Granular ‘A" bedding (OPSS 1010) is utilized, the subdrains should be
equipped with a factory installed filter sock. If 19 mm clear stone (OPSS 1004) is utilized
as bedding for the subdrain, then the bedding must be wrapped completely with
geotextile filter fabric such as Terrafix 270R (or equivalent) and a factory installed filter
sock is not required. Installation of rigid subdrains allows for better grade control and
less potential for damage during installation; however, it would be expected that there
would be higher cost implications associated with the installation of rigid subdrains over
flexible subdrains. Positive drainage through grade control of subdrains is critical, as
improperly installed subdrains can turn drainage systems into reservoirs, which can fuel
frost action. The subdrains will hasten the removal of water, thereby reducing the risk and
effects of frost heaving and load transfer in saturated conditions. It is suggested that, at a
minimum, subdrains be installed through all low areas in the outdoor storage areas,
parking areas and driveways, and ideally along the curb lines as well to prevent water
from entering the granular subbase. The subdrains should be installed in a 0.3 m (1.0 ft)
by 0.3 m (1.0 ft) trench in the subgrade and bedded approximately 50 mm (2") above the
bottom of the trench. The subgrade must be prepared with positive drainage to the
subdrains and the subdrains must be installed with positive drainage into a catch basin
structure or other suitable outlet.

Should the subgrade soils comprise free-draining granular soils (minimum 1.0 m thick
with positive drainage at the interface with any relatively impermeable soils), then the
installation of subdrains may not be required.

The native subgrade soils are sensitive to changes in moisture content and can become
loose or soft if the soils are subject to inclement weather and seepage or severe drying.
Furthermore, the subgrade soils could be easily disturbed if traveled on during
construction. As such, where this material will be exposed, it is recommended that the
granular subbase be placed immediately upon completion of the subgrade preparation to
protect the integrity of the subgrade soils.
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It is expected that the outdoor storage areas, driveways and parking lots will experience
some light traffic (personal vehicles) and mostly heavy traffic (loading equipment,
delivery trucks, maintenance and emergency vehicles).

Based on the anticipated loading, the following pavement/gravel designs are provided:

Pavement Driving Surface (if constructed)

Recommended Thickness

Material For New Pavement (if constructed)
Light Traffic Heavy Traffic
: HL3 - 40 mm (1.5") HL3 - 50 mm (2.0")
Asphaltic Concrete 1) 4 141 8- 50 mm (2.0%) | HL4 or HL8 - 75 mm (3.0")
Granular 'A' Base 150 mm (6.0") 150 mm (6.0")
Granular 'B' Subbase 400 mm (16.0™) 450 mm (18.0™)

Based on the anticipated loading, the following gravel design is provided:

Gravel Driving Surface (if constructed)

Recommended Thickness for New
Material Gravel Base (if constructed)
(Light/Heavy Traffic)
Granular 'A' Base (OPSS 1010) 200 mm (8.0")
Granular 'B' Subbase (OPSS 1010) 600 mm (24.0™)

Should wet to saturated conditions be encountered during construction (anticipated), site
assessments may be required at the time of construction to determine what options can be
undertaken to construct a stable outdoor storage area, driveway, and parking lot base.
These options may include subexcavation and increasing the thickness of the Granular 'B'
subbase, the use of reinforcing geotextile and/or geogrid, or a combination of all. As
such, it is recommended that provisions for subexcavation and disposal of wet soils,
importing and placing additional Granular 'B' (OPSS 1010), as well as supply and
placement of a reinforcing geotextile (Terrafix 270R or equivalent) and geogrid
(Tensar BX1200 or equivalent) should be included in the tender documents.

The granular base and subbase materials must conform to the physical property and
gradation requirements of OPSS 1010 and must be compacted to 100% SPMDD.
Asphaltic concrete should be supplied, placed, and compacted to a minimum
92.0% Marshall maximum relative density, in accordance with OPSS 1150 and
OPSS 310.
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Construction joints in the surface asphalt must be offset a minimum of 150 mm to
300 mm (6" to 12") from construction joints in the binder asphalt so that longitudinal
joints do not coincide.

Frost tapers must be constructed at any changes from light traffic to heavy traffic areas. If
heavy traffic routes are not delineated by barriers or if it is anticipated that heavy
equipment (such as loaders and dump trucks) will be utilized for snow removal, it would
be recommended that the heavy traffic pavement structure be utilized throughout.

Where new asphalt is joined into existing asphalt, it is recommended that the existing
asphalt be sawcut in a straight line prior to being milled to a depth of 40 mm and a width
of 150 mm as per OPSD 509.010. It is recommended that a tackcoat in conformance with
OPSS 308 be applied to the edge and surface of all milled asphalt prior to placement of
new asphalt.

The pavement should be designed to ensure that water will not pond on the pavement
surface. If the surface asphalt is not placed within a reasonable time following placement
of the binder asphalt, it is recommended that the catch basin lids are set at a lower
elevation or apertures provided to allow surface water to drain into the catch basins and
not accumulate around the catch basins. The strength of the pavement structure relies on
all of the components to be in place in order to provide the design strength; therefore, it is
strongly recommended that the surface asphalt be placed shortly after placement of the
binder asphalt so as to avoid undue stress on the binder asphalt by not having the
complete pavement structure in place.

It would be expected that the grade will slope towards the proposed building in any
loading dock areas. Therefore, it will be necessary to install a catch basin or drainage
trench in the lower loading dock areas to collect and remove water, thereby limiting the
potential for water to accumulate in this low-lying area. The catch basins/drainage trench
must be provided with positive drainage to a suitable outlet. Alternatively, a pump system
may be required. It is imperative that the granular base be effectively drained throughout
the loading dock areas in order to avoid potential issues with frost heave and/or rutting. It
is recommended that concrete dolly pads be constructed in the loading dock area if
trailers will be unhitched and left on the ramps. Furthermore, if trucks and/or trailers are
expected to sit for long periods of time on the loading dock ramps, it would be
recommended to consider utilizing rigid concrete pavement throughout the loading dock
areas as well as any long-term truck/trailer storage areas.

It should be noted that, currently, asphalt mixes tend to be more flexible and, as such,
there is a tendency for damage to occur from vehicles turning their steering wheels or
applying excessive brake pressure. The damage can occur from both passenger vehicles
as well as large vehicles. The condition is further intensified during hot weather. In high
traffic/tight turning areas or locations where trucks/trailers will be parked for significant
periods of time, it is recommended that rigid Portland cement pavement be considered.
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5.13. Chemical Analyses/Excess Soil Management

5.13.1. Chemical Testing was NOT Undertaken

Generally, if surplus soils are to be exported off-site, it will be necessary to
perform chemical analysis of the soils. Chemical analysis was not undertaken as
part of this geotechnical investigation. Should chemical analysis tests be required,
the required tests vary and will be dependent on the disposal site utilized by the
general contractor.

5.13.2. Leachate Requirement

If soils are transported to a landfill facility, additional chemical testing in
accordance with Ontario Regulation 347, Schedule 4, as amended to Ontario
Regulation 558/00, dated March 2001, Toxicity Characteristic Leaching
Procedure (TCLP) will be required.

When transporting soils off-site, the following is recommended:

e All chemical analyses and environmental assessment reports must be fully
disclosed to the receiving site owners/authorities, whom must agree to
receive the material;

e An environmental consultant must confirm the land use at the receiving site is
compatible to receive the material,

e An environmental consultant must monitor the transportation and placement
of the materials to ensure that the material is placed appropriately at the
pre-approved site;

e The excess materials may not be transported to a site that has previously had
a Record of Site Condition (RSC) filed, unless the material meets the criteria
outlined in the RSC.

It should be noted that landfill sites will generally only accept laboratory test
results that have been completed within 30 days of exporting. Therefore, it is
recommended that provisions for chemical analysis be included in the tender
documents. It should also be noted that the laboratory testing generally takes
five (5) working days to process with a regular turnaround time.
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5.14. Infiltration

As part of the geotechnical investigation completed at this site, gradation analyses were
performed on representative samples of the native soils in the area of the proposed
SWMP.

The following table provides the sample location (borehole number), sample depth,
corresponding estimated coefficient of permeability (k), as well as soil type:

Estimated
Borehole Depth Coefficient of Soil Tvoe
No. (m) Permeability (k) yp
cm/s
BH 15 150-213 3.03 x 10° Sand, some sHt,(tg?\;()e clay and gravel
_ 7 Clayey silt, trace sand
BH 15 3.05-3.66 2.11x 10 (ML)

It is anticipated that an infiltration gallery or stormwater management pond with
infiltration are to be installed as part of the development, the soils at the infiltration
location should be further assessed via insitu testing, however based on the information
obtained during the investigation it is anticipated that the sand soils encountered on the
site would be considered suitable for infiltration. The fine-grained clayey silt soils
encountered in the boreholes have the potential to create perched water conditions which
can result in wet to saturated zones. Perched water levels are generally dependent on the
amount of precipitation, control of surface water, as well as the time of year, and can
fluctuate significantly in elevation and volume.

5.15. Percolation Rate (T-Time)

As part of the geotechnical investigation completed at this site, gradation analyses were
performed on representative samples of the native soils in the area of the proposed septic
system for the purposes of septic design for the proposed industrial development. The
following table provides the sample location (borehole number), sample depth,
corresponding estimated percolation rate (T-time), as well as soil type that may be
encountered in the septic leaching bed areas:

Borehole Depth . .
No. (m) T = min/cm Soil Type
Sand, trace silt, clay and gravel
4 0.20-1.52 12 (SP-SM)
Sand, trace silt, clay and gravel
7 10.67 - 11.28 12 (SP-SM)
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5.16 Retaining Wall Recommendations (if constructed)

An engineer must design any proposed retaining wall for the site if any retaining walls
are over 1.0 m in height. Retaining walls over 1.0 m in height would be considered a
designated structure under the building code (OBC 1.3.1.1., 2012). In the past, cast in
place concrete retaining walls, precast gravity segmental block retaining walls and
mechanically stabilized earth (MSE) precast segmental block retaining walls have been
cost effective methods for earth retention.

The site plans should ensure that if the retaining wall is retaining the neighboring
property (subject site is on the low side and neighbor is on the high side) near the
property line, sufficient space is left to keep the retaining wall structure (including all
components such as geogrid and granular fill) and corresponding excavation entirely on
the subject site (as per section 5.7. excavation requirements). The widths of retaining
structures vary depending on the type and retained height. Generally, all trees should not
be planted within 3.0 m from the back of the retaining wall structure or within a 1H:1V
envelope measured from the back of the bottom of the retaining wall structure (whichever
is greater), to reduce the probability of failure due to frost heave, root penetration,
unaccounted for live/dead loads from the trees and other factors.

CMT Engineering Inc. would be pleased to offer consulting services on the feasibility of
the proposed retaining wall heights and locations from a construction and long-term
design perspective.

5.17 Radon

According to information provided by Health Canada, radon is a radioactive gas that is
naturally formed through the breakdown of uranium in soil, rock and water. When radon
escapes the earth in the outdoors, it mixes with fresh air, resulting in concentrations that
are too low to be of concern. However, when radon enters an enclosed space, such as a
building, high concentration of radon can accumulate and become a health concern.
Health Canada indicates that most buildings and homes have some level of radon in
them. Unfortunately, it is not possible to predict before construction whether or not a new
building will have high radon levels as radon can only be detected by radon measurement
devices, which would be installed in a building, post construction. Section 9.13.4.1 Soil
Gas Control of the current 2012 Ontario Building Code (OBC) states that "Where
methane or radon gases are known to be a problem, construction shall comply with the
requirements for soil gas control in MMAH Supplementary Standard SB-9, Requirements
for Soil Gas Control".
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6.0 SITE INSPECTIONS

Quialified geotechnical personnel should supervise excavation inspections as well as compaction
testing for structural filling, site grading and site servicing. This will ensure that footings are
founded in the proper strata and that proper material and techniques are used and the specified
compaction is achieved. CMT Engineering Inc. would be pleased to review the design drawings
and provide an inspection and testing program for the construction of the proposed development.

7.0 LIMITATIONS OF THE INVESTIGATION

This report is intended for the Client named herein and for their Client. The report should be
read in its entirety, and no portion of this report may be used as a separate entity. Any use which
a third party makes of this report, or any reliance on or decisions to be made based on it, are the
responsibility of such third parties.

The recommendations made in this report are in accordance with our present understanding of
the project. We request that we be permitted to review our recommendations when the drawings
and specifications are complete, or if the proposed construction should differ from that
mentioned in this report.

It is important to emphasize that a soil investigation is, in fact, a random sampling of a site and
the comments are based on the results obtained at the test locations only. It is therefore assumed
that these results are representative of the subsoil conditions across the site. Should any
conditions at the site be encountered which differ from those found at the test locations, we
request that we be notified immediately in order to permit a reassessment of our
recommendations.

It should be noted that this report specifically addresses geotechnical aspects of the project and
does not include any investigations or assessments relating to potential subsurface
contamination. As such, there should be no assumptions or conclusions derived from this report
with respect to potential soil or water contamination. Soil or water contamination is generally
caused by the presence of xenobiotic (human-made) chemicals or other alteration processes in
the natural soil and groundwater environment. If necessary, the investigation, assessment and
rehabilitation of soil and water contaminants should be undertaken by qualified environmental
specialists.

The samples obtained during the geotechnical investigation will be stored for a period of three
months, after which time they will be disposed of unless alternative arrangements are made.
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We trust that this report meets with your present requirements. Should you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact our office.

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Brandow Figg 2023/02/08

Brandon R Figg, C.Tech. Nathan Chortos, P.Eng.
Senior Soil Technician Senior Engineer

ht
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CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH1

St. Clements, Ontario NOB 2M0 PAGE 1 OF 1
Telephone: 519-699-5775 . .
Fax: 519-699-4664 PROJECT: Proposed Industrial Expansion
PROJECT ADDRESS: 5331 Bruce Road 3
PROJECT NUMBER: _22-816 PROJECT LOCATION: _Saugeen Shores, ON
DRILLING DATE: _11-24-22 GROUND ELEVATION: _100.00 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _MC5
w 2| @ A SPTNVALUE A
- [®) > > e m 10 20 30 40
e E Q Depth w IEH w| O 3 ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
e |%O MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevation as |2 o<
w o evation (m) % = 8 = ; 90 180 270 360
o = Z o 9 < @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
JEEER—ASPHALT: Asphaltic Concrete (125 mm) ~—0.00, 100.00 : ' ' '
3 GRANULAR FILL: Compact, brown, sand and 0.13, 99.88
E gravel fill, trace silt and clay, moist 0.40, 99.60 MC5 :
. " " 62 :
1 3 SAND FILL: Compact, brown, sand fill, moist 1 :
e A O e 10@:
3 | becoming black, trace organics  1.52,9848
2 = P T I A S S R T TR I AP
E M§5 92 .
7 SAND: Compact, grey, sand, trace to some silt, 2.46,97.54 200
3 3 trace clay and gravel, wet :

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.22 m (El. 98.78) below
ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 3.05 m, Elevation 96.95 m.

BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH2

St. Clements, Ontario NOB 2M0 PAGE 1 OF 1
Telephone: 519-699-5775 . . .
Fax: 519-699-4664 PROJECT: Proposed Industrial Expansion
PROJECT ADDRESS: _5331 Bruce Road 3
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
A SPTNVALUE A
e |22,
&) x |>| ZWw 10 20 30 40
IE ~|Zo Depth e o 5 8 3 ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
pE(28 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevaton | U2 [3| ©F (e
w o evation (m) % = 8 => 90 180 270 360
O = Z o 9 < @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
JEE— ASPHALT: Asphaltic Concrete (200 mm) "~ 0.00, 100.00 : : ' :
3 GRANULAR FILL: Compact, brown, sand and 0.20, 99.80
B gravel fill, trace silt and clay, moist MC5 |40
 Cjmm=—  ASPHALT: Asphaltic Concrete (90 mm) /076, 99.24 1 Lt L T
3— 1 GRANULAR FILL: Compact, brown, sand and 0.85, 99.15 27 ®
3 gravel fill, trace silt and clay, moist / 1.19, 98.81 : : : :
= . SAND: Compact, brown, sand, trace to some silt,
2 I . trace clay and gravel, wet : : : :
I MC5
= 5 |70
3 20.90
s 3y )

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

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH3

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
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _MC5
w <l @ A SPTNVALUE A
o s > 3 m 10 20 30 40
E € E 8 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Depth, w IEH é 8 g ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
w15 Elevation (m) %' = 9l =2 9% 180 270 360
o z Z o - £ @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
JEEE—ASPHALT: Asphaltic Concrete (113 mm) ~0.00, 100.00 : ' ' '
3 GRANULAR FILL: Compact, brown, sand and 0.11,99.89
B gravel fill, trace silt and clay, moist MC5
1 d~ ASPHALT: Asphaltic Concrete (50 mm) 0.69, 99.31 1 |7 s S S
I~ TOPSOIL: Loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.74,99.26 277@ : : : :
Z::«/ topsoil, moist (780mm) : : : :
= SAND: Compact, brown, sand, trace to some silt, ~ 1.52, 98.48
2 3 trace clay and gravel, wet I T T R .
= MC5
E 2 70
3 20.9@
s 40 Y e i

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

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH4

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22 GROUND ELEVATION: 204.30 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _MC5
w 2| @ A SPTNVALUE A
r |8 cx x5 m 10 20 30 40
e E Q Depth wo W Q 3 ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
e |%O MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevation as |2 o<
w o evation (m) % = 8 => 90 180 270 360
© < < |m 9 = @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
J_~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 204.30 : : : :
3 topsoil, moist (200 mm) /—0.20,204.10
3 SAND: Compact, brown, sand, trace to some silt, ;  0.41, 203.89 MC5
1 3 | \traceclayandgravel, moist 2 1|78 : ‘ ,
3 becomingwet ¥ || | 8.o@
3. | " becomingsaturated 15220278
2 7 TS U U SRR SRR
= MC5 :
] 5 |84 :
= 21@ :
s 4 -0 SUNUUNTUR TUUNUOOIOE UDTTOOTY O

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 2.74 m (El. 201.56) below
ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 3.05 m, Elevation 201.25 m.

BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH5

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22 GROUND ELEVATION: 204.07 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _MC5
w 2| @ A SPTNVALUE A
@) x |>| 20 10 20 30 40
=~ |T O] Depth i % 8 3 ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
pE(28 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevaton | U2 [3| ©F (e
w o evation (m) % = 8 => 90 180 270 360
o = Z o - < @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
1~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 204.07 : : : :
i ) topsoil, moist (225 mm) 0.23,203.85
3 SAND: Compact, brown, sand, trace to some silt, /  0.41, 203.66 MC5
1 3 | \traceclayandgravel,wet_ __ _ _ ___ _ J 1|7 : : ‘ ,
3 becoming saturated ¥ || | 21.3@
1 [ “becominggrey T T 15220255
2 7 TS U U SRR SRR
= MC5
E 2 35
= 20.8@
s 4L

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.52 m (El. 202.55) below
ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 3.05 m, Elevation 201.02 m.

BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH6

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22 GROUND ELEVATION: _205.53 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Dirilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _MC5
w 2| @ ASPTNVALUE A
r |8 sx 1%l 5 m 10 20 30 40
. a = 8 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Depth, w @ g 8 g ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
w15 Elevation (m) %' = 9l =2 9 180 270 360
o ZZ o - < @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
J.~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 205.53 : : : :
I. topsoil, moist (260 mm) 0.26, 205.27
4 - SAND: Compact, brown, sand, trace to some silt, j— ———— MC5
1|\ wraceclayand gravelmaist | " j 06120402 T |%
] becomingwet X || |y 22.6@; ey

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.37 m (El. 204.16) below
ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 1.52 m, Elevation 204.01 m.

BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23
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CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH7

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22 GROUND ELEVATION: _204.51 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _SPT/MC5
A SPTNVALUE A
g o= e
T e = % E % u 10 20 30 40
E~|T .
o §, & 8 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Depth, Elevation H IJEJ g 8 Z:I ® POCKET PEN. (kPa) ® WELL DIAGRAM
uDJ o (m) % S 8 => 90 180 270 360
O ZZ |m - £ | @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) ®
(%) Xl @
J——= TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty 0.00, 204.51 SPT 14111
3 organic topsoil, moist (170 mm) 0.17, 204.34 1 |46 @
3 SAND: Very loose to compact, brown,
"= ¥ sand, trace to some silt, trace clay and Groundwater
b . gravel, wet SST 87 4'8'5)'9 measured at
3 0.85 m below
J o - Y ___ the ground
3 becoming saturated 1.52,202.99 SPT 11-10-9- '-‘su;fgce (EL
2 3 3 |87 1 203.66 m) on
E (19) December
= 14/22
: Bentonite
] Seal
3 7 25mm Riser
3 18-13-13- R
I e SZT 75| 1 - -
J | becominggey __ ________ -3:45,201.06 | 20)
4 3 becoming saturated 3.66, 200.85 . )
3 MC5 95 - <#—#2 Sand Filter
3 5 -
= —-—25mm Screen
3 SPT 1-5-5-2
5 = 6 |100 (10)

Bottom of borehole at 5.18 m, Elevation

199.33 m.

)






DYNAMIC CONE 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 1-25-23

CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1
St. Clements, Ontario NOB 2M0
Telephone: 519-699-5775
Fax: 519-699-4664

PROJECT NUMBER: _22-816

DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22

DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Dirilling Inc.
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT

PROJECT: _Proposed Industrial Expansion

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH8

PAGE 1 OF 1

PROJECT ADDRESS:
PROJECT LOCATION: _Saugeen Shores, ON
GROUND ELEVATION:

LOGGED BY: _BRF

5331 Bruce Road 3

205.25m

SAMPLING METHOD: _SPT/DCPT

w o e A DYNAMIC CONE OR SPT - BLOWS/0.30m A
@) % r > 8 10 20 30 40
'E =z Depth % % S ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
g & o MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevation s 5] @
w o evation (m) L 2 8 % 90 180 270 360
O
i} %
% e @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
1~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 205.25 SPT :
= topsoil, moist (240 mm) 0.24, 205.01 1 |46 2 :
3 SAND: Very loose to compact, brown, sand, :
13 trace to some silt, trace clay and gravel, wet :
=l SPTle7| 20 :
1 [ “becomingsaturated 15220373 sPT :
2 1 3 87| 26 :
3 9 :
3 SPT :
3 4 75 16
4 : MC5 os| | ............................
1 ° 23.4@ :
3 becoming grey /Y47, 200.78 :
5 3 CLAYEY SILT: Very loose to loose, grey, clayey 4.57,200.68 SET 1000 2 : :
3 silt, trace sand, saturated @ " | | [ 234 o
e 0 S A
= SPT :
1 7 0 :
. = cPT 5 :
____________________________ 8 e e
- becoming compact 7.01,198.24 CPT 15 18 :
] 9
- CPT 15 18
10

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 3.35 m (El. 201.90) below

ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 7.62 m, Elevation 197.63 m.
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CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH9

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22 GROUND ELEVATION: _204.53 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _SPT/MC5
A SPTNVALUE A
R
- @) = % E % |_:|)J 10 20 30 40
e € E O MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Depth, wo W O3 ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
Le (<9 Elevation (m)| £= || 2
a ¥ < % Sl = 2 90 180 270 360
© < LIJ 9 ~ @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
1.~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 204.53 SPT 1122
I topsoil, moist (230 mm) 0.23, 204.30 1|87 @)
1 . SAND: Very loose to compact, brown, sand,
... trace to some silt, trace clay and gravel, moistto / 77z 5n2 77
13\ wet yandg [/ 076.203.77 SPT || 4678
3 becoming saturated T T T T 2 3
3 SPT |, | 6-7-7-10
2 7 3 (1907 (14
39
7 SPT 6-7-7-10
=) 4 199 (14)
4 7
] MC5
3 5 [100
3 L CLAYEY SILT: Dense, grey, clayey silt, trace 4.57,199.96 SPT 21-18-16-
5 1 sand, saturated 6 09 18
e (34)
=) SAND: Compact, grey, sand, saturated 5.49, 199.04
6
E| SPT 1777
= 7 1% (14

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.52 m (El. 203.01) below

ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 6.71 m, Elevation 197.82 m.






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH10

BOREHOLE LOG WITH WELL2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22 GROUND ELEVATION: _205.06 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Dirilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _SPT/MC5
w 2| @ ASPTNVALUE A
IE _ % Q i i % E § L:I)? 1SOCKZEOT PEZO kP: .
hE|Z3 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Pepih, Bvatonl w8 |2 3z | ° (P e WELL DIAGRAM
w= 13 (m) Z5 |9 == 90 180 270 360
o =z |O oZ
< W Y~ [@MOISTURE CONTENT (%)®
(%) Xl @
1224 36 48
1.~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty 0.00, 205.06 SPT 1-2-2-1 : : : :
I organic topsoil, moist (280 mm) 0.28 204.78 1121 e
9 SAND: Very loose, brown, sand, trace to @
13 [W_ some silt, trace clay and gravel, wet _ ;™7 76 20430 SPT 2346 Groundwater
4 becoming loose, saturated > 87 '(;)' measured at
] 0.90 m below
i oSS T ————— QS the ground
3 becoming compact 1.52,203.54 SPT 92 | 369011 .-‘surface (El.
2 4 3 (15) 204.16 m) on
3 December
il 14/22
3 Bentonite
= g g Seal
< e A N N 125mm Riser
3 becoming dense 3.05, 202.01 SPT 19-15-17- S I
. 4 87 16 e
. (32)
44 MC5|, 4 - —#2 Sand Filter
7 5 L
3 becoming grey 4.34,200.72 77— 25mm Screen
3 - CLAYEY SILT: Compact, grey, clayey silt, 4.57,200.49 SPT 2.1-12-12
S trace sand, saturated 6 |87 (13

Caving was encountered upon completion
of the borehole at a depth of 1.52 m (EI.
203.54) below ground surface.
Bottom of borehole at 5.18 m, Elevation
199.88 m.

)






BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23

CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH11

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-29-22 GROUND ELEVATION: 205.30 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _SPT
A SPTNVALUE A
e |22
- @) = o E % w 10 20 30 40
Eo |z o Depth IEH w| O 3 ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
g & le) MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevation ws [>]| Ox
w o evation (m) % = 8 => 90 180 270 360
0} E: z i e @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
@ 12 24 36 48
1.~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 205.30 SPT 1411 : : : :
I topsoil, moist (270 mm) 49 ‘
7 , 0.27, 205.03 1 1)) 17.2@
E SAND: Very loose, brown, sapd, trace to some :
13 _ Silt, trace clay and gravel, moist_ /" 0.76,204.54 :
3 becoming compact, saturated SET 87 8'?;%')13 """""""""" 1R 2 N SR
=l 131213 : : : :
SPT : : : :
= 02| 14 ~ D2 : :
2 : 3 (25) | 204. ............ ............
s 4- -

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.52 m (El. 203.78) below

ground surface. Borehole was aborted due to
heaving wet sands at a depth of 3.05 m below

ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 3.05 m, Elevation 202.25 m.






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH12

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-24-22 GROUND ELEVATION: 205.67 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _MC5
w | @ A SPTNVALUE A
- [®) rx > S my 10 20 30 40
e E Q Depth wo W Q 3 ® POCKET PENETROMETER (kPa) ®
e |%o MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevation as |2 o<
w o evation (m) % = 8 => 90 180 270 360
o = Z o - < @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
q o~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 205.67 : : : :
7 topsoil, moist (220mm) 0.22,205.45 :
1 SAND: Very loose to compact, brown, sand, | 0.41,205.26 MC5
. trace to some silt, trace clay and gravel, wet 1|84 :
1 S DT T T raydn gaveL e | : : : :
] becomingwet B || |7 1R7@ I e

BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.07 m (El. 204.60) below
ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 1.52 m, Elevation 204.15 m.






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH13

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-24-22 GROUND ELEVATION: _205.89 m
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
ag|%o MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Elevation as |>| o<
w o evation (m) % = 8 => 90 180 270 360
o = Z o 9 < @ MOISTURE CONTENT (%) @
(%) Xl @
12 24 36 48
J. -~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 205.89 : : : :
3 topsoil, moist (220mm) 0.22, 205.67
3 SAND: Very loose to compact, brown, sand, MC5
- trace to some silt, trace clay and gravel, wet 1|91 : : : :
-4 || | C225@ N

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.22 m (El. 204.67) below
ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 1.52 m, Elevation 204.37 m.

BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH14

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-24-22 GROUND ELEVATION: 204.97 m
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
1. TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty organic 0.00, 204.97 : : : :
I topsoil, moist (250mm) 0.25, 204.72
3 SAND: Very loose to compact, brown, sand, MC5
1 3 trace to some silt, trace clay and gravel, wet 1|91 : : : :
e | T R C225@ N

Caving was encountered upon completion of the
borehole at a depth of 1.22 m (El. 203.75) below
ground surface.

Bottom of borehole at 1.52 m, Elevation 203.45 m.

BOREHOLE LOG2 22-816.GPJ CMT_TEMPLATE_2020-05-15.GDT 2-7-23






CMT ENGINEERING INC.
1011 Industrial Crescent, Unit 1

BOREHOLE NUMBER BH15

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
DRILLING DATE: _11-24-22 GROUND ELEVATION: _203.37 m
DRILLING CONTRACTOR: _CMT Drilling Inc. LOGGED BY: _BRF
DRILLING EQUIPMENT: _Geoprobe 7822DT SAMPLING METHOD: _SPT/MC5
A SPTNVALUE A
g o= e
T e r z 5 u 10 20 30 40
E~|T .
o §, & 8 MATERIAL DESCRIPTION Depth, Elevation H IJEJ g 8 Z:I ® POCKET PEN. (kPa) ® WELL DIAGRAM
w= 13 (m) g5 8| =2 90 180 270 360
O <§( Z |m| ©% |eMoISTURE CONTENT %)@
-
(%) Xl @
1224 36 48
1~ TOPSOIL: Very loose, dark brown, silty 0.00, 203.37 14111 : : : :
J - organic topsoil, moist (180 mm) 0.18, 203.19 @)
E SAND: Very loose, brown, sand, trace to
1 3 [ Somesilt trace clay and gravel, moist _ ,~ 776 502:61 o112
3 becoming compact, saturated (18) gg §§
E . 4-9-11-12 — Bentonite
2 q v (20) Seal
. T \Groundwater
I measured at
3 4 2.03 m below
3 3 §> §§ the ground
i N surface (EIl.
] becoming very loose 3.05, 200.32 201.34 m) on
= SET 100 112;1 \é | December
] CLAYEY SILT: Very loose to loose, grey, _ 3.55, 199.82 B I Eecca
4 4 clayey silt, trace sand, saturated
- SPT g7| 1235
311 6 ®)
- _____ —#2 Sand Filter
5 4T becoming compact 4.57,198.80 SPT 100 4-10-4-8 25mm Screen
=gns 7 (4) o
11 MC 100 :
6 3 19.7@

Bottom of borehole at 6.10 m, Elevation

197.27 m.






APPENDIX B

GRAIN SIZE ANALYSES





Particle Size Distribution Report
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
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APPENDIX C

WELL LOG RECORDS

































































		1.0 INTRODUCTION

		2.0 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

		3.0  FIELD AND LABORATORY PROCEDURES

		4.0 SUBSOIL CONDITIONS

		4.1. Asphaltic Concrete

		4.2. Granular Fill

		4.3. Topsoil/Buried Topsoil

		4.4. Sand Fill

		4.5. Sand

		4.6.  Clayey Silt

		4.7. Groundwater



		5.0  DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

		5.1. Serviceability and Ultimate Limit Pressure

		5.2. Existing Road Structure Summary (Bruce Road 3)

		5.3. Seismic Site Classification

		5.4. Soil Design Parameters

		5.5. Site Preparation

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

		Location Plan - 22-816 - Geotech Investigation - 5331 Bruce Road 3, Saugeen Shores, ON.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		22-816 - Geotech Investigation - 5331 Bruce Road 3, Saugeen Shores, ON-Location Map





		BH Plan 1 - 22-816 - Geotech Investigation - 5331 Bruce Road 3, Saugeen Shores, ON.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		22-816 - Geotech Investigation - 5331 Bruce Road 3, Saugeen Shores, ON-BH1to3 Plan View





		BH Plan 2 - 22-816 - Geotech Investigation - 5331 Bruce Road 3, Saugeen Shores, ON.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		22-816 - Geotech Investigation - 5331 Bruce Road 3, Saugeen Shores, ON-Plan View












County of Bruce
Planning & Development Department
1243 MacKenzie Road

BRU CE Port Elgin, ON NOH 2C6 SN
brucecounty.on.ca SaugeenShores
county 226-909-5515 %

January 9, 2024
File Numbers: C-2023-004, Z-2023-056

Revised Request for Agency Comments

TO: Municipal Staff, Conservation Authority, First Nations, Municipal Property Assessment
Corporation, School Boards, Hydro One, Enbridge, Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, Bruce County Transportation & Environmental Services, Ministry of
Transportation, Source Water Protection Risk Management Office, Health Unit,
Infrastructure Ontario

The applicant has submitted new and amended documents in response to agency and
public comments received as of December 2023. A change is proposed, and we’re asking
for your input. The purpose is to redesignate a portion of the property from Agricultural Areas
to Agricultural Areas with Exceptions and to rezone that same area from Agricultural (A) to
Agricultural Commercial Special with Holding (AC2-x-H) to permit a concrete manufacturing
plant with outdoor storage, parking and a stormwater management pond, and a future PVC
manufacturing facility. The Holding (H) provision indicates that development or site alteration
shall not occur until the lands have been cleared of archaeological potential through
submission of an Archaeological Assessment. The applications will facilitate a partial relocation
and expansion of Carson's Supply, a commercial business located in Port Elgin.

Your comments and/or conditions of approval will be used to prepare a Planning Report.
Please provide your feedback by emailing bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca by January 30, 2024. If
you require more time to provide comments, please let us know.

5331 BRUCE ROAD 3 - SAUGEEN CON 12 LOTS 10 AND;11 PLAN 154 PT LOTS K AND L
Town of Saugeen Shores (Saugeen Township)
Roll Number 411044000203700



mailto:bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca



Learn more

The following supporting materials were included with the submission of the Application:

O O0OO0OO0OO0O0O0O0OO0OO0OO0O0

@]

Planning Justification Report

Functional Servicing Report

Stormwater Management Report
Transportation Impact Study

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
Public Comment Matrix Letter

Preliminary Groundwater Supply Evaluation
Geotechnical Investigation

Additional information about the application is available online at
https://www.brucecounty.on.ca/active-planning-applications. Information can also be viewed in

person at the County of Bruce Planning Office noted above, between 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.
(Monday to Friday).

The Planner on the file is: Coreena Smith

The details

Development The applications will facilitate a partial relocation and expansion
Proposal of Carson’s Supply, a 40-year-old commercial business located

in Port Elgin that currently operates out of 1071 Goderich Street.
The Official Plan Amendment and Zoning By-law Amendment
would permit the construction of a concrete manufacturing plant
that would produce products such as catch basins, septic holding
tanks and electrical utility vaults. It would also provide ample
outdoor storage for these large materials. It would further permit
a PVC manufacturing facility to be constructed in the future.

Related Files None

Owner 2128080 Ontario Inc.

Applicant Cobide Engineering Inc., c/o Dana Kieffer

Agent Cobide Engineering Inc., c/o Dana Kieffer

Legal Description SAUGEEN CON 12 LOTS 10 AND;11 PLAN 154 PT LOTS K
AND L

Municipal Address 5331 BRUCE ROAD 3




https://www.brucecounty.on.ca/active-planning-applications



Lot Dimensions

Entire Lot

Frontage +/-583 m
Depth +/-1005 m
Area +/-55 ha
Existing Uses Agriculture

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

No Comment: Title: Signature:

Comments:






Amended Site plan

1320050

. ! o
o

‘U] BLEILD DB0BZIZ

NY1d 311§ LINIWJOTIAIA

SIHOHS NIFONYS JO NAOL
NOISNYdX3 TvIH LSNAN|

e Bumspror e
ot 803 (18] DowEEL
Bl NS LD ] S G 115

INI ININIINIGNG

101803

ETE

] e L . m

SR g

“eian

E9 58 01 AVMIAD TEAFLD DHASIC

i
153004 SHILENE

i

o

3oVHOLS HOOOLNO

JOYHOLS ¥00a1no

STH W E

EFr il

A

[

g,

Tm
£
2w
22
83

ﬁ
0

——-—L & FTS/ T

T T Y e e






		Revised Request for Agency Comments

		Learn more

		The details

		Amended Site plan






County of Bruce
Planning & Development Department
1243 MacKenzie Road

Port Elgin, ON NOH 2C6 e i
B R U CE brucecounty.on.ca Sa]ggs"énShoreS
‘—\/

county 226-909-5515

January 9, 2024
File Number: Z-2023-056

Public Meeting Notice

You’re invited to a Public Meeting to consider
Zoning By-law Amendment File Z-2023-056
February 20, 2024 at 6:30 p.m.

A change is proposed in your neighbourhood: The purpose is to redesignate a portion of the
property from Agricultural Areas to Agricultural Areas with Exceptions and to rezone that same
area from Agricultural (A) to Agricultural Commercial Special with Holding (AC2-x-H) to permit
a concrete manufacturing plant with outdoor storage, parking and a stormwater management
pond, and a future PVC manufacturing facility. The Holding (H) provision indicates that
development or site alteration shall not occur until the lands have been cleared of
archaeological potential through submission of an Archaeological Assessment. The
applications will facilitate a partial relocation and expansion of Carson's Supply, a commercial
business located in Port Elgin. The related County Official Plan file is C-2023-004.

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

Have your say

Comments and opinions submitted on these matters, including the originator’'s name and
address, become part of the public record, may be viewed by the general public and may be
published in a Planning Report and Council Agenda. Comments received after

February 9, 2024 may not be included in the Planning report but will be considered if received
prior to a decision being made, and included in the official record on file.

You can submit comments by email bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca, mail, or phone (226-909-5515) if
you have any questions, concerns or objections about the application. Comments will be provided
to the Committee for its consideration.

How to access the public meeting

For information on how to participate in the online public meeting, please visit the municipal
website at https://www.saugeenshores.ca/en/index.aspx under “News and Public notices.”

Please contact the Municipality at clerk@saugeenshores.ca or 519-832-2008, extension 100 if you
have any questions regarding how to participate in the meeting.

Stay In the loop

If you'd like to be notified of the decision of the approval authority on the proposed
application(s), you must make a written request to the Bruce County Planning Department.

Know your rights

Section 34(11) of the Planning Act outlines rights of appeal for Zoning By-law Amendment
applications.

If a person or public body would otherwise have an ability to appeal the decision of the Council
of municipality to the Ontario Land Tribunal but the person or public body does not make oral
submissions at a public meeting or make written submissions to municipality before the by-law
is passed, the person or public body is not entitled to appeal the decision.

If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting, or make written
submissions to the municipality before the by-law is passed, the person or public body may not
be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Land Tribunal unless, in the
opinion of the Tribunal, there are reasonable grounds to do so.

For more information please visit the Ontario Land Tribunal website at
https://olt.gov.on.ca/appeals-process/.




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
Subject: FW: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice Z56 Carson
Date: Monday, March 11, 2024 12:05:44 PM

I You don't often get email from jessica.pegelo@ontario.ca. Learn why this is important

** [CAUTION]: Thisemail originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Documents Reviewed:

o Site Plan — Prepared By: Cobide Engineering Inc., Dated: December 2023

 Traffic Impact Study — Prepared By: Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited,
Stamped By: M.A. Brouwer, Dated: 2023/06/05

e Transportation Letter - Prepared By: Paradigm Transportation Solutions Limited,
Signed By: Matt Brouwer, Dated: 12/6/2023

e Functional Servicing Report - Prepared By: Cobide Engineering Inc., Stamped
By: T.L. Burnside, Dated: 12/5/2023

o Stormwater Management Report — Prepared By: Cobide Engineering Inc.,
Stamped By: T.L. Burnside, Dated: 12/5/2023

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
manufacturing facility. The Holding (H) provision indicates that development or site
alteration shall not occur until the lands have been cleared of archaeological potential
through submission of an Archaeological Assessment. The applications will facilitate
a partial relocation and expansion of Carson's Supply, a commercial business located
in Port Elgin.

The proposal has been considered in accordance with the requirements of the Public
Transportation and Highway Improvement Act, MTO’s Highway Access Management
Policy and all related policies. The following outlines MTO’s comments:

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


mailto:Jessica.Pegelo@ontario.ca
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

e The stormwater management plan outlet is shown in plan view, however, MTO
require that the outlet structure itself be located entirely on private lands and
setback a minimum of 14m from the highway property limit.

e The landscaped berm should be shown in more detail than simply hatching an
area where it will be built. At a minimum the location of the toe of slope should
be shown. MTO require that the toe of slope be located a minimum of 3m from
the highway property limit.

« The Functional Servicing Report indicates that there will be a connection made
to an existing watermain in the southwest corner of the property. The watermain
connection and the location of the watermain on Highway 21 should be shown
on the site plan and include a setback distance measured from the highway
property limit.

e The Functional Servicing Report recommends on-site sewage treatment. The
location of the on-site sewage treatment should be shown on the site plan.

Storm Water Management

Upon review of the above referenced Stormwater Management Report, page 7
identifies that:

The outlet configuration for the SWM Facility will be as follows:

e A 300mm outlet pipe with a 225mm orifice that will outlet towards the existing
ditch.
o A 450mm outlet pipe that will outlet towards the existing ditch.

MTO does not like the use of orifice plates as a means of control. MTQO's concern is
that the continued functioning of such a control device cannot be guaranteed. If
proposed, an orifice plate must be permanently bolted in place so that it can not be
removed. Alternatively, a section of reducer pipe with an inside diameter equivalent to
the inside diameter of the orifice design may be acceptable.

The stormwater management plan outlet is shown in plan view and section view in
the Stormwater Management Plan Section (Drawing No. 05027-SGR-1), however,
MTO require that the outlet structure itself be located entirely on private lands and
setback a minimum of 14m from the highway property limit. Additionally, MTO require
a detailed cross-section of the stormwater management outlet, including setback
distances measured from the highway property limit.

MTO anticipate receiving a revised report and drawings for review.



Functional Servicing Report

MTO reviewed the above referenced Functional Servicing Report and have no further
concerns at this time. However, MTO require a detailed plan showing setback
distances measured from the highway property limits.

e The Functional Servicing Report indicates that there will be a connection made
to an existing watermain in the southwest corner of the property. The watermain
connection and the location of the watermain on Highway 21 should be shown
on the site plan and include setback distances measured from the highway
property limit.

» The Functional Servicing Report recommends on-site sewage treatment. The
location of the on-site sewage treatment should be shown on the site plan.

Access & Traffic Impact Review

MTO reviewed the above referenced Traffic Impact Study and transportation letter
and since the proposed development is a low-traffic generator with a max. of 28 (16
inbound and 12 outbound) two-way trips in the morning peak hours. These trips are
not high enough to cause measurable impacts on the operations of the surrounding
roadway network, especially when all the roads in the vicinity are already low
volume. Therefore, MTO accept the conclusions and recommendations identified in
the TIS.

MTO require that all access to the subject property be taken off of Bruce Road 3.
Signs

Anyl/all signage visible from Highway 21, including temporary development signs,
must be identified on the plans, must conform to MTO policies and guidelines, and
will require a valid MTO Sign Permit before installation.

Encroachments

:Any encroachments and works identified within the Highway 21 property limits are
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

Sent: March 6, 2024 11:18 AM

To: Pegelo, Jessica (MTO) <Jessica.Pegelo@ontario.ca>

Subject: RE: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice Z56
Carson

CAUTION -- EXTERNAL E-MAIL - Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender.
Hi Jessica,
Just following up on the status of MTQO’s review for the resubmission of file ‘C4 Z56 Carson’ in
Saugeen Shores. If MTO is able to provide comments before March 20, it would be greatly
appreciated.
Sincerely.

From: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 12:29 PM

To: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: FW: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice Z56
Carson

Hi Coreena —please see below.

From: Pegelo, Jessica (MTQO) <Jessica.Pegelo@ontario.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 12:12 PM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: FW: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice 7256
Carson

Y ou don't often get email from jessicapegelo@ontario.ca. Learn why thisis important

** [CAUTION]: Thisemail originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
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Canada | NOG 1WO0 | 519-364-1255
CONSERVATION WWWw.saugeenconservation.ca
publicinfo@svca.on.ca

‘Sau een 1078 Bruce Road 12 | P.O. Box 150 | Formosa ON

SENT ELECTRONICALLY ONLY CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca and bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca
August 9, 2023

County of Bruce

Planning & Development Department
1243 Mackenzie Rd

Port Elgin, Ontario NOH 2C6

Attention: Coreena Smith, Planner
Dear Coreena Smith,

RE: Z-2023-056 and C-2023-004 (Carson)
5331 Bruce Road 3
Lots 10 and 11 Plan 154 Part Lots K and L Concession 12
Roll No.: 411044000203700

Geographic Township of Saugeen
Town of Saugeen Shores

Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority (SVCA) staff has reviewed the above-noted applications
as per our delegated responsibility from the Province to represent provincial interests regarding
natural hazards identified in Section 3 of the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS, 2020) and as a
regulatory authority under Ontario Regulation 169/06 (SVCA’s Development, Interference with
Wetlands, and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation). SVCA staff has also
provided comments as per our Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the County of Bruce
representing natural hazards. The applications have also been screened to determine the
applicability of the Saugeen, Grey Sauble, Northern Bruce Peninsula Source Protection Plan,
prepared under the Clean Water Act, 2006.

Purpose

The purpose of the application is to redesignate a portion of the property from Agricultural Areas to
Agricultural Areas with Exceptions and to rezone that same area from Agricultural (A) to Agricultural
Commercial Special with Holding (AC2-x-H) to permit a concrete manufacturing plant with outdoor
storage, parking and a stormwater management pond, and a future PVC manufacturing facility. The
Holding (H) provision indicates that development or site alteration shall not occur until the lands have
been cleared of archaeological potential through submission of an Archaeological Assessment. The



http://www.saugeenconservation.ca/
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County of Bruce

Z-2023-056 and C-2023-004 (Carson)
August 9, 2023

Page 2 of 3

applications will facilitate a partial relocation and expansion of Carson's Supply, a commercial
business located in Port Elgin.

Recommendation
SVCA Staff find the applications acceptable. We elaborate in the following paragraphs.

Delegated Responsibility and Advisory Comments

Natural Hazards

SVCA mapping shows the property is not affected by any natural hazards. Furthermore, the
property is not zoned EP in the Town of Saugeen Shores Zoning By-law and the property is not
designated Hazard Lands in the County of Bruce OP. As such, the applications are consistent with
the natural hazard policies of the PPS (2020), and the Bruce County OP.

Drinking Water Source Protection

The property appears to SVCA staff to not be located within an area that is subject to the local
Drinking Water Source Protection Plan. To confirm, please contact Carl Seider at
c.seider@greysauble.on.ca.

SVCA Regulation 169/06

SVCA staff has reviewed the applications as per our responsibilities as a regulatory authority
under Ontario Regulation 169/06 (SVCA’s Development, Interference with Wetlands, and
Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation). This regulation, made under Section 28
of the Conservation Authorities Act, enables SVCA to regulate development in or adjacent to river
or stream valleys, Great Lakes and inland lake shorelines, watercourses, hazardous lands and
wetlands. Subject to the CA Act, development taking place on or adjacent to these lands may
require permission from SVCA to confirm that the control of flooding, erosion, dynamic beaches,
pollution or the conservation of land are not affected. SVCA also regulates the alteration to or
interference in any way with a watercourse or wetland.

SVCA Permission for Development or Alteration
The property does not contain SVCA Regulated Area. As such, the proposed development does
not need permission from this office.

Summary
SVCA staff has reviewed the applications in accordance with our MOA with the County of Bruce,
and as per our mandated responsibilities for natural hazard management, including our
regulatory role under the Conservation Authorities Act. SVCA staff find the applications
acceptable.


mailto:c.seider@greysauble.on.ca

County of Bruce

Z-2023-056 and C-2023-004 (Carson)
August 9, 2023

Page 3 of 3

Given the above comments, it is the opinion of the SVCA staff that:
1) Consistency with Section 3.1, Natural Hazard policies of the PPS has been demonstrated.
2) Consistency with local planning policies for natural hazards has been demonstrated.

Please inform this office of any decision made by County/Town with regard to the applications.
We respectfully request to receive a copy of the decisions and notice of any appeals filed.

Should you have any questions, please contact the undersigned at m.oberle@svca.on.ca.
Sincerely,

Michael Oberle
Environmental Planning Technician
Saugeen Valley Conservation Authority
MO/
cc: Jay Pausner, Supervisor — Development Services, Town of Saugeen Shores (via email)
Josh Planz, CBO, Town of Saugeen Shores (via email)
Dana Mitchell, Zoning Coordinator, Town of Saugeen Shores (via email)
Bud Halpin, SVCA Member representing Saugeen Shores (via email)
Dave Myette, SVCA Member representing Saugeen Shores (via email)



From: Michael Oberle

To: Klarika Hamer; Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub

Cc: Coreena Smith

Subject: RE: SVCA Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice Z56 Carson
Date: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 11:43:36 AM

Attachments: SVCA Comments 7-2023-056 and C-203-004 Carson.pdf

** [CAUTION]: Thisemail originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning,

Please be advised that the SVCA does not have any additional comments to provide for the revised
request for comments, and that SVCA comments dated August 9, 2023 (attached) are still applicable.
| trust that this is helpful.

Kind regards,

Mike

Michael Oberle

Environmental Planning Coordinator

Cell: 519-373-4175

1078 Bruce Road 12, PO Box 150, Formosa, ON NOG 1WO0

www.saugeenconservation.ca

From: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 11:09 AM

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

**[CAUTION]: Thisemail originated from outside of the organization. Do not click on
links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning,

The applicant has submitted new and amended documents in response to agency and public
comments received as of December 2023.

Please see the attached Revised Request for Agency Comments, Amended Site Plan, Additional
Supporting Materials Email, Revised Planning Justification Report, Revised Functional Servicing
Report, Revised Stormwater Management Report, Transportation Impact Study Response to Ministry
of Transportation Comments, Public Comment Matrix Letter, Preliminary Groundwater Supply
Evaluation, Geotechnical Investigation for County Official Plan Amendment file C-2023-004 and
Zoning By-law Amendment file Z-2023-056.
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






Risk Management Office

237897 Inglis Falls Road

RR4 Owen Sound, ON N4K 5N6

Phone: 519-470-3000 Toll Free: 877-470-3001
rmo@greysauble.on.ca

Notice of Restricted Land Use
Clean Water Act —ss. 59(2)(a)

TOIATTN: COBIDE ENGINEERING

) 5331 BRUCE ROAD 3, SOUTHAMPTON
Location Address:

Assessment Roll #: 411044000203700

2128080 ONTARIO INC.
Property Owner Name and/or

Person engaged
in Activity
(where applicable)

i RLU-4110-2023-015 .
Notice No. RMP File No. ™@

From the information noted in the application to facilitate the relocation and operation of a
concrete manufacturing plant on this property it has been determined that neither section 57
(Prohibited Activities) nor section 58 (Regulated Activities) applies on the above-noted
property, pursuant to the Clean Water Act, 2006.

Consequently, no policies apply to the activities identified in the application, under the
approved Source Protection Plan for the Saugeen, Grey Sauble, Northern Bruce Peninsula
Source Protection Region (effective July 1, 2016). However, it is important to note that the above
property is located within the Events-based Area for the Southampton Drinking Water System,
whereby the storage of fuel greater than 22,500 litres is regulated, and would require the

development of a risk management plan.

If any activities or operations on this property change, please contact this office. If you have
any questions, please contact this office (519-470-3000 or toll-free 1-877-470-3001) or via email
at c.seider@qreysauble.on.ca.

()
Signature of RMO: el /.y{%f" Date: October 30, 2023


mailto:c.seider@greysauble.on.ca

From: Carl Seider

To: Coreena Smith
Cc: RMO Mailbox
Subject: RE: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 2:23:11 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

image003.png

You don't often get email from c.seider@greysauble.on.ca. Learn why this is important

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Coreena,

Thanks for the email seeking clarification on the RMO Notice issued for this application. A couple
factors were considered based on the information provided. There is only a small portion of the
property that actually falls within the source protection area (Intake Protection Zone 3), whereby the
only threat that applies is storage and handling of fuel in quantities greater than 22,500 litres
(dotted green line in North/West corner of the property). In this area it looks like there is a
stormwater management pond planned, which falls within the IPZ-3 zone. The other noted activities,
including outdoor storage and PVC injection/extrusion facility falls completely outside the IPZ zone
where source protection policies do not apply. That being said, policies related to chemical storage
and stormwater management facilities only apply to our groundwater systems in the Region, as
opposed to the surface water intakes such as in Southampton. Hope this helps clarify the comments
provided.

If you would like to discuss this further, please feel free to contact us.
Regards,

Carl Seider
Risk Management Official


https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
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519.376.3076 Ext. 201
237897 Inglis Falls Road B
Owen Sound, ON N4K 5N6

www.greysauble.on.ca

This email communication and accompanying documents are intended only for the individual or entity to which it is addressed
and may contain information that is confidential, privileged or exempt from disclosure under applicable law. Any use of this
information by individuals or entities other than the intended recipient is strictly prohibited. If you received this communication
in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all the copies (electronic or otherwise) immediately. Thank you for
your cooperation.

From: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 1:44 PM

To: RMO Mailbox <rmo@greysauble.on.ca>

Subject: RE: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson

Good afternoon,
Thank you for the comments attached to this email. The County is seeking clarification from the
RMO on the following.

Your notice states that the application is to facilitate the relocation and operation of a concrete
manufacturing plant at 5331 Bruce Road 3 in Saugeen Shores. The applications will actually permit a
concrete manufacturing plant with outdoor storage, parking and a stormwater management pond,
and a future polyvinyl chloride (PVC) injection and extrusion facility on the subject lands. Does this
clarification of purpose, change the RMO’s comments in any way?

Thank you,

From: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>
Sent: Monday, October 30, 2023 3:35 PM

To: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: FW: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson

Hi Coreena — please see below and attached.

From: Karen Gillan <k.gillan@greysauble.on.ca>

Sent: Monday, October 30, 2023 3:26 PM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>

Cc: RMO Mailbox <rmo@greysauble.on.ca>; Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>
Subject: RE: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.greysauble.on.ca%2F&data=05%7C02%7CCJSmith%40brucecounty.on.ca%7Cc1918da9b7844b62d3af08dc2d925f2c%7Cfd89d08b66c84a86a12d6fcc6c432324%7C0%7C0%7C638435353907810387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C4000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xQ%2BEpR7PgC9z39U6j20QpbyG4KLogEf%2FEeBDB5ZhZo8%3D&reserved=0

open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good afternoon,

Please find attached the Section 59 Notice for the property at 5331 Bruce Road 3.
If you have any questions, please contact this office, email is preferred.

Regards,

Karen Gillan
Risk Management Official

226-668-2556 (mobile)
548-877-0599 (office)

237897 Inglis Falls Road
Owen Sound, ON N4K 5N6

www.greysauble.on.ca

=

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

Sent: October 30, 2023 2:49 PM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>
Cc: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson

Good afternoon,

Please see the attached Application, Site Plan, Request for Agency Comments, Notice of Complete
Application, Planning Justification Report, Functional Servicing Report, Stormwater Management
Report and Transportation Impact Study for County Official Plan Amendment file C-2023-004 and
Zoning By-law Amendment 7-2023-056.

If possible, please provide your comments by November 13, 2023. Please let us know if you require
more time to provide comments.

Kind regards,

Klarika Hamer

Applications Technician

Planning and Development
Corporation of the County of Bruce

Office: 226-909-1601
Direct: 226-909-3359

www,brucecounty,on,ca


https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.greysauble.on.ca%2F&data=05%7C02%7CCJSmith%40brucecounty.on.ca%7Cc1918da9b7844b62d3af08dc2d925f2c%7Cfd89d08b66c84a86a12d6fcc6c432324%7C0%7C0%7C638435353907829917%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C4000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=82X8mQEghe0YltpiH43o5WA14xXLVm6LCV%2F6vUkc6EU%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.brucecounty.on.ca%2F&data=05%7C02%7CCJSmith%40brucecounty.on.ca%7Cc1918da9b7844b62d3af08dc2d925f2c%7Cfd89d08b66c84a86a12d6fcc6c432324%7C0%7C0%7C638435353907842638%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C4000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FwcSS2OVTpQlRQP%2BMMNAR1%2Be7S1ob85JUun5VA6fbf0%3D&reserved=0

From: Carl Seider

To: Klarika Hamer; Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub
Cc: RMO Mailbox

Subject: Re: Public Meeting Notice C4 Carson

Date: Tuesday, October 29, 2024 3:33:53 PM
Attachments: Outlook-demkknnv.png

Outlook-2joeb44d.png
Risk Management Letterhead s.59(2a) 5331 BRUCE RD3 CARSONS SUPPLY EBA 22500L.pdf

You don't often get email from c.seider@greysauble.on.ca. Learn why this is important

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Please find attached a copy of the Sec.59 Notice that was issued last year regarding the
proposed application for this property. Only a small portion of the property falls within
the source protection area where fuel storage activities would be considered a
significant threat.

If you have any questions on this Notice, please let us know.

Regards,

Carl Seider
Risk Management Official

519.376.3076 Ext. 201
237897 Inglis Falls Road

Owen Sound, ON N4K 5N6 Grey Saub]e
www.greysauble.on.ca CONSERVATION

This email communication and accompanying documents are intended only for the individual or entity to which it is
addressed and may contain information that is confidential, privileged or exempt from disclosure under applicable law. Any
use of this information by individuals or entities other than the intended recipient is strictly prohibited. If you received this
communication in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete all the copies (electronic or otherwise) immediately.
Thank you for your cooperation.
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https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.greysauble.on.ca%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cbcplpe%40brucecounty.on.ca%7C5339ea29def949973df508dcf8507dd0%7Cfd89d08b66c84a86a12d6fcc6c432324%7C0%7C0%7C638658272319238063%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Vor%2Ba5C14NJQ0Fq8cKn3x4%2FYeTrYsjJ%2FEIyrxdAirf8%3D&reserved=0
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

» {)
Signature of RMO: g:,;,,;}xf" Date: October 30, 2023
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		undefined: COBIDE ENGINEERING

		Location Address: 5331 BRUCE ROAD 3, SOUTHAMPTON

		Assessment Roll: 411044000203700

		Property Owner Name: 2128080 ONTARIO INC.

		Person engaged: 

		Notice File No: RLU-4110-2023-015

		RMP File No: n/a

		Date: October 30, 2023






Klarika Hamer

From: SON Archaeology <archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca>

Sent: Monday, August 26, 2024 9:35 AM

To: Coreena Smith

Subject: Fwd: TMHC Stage 1-2 AA at 5331 Bruce County Road 3, Town of Saugeen Shores

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Coreena,

As discussed in our meeting on August 21st, here is the recommendation via TMHC.

Miigwech,

Natalie
SON Archaeology Department
Resource & Infrastructure Department

'

Environment
Office

Saugeen Ojibway
Nation.

10129 Hwy 6
Georgian Bluffs, ON
NOH 2T0

saugeenojibwaynation.ca

—————————— Forwarded message ---------

From: Liam Browne <lbrowne@tmhc.ca>

Date: Thu, Jun 13, 2024 at 2:09 PM

Subject: RE: TMHC Stage 1-2 AA at 5331 Bruce County Road 3, Town of Saugeen Shores
To: Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>, Jason Carson <jcarson@carsonsupply.com>
Cc: SON Archaeology <archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca>

Hi Dana and Jason,


mailto:archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca
mailto:jcarson@carsonsupply.com
mailto:dkieffer@cobideeng.com
mailto:lbrowne@tmhc.ca
https://saugeenojibwaynation.ca

The report has been accepted by SON.

When it comes time for the topsoil stripping for the development SON would like to an opportunity to
inspect the stockpiled soil to see if any artifacts are present. This activity would be beyond the scope of
the Stage 1-2 assessment completed and need not involve TMHC. This will need to be coordinated
between yourselves and SON.

I will move forward with submission of the report to the MCM now.

Best,

Liam

Liam Browne, MA, P1048 TMHC Inc.

Pipeline Archaeological Projects Unit Manager 1108 Dundas Street, Unit 105
Ibrowne@tmhc.ca London, ON | N5W 3A7
519-282-0095 www.tmhc.ca

519-641-7222

The information contained in this email is privileged and/or confidential. It is intended solely for the use of the party to which it is addressed. Its dissemination,
distribution, or copying is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender and also destroy any and all copies.

From: SON Archaeology <archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca>

Sent: June 13,2024 1:03 PM

To: Liam Browne <lbrowne@tmhc.ca>

Subject: Re: TMHC Stage 1-2 AA at 5331 Bruce County Road 3, Town of Saugeen Shores

Good afternoon liam,

SON Archaeology has reviewed the report and finds it acceptable. However, SON Archaeology would like
to inspect the stripped soil when stripping is undertaken.


mailto:lbrowne@tmhc.ca
mailto:archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca
www.tmhc.ca
mailto:lbrowne@tmhc.ca

Miigwech,

Kove Sartor
SON Archaeology Department
Resource & Infrastructure Department

L)

Environment
Office

Saugeen Ojibway
MNation.

10129 Hwy 6
Georgian Bluffs, ON

NOH 2T0

saugeenojibwaynation.ca

On Thu, Jun 13, 2024 at 12:23 PM Liam Browne <lbrowne@tmhc.ca> wrote:

Hi Kove,

Please find attached the report for this project. There were no finds and as such, we have not
recommended any further assessment.

If you have any questions about the report please let me know.

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

From: Robert Martin <bob.martin@mail.utoronto.ca>

Sent: January 19, 2024 1:05 PM

To: Liam Browne <lbrowne@tmhc.ca>; SON Archaeology <archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca>
Cc: Jason Carson <jcarson@carsonsupply.com>; Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>

Subject: Re: TMHC Stage 1-2 AA at 5331 Bruce County Road 3, Town of Saugeen Shores

Miigwetch, Liam!

All best wishes,

Robert J. Martin, PhD

From: Liam Browne <lbrowne@tmhc.ca>

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2024 11:44 AM

To: Robert Martin <bob.martin@mail.utoronto.ca>; SON Archaeology
<archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca>

Cc: Jason Carson <jcarson@carsonsupply.com>; Dana Kieffer <dkieffer@cobideeng.com>
Subject: TMHC Stage 1-2 AA at 5331 Bruce County Road 3, Town of Saugeen Shores

Hi Rob,


mailto:dkieffer@cobideeng.com
mailto:jcarson@carsonsupply.com
mailto:archaeology@saugeenojibwaynation.ca
mailto:bob.martin@mail.utoronto.ca
mailto:lbrowne@tmhc.ca
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www.tmhc.ca
mailto:lbrowne@tmhc.ca

TMHC has been contracted by Jason Carson of 2128080 Ontario Inc. through Cobide Engineering Ltd. to
complete a Stage 1-2 assessment of part of 5331 Bruce County Road 3
(https://maps.app.goo.gl/B1sp50xhYNH2MEhQ5 - see attached Fieldmap) in the Town of Saugeen
Shores, Bruce County, Ontario. | see that yourself and Dana have already discussed this project.

The property consists of an active agricultural field and a woodlot. The Stage 2 assessment will consist
of a pedestrian survey at 5 m intervals of the field and a test pit survey at 5 m intervals of the woodlot.
We anticipate completing the fieldwork for this project over the course of three days with a crew of 8 in
the spring. Would SON like to be involved in the fieldwork for this project?

I am currently working through Stage 1 background research for the property. The early surveyors were
not overly enthusiastic about conditions in the area of the subject property. Much of the land in the
adjacent ROWs was described as swampy and thickly treed by cedar and hemlock. A small creek was
recorded as flowing westward through Bruce Road 3 into the area that is now the woodlot (see attached
McNabb map). The description of the creek in the surveyor’s notes clarifies that what looks to be part of
the creek to the north of Bruce Road 3 is just a crinkle in the actual map! Perhaps the creek emptying
into the woodlot explains why this area was not cleared for agriculture? There are no registered
Indigenous archaeological sites within 1 km of the property.

In terms of 19™"-century potential, the property is roughly 75 m to the southeast of the Victoria Hotel (see
attached Gilmour-Lynch map) and is also in close proximity to what appears to be a millon Lot 10, Con
12 (see attached HistoricAtlas map).

Does SON has any traditional or ecological knowledge for the property that we should consider during
the compilation of background information? If so, and SON is willing to share, please let us know so we
can include it in the Stage 1 background research.

Please let me know if there is any other information you require as SON considers this project.

Best,

Liam


https://maps.app.goo.gl/B1sp5oxhYNH2MEhq5

Liam Browne, MA, P1048 TMHC Inc.

Project Manager/Staff Archaeologist 1108 Dundas Street, Unit 105
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



From: Coordinator LRC HSM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub

Subject: Request for Comments - Saugeen Shores (2128080 Ontario Inc.) - proposed Zoning By-law Amendment and
Official Plan Amendment

Date: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 3:12:19 PM

Attachments: PastedGraphic-5.pna

** [CAUTION]: Thisemail originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Saugeen Shores Municipality

RE: Z-2023-056 / C-2023-004

The Historic Saugeen Métis (HSM) Lands, Resources and Consultation Department
has reviewed the relevant documents and have no objection or opposition to the
proposed Zoning By-law Amendment and Official Plan Amendment as presented.

Thank you for the opportunity to review this matter.
Regards,
Chris Hachey

Coordinator, Lands, Resources & Consultation
Historic Saugeen Métis

204 High Street

Southampton, ON

saugeenmetis.com
519.483.4000

HISTORIC

SAUGEEN
METIS

s>

This message is intended for the addressees only. It may contain confidential or
privileged information. No rights to privilege have been waived. Any copying,
retransmittal, taking of action in reliance on, or other use of the information in this
communication by persons other than the intended recipients(s) is prohibited. If you
have received this message in error, please reply to the sender by e-mail and delete
or destroy all copies of this message.


mailto:hsmlrcc@bmts.com
mailto:bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fsaugeenmetis.com%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cbcplpe%40brucecounty.on.ca%7Cfccdbaa7091c4e7db45d08db990c891a%7Cfd89d08b66c84a86a12d6fcc6c432324%7C0%7C0%7C638272051393103671%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=LVWpQ0n1tn%2BGk9Z%2Bo05Qvh3QIskuFRki3ARk40yvWeY%3D&reserved=0
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From: Coordinator LRC HSM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub

Subject: Request for Comments - Town of Saugeen Shores (Carson) Resubmission of Proposed Zoning By-Law
Amendment

Date: Wednesday, July 31, 2024 11:54:35 AM

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

RE: C-2023-004, Z-2023-056

The Historic Saugeen Métis (HSM) Lands, Waters and Consultation Department has reviewed
the updated documents and maintains no objection or opposition to the proposed Zoning By-
Law Amendment.

Thank you for the opportunity to review this matter.
Regards,

Georgia Lumley

Coordinator, Lands, Waters & Consultation
Historic Saugeen Métis

204 High Street

Southampton, ON

saugeenmetis.com
519.483.4000

HISTORIC

SAUGEEN
METIS

—=—
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From: Ontario Lands

To: Amy Rogers
Subject: RE: Request for Comments C4 Z56 Carson
Date: Tuesday, August 8, 2023 6:51:41 AM

You don't often get email from ontlands@enbridge.com. Learn why this is important

** [CAUTION]: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Thank you for your correspondence with regard to the proposed Site Plan Application. Enbridge Gas
Inc, does have service lines running within the area which may or may not be affected by the
proposed Site Plan.

Should the proposed site plan impact these services, it may be necessary to terminate the gas
service and relocate the line according to the new property boundaries. Any Service relocation
required would be at the cost of the property owner.

If there is any work (i.e. underground infrastructure rebuild or grading changes...) at our easement
and on/near any of our existing facilities, please contact us as early as possible (1 month in advance
at least) so we can exercise engineering assessment of your work. The purpose is to ensure the
integrity of our main is maintained and protected.

Confirmation of the location of our natural gas pipeline should be made through Ontario One Call 1-
800-400-2255 for locates prior to any activity.

In the event that an easement is required to service this development, and any future adjacent
developments, the applicant will provide the easement(s) to Enbridge Gas at no cost.

We trust the foregoing is satisfactory.

Barbara M.J. Baranow
Analyst Land Support

Enbridge Gas Inc.
50 Keil Drive North, Chatham, ON N7M 5M1

Integrity. Safety. Respect.

Analyst Land Services

From: Amy Rogers <AmRogers@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 9:39 AM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>
Cc: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: [External] Request for Comments C4 756 Carson


mailto:ONTLands@enbridge.com
mailto:AmRogers@brucecounty.on.ca
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification

CAUTION! EXTERNAL SENDER

Were you expecting this email? TAKE A CLOSER LOOK. Is the sender legitimate?

DO NOT click links or open attachments unless you are 100% sure that the email is safe.
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

WWW. brucecounty.on.ca

COB_Logo.png

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
Subject: RE: Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice Z56 Carson
Date: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 11:14:03 AM

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
developments, the applicant will provide the easement(s) to Enbridge Gas at no cost..

We trust the foregoing is satisfactory.

Land Analyst

ENBRIDGE GAS INC.
TEL: 519-436-4673| FAX: 519-436-5320
50 Keil Dr N, Chatham ON N7M 5M1

enbridge.com
Safety. Integrity. Respect.

From: Klarika Hamer <KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 11:09 AM

To: Bruce County Planning - Lakeshore Hub <bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca>

Cc: Coreena Smith <CJSmith@brucecounty.on.ca>

Subject: [External] Revised Request for Agency Comments C4 Z56 Carson and Public Meeting Notice
/56 Carson

CAUTION! EXTERNAL SENDER
Were you expecting this email? TAKE A CLOSER LOOK. Is the sender legitimate?


mailto:ONTLands@enbridge.com
mailto:KHamer@brucecounty.on.ca
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.uniongas.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7CKHamer%40brucecounty.on.ca%7Cb7c0ec3788384a860efe08dc112dfbd9%7Cfd89d08b66c84a86a12d6fcc6c432324%7C0%7C0%7C638404136424167518%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FwpxSEy3r9rz5Zbex7tMJiFarbXqK6HNUBU66piT0gk%3D&reserved=0

I DO NOT click links or open attachments unless you are 100% sure that the email is safe.
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

Please also see the attached Public Meeting Notice for Zoning By-law Amendment file Z-2023-056.

All documentation for this application is available on our website at
https://www.brucecounty.on.ca/active-planning-applications.

Roger — the Development Sign that is required to be posted at the property is being sent to you via
courier. Please post the sign immediately upon receipt. Once posted, please email a picture of the

posted sign to bcplpe@brucecounty.on.ca.

Kind regards,

Klarika Hamer

Applications Technician

Planning and Development
Corporation of the County of Bruce

Office: 226-909-1601
Direct: 226-909-3359

WWW.bI’UCGCOUI’Tty.Oﬂ.0a

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
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